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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (Vice President)
Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Michael Charles Lion

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
Mr. Gu Liyong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)

Mr. Michael Charles Lion
Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van OQoijen

Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen

Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Gu Liyong

Ms. Yu Miu Cheung

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2012

=8

BITES

PRz (LERTRARE)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 5&4E (5443 )
BEBIE (5EE)

FHITESE
Michael Charles Lion 4

BYFHTES
BEEMEL
BERAZ L
FHERE

HITEES
FRZEFE(L/E)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %t 4
BEELE

BEREES
BEEME L (£E)
Michael Charles Lion %t 4
EWELL

FHELAE

FMHEES
FREFE(F/E)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 554
B i £

BHRL L

FiHERE

REZES
FREFE(L/E)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %t 4
sy E

BHRL L

FHERE

RENK
BEERE
RpELL



Corporate Information (continued)
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (&R EEFRAR]) (the “Company”), | present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Group finished the 2012 financial year with a reduced net profit
attributable to owners of the Company from HK$152.1 million in the
previous year to HK$88.6 million. During the year, the Group recorded
a reduction in sales from HK$9.8 billion in 2011 to HK$8.2 billion in
2012, representing a reduction of 16.4%. The decrease in gross margin
to 2.1% recorded during the year was due to an adverse impact of the
continued volatile with downward focus global metal prices throughout
the year and “mark-to-market” basis for provision for inventories. The
drop in commodity prices during the year had a negative impact on the
gross margin of the Group. As for the net profit, the Group recorded
a net profit attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$88.6
million, representing a net margin of 1.1% when compared to the net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$152.1 million
recorded in 2011. This represented an overall reduction of net profit of
41.7%.

Despite the relatively volatile world metal market with downward
price trend experienced throughout the year, the Group continued
to maintain its procurement volume to cater for its processing needs
through its well established overseas procurement network. During the
year, the Group sold in aggregate over 723,600 tonnes of its processed
products within its three business segments. This represented a decrease
of 14% when compared to 843,400 tonnes in 2011.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$0.08, representing a decrease of 46.7% when
compared with HK$0.15 in 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

In January 2012, Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims”), a Hong Kong subsidiary of Sims Metal Management Limited
(“SMM") being the largest (by market capitalisation) metal recycler in
the world and one of the Group’s major suppliers, became the first
strategic investor of the Company (details of such investment are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2012). Since Sims
became a strategic investor of the Company, we have already started
to reap the synergistic benefit of our tie-up with the gradual increase
in our purchase volume with Sims and at the same time, we have also
started selling scrap materials through Sims to its customers in the Asia
region. The Board firmly believes that in view of SMM'’s global reach
and customer network, advance technologies and solutions in the
metals and electronics recycling industry together with its strong global
resources with approximately 270 facilities worldwide, the strategic
collaboration with SMM will significantly add value and expertise which
complements that of the Group, and will considerably enhance the
Group's current position for future expansion. The Group will build on
this collaboration to increase the business activities between us and will
continue to explore the possibility of further collaboration in business
developments in the future. The Group further believes that having
SMM as a significant minority shareholder of the Company is a strong
recognition of the Group’s competitiveness and achievements and will
significantly enhance the overall reputation and strategic growth of the
Group within the metal recycling industry.

As indicated in our announcement dated 27 March 2012, the Tianjin
joint venture was short-lived due to differences in major business ethics.
The joint venture company was ultimately dissolved in the second
quarter of 2012.

In the first quarter of this year and following the completion of the
acquisition of the Yuen Long industrial site, we have moved all the
Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company to the Yuen Long facility. Since then, the Group has
established a strong presence in Hong Kong with a rapid increase in local
market share. The Group is now in a well-placed position to establish a
more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste processing platform in
Hong Kong. We are confident that the Hong Kong facility will eventually
become an important contributor to the overall performance of the
Group.

- Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2012
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

With regard to the investment to establish new processing facilities in
the Development Zone in Yantai City, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), we are now in the planning and construction stage of
the development and expect the first stage of the facilities to become
partially operational in the second half of 2013.

Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo, Shanghai and Hong Kong. We will
continue to be on the lookout for any potential opportunity.

With the emphasis of support from the PRC Government to develop the
recycling industry, we are confident that the metal recycling industry
in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an important source
and an integral part of the metal resource supply chain of the PRC in the
future.

On the basis that metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to cater
for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC.

Fang Ankong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Facing a volatile global metal market, 2012 was full of challenges to the
Group. During the year, the Group’s revenue decreased from HK$9.8
billion in 2011 to HK$8.2 billion, representing a decrease of 16.4%. The
decrease in gross margin to 2.1% recorded during the year was due
to an adverse impact of the continued volatile with downward focus
global metal prices throughout the year and “mark-to-market” basis
for provision for inventories. The downward volatility in commodity
prices had a negative impact on gross margin of the Group in 2012. As
for the net profit, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$88.6 million, representing a net margin
of 1.1% when compared to the net profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$152.1 million recorded in 2011. This represented
an overall reduction of net profit of 41.7%.

Despite the relatively volatile world metal market with downward
price trend experienced in 2012, the Group continued to maintain its
procurement volume to cater for its processing needs through its well
established overseas procurement network. During the year, the Group
sold in aggregate over 723,600 tonnes of processed products within
its three business segments. This represented a decrease of 14% when
compared to 843,400 tonnes in 2011.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$0.08, representing a decrease of 46.7% when
compared with HK$0.15 in 2011.

Our Procurement Network

The Group is the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for
recycling, reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC. The
Group imports nearly all of our mixed metal scrap and have, over the
years, developed a strong international procurement network which
covers Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of
suppliers was mostly established and developed by the Group leveraging
on its experience in the industry. With our good business practices,
we have enjoyed good business relationship with its suppliers over the
years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEwES (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development

In January 2012, Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims”), a Hong Kong subsidiary of Sims Metal Management Limited
(“SMM") being the largest (by market capitalisation) metal recycler in
the world and one of the Group’s major suppliers, became the first
strategic investor of the Company (details of such investment are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2012). Since Sims
became a strategic investor of the Company, we have already started
to reap the synergistic benefit of our tie-up with the gradual increase
in our purchase volume with Sims and at the same time, we have also
started selling scrap materials through Sims to its customers in the Asia
region. The Board firmly believes that in view of SMM'’s global reach
and customer network, advance technologies and solutions in the
metals and electronics recycling industry together with its strong global
resources with approximately 270 facilities worldwide, the strategic
collaboration with SMM will significantly add value and expertise which
complements that of the Group, and will considerably enhance the
Group's current position for future expansion. The Group will build on
this collaboration to increase the business activities between us and will
continue to explore the possibility of further collaboration in business
developments in the future. The Group further believes that having
SMM as a significant minority shareholder of the Company is a strong
recognition of the Group’s competitiveness and achievements and will
significantly enhance the overall reputation and strategic growth of the
Group within the metal recycling industry.

As indicated in our announcement dated 27 March 2012, the Tianjin
joint venture was short-lived due to differences in major business ethics.
The joint venture company was ultimately dissolved in the second
quarter of 2012.

In the first quarter of this year and following the completion of the
acquisition of the Yuen Long industrial site, we have moved all the
Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company to the Yuen Long facility. Since then, the Group has
established a strong presence in Hong Kong with a rapid increase in local
market share. The Group is now in a well-placed position to establish a
more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste processing platform in
Hong Kong. We are confident that the Hong Kong facility will eventually
become an important contributor to the overall performance of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEwES (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)

With regard to the investment to establish new processing facilities in
the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC, we are now in the planning
and construction stage of the development and expect the first stage of
the facilities to begin partially operational in the second half of 2013.

Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo, Shanghai and Hong Kong. We will
continue to be on the lookout for any potential opportunity.

Social Responsibilities

On the environmental protection front, we continued placing great
emphasis on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line with
local and national environmental protection standards.

Despite the changes in the evaluation basis by the Environmental
Protection Department of Zhejiang Province (#1/T & IRIF(RERE) in 2011,
our Taizhou facilities still ranked amongst the top designated processing
units for imported hardware and electrical appliance scrap, electric
wire and cable scrap, as well as motor scrap in Zhejiang Province. Our
production processes did not consume large volumes of electricity and
water and therefore produced very small volumes of waste materials.
We consider that we have adopted sufficient environmental protection
measures and controls against air, water, solids and noise pollutions
produced during the course of our production process.

Prospects

With growing signs of economic recovery in various regions and
especially the China growth momentum appears to be picking up. This
is particularly apparent in the new leadership’s decision to speed up
urbanisation as an opportunity to boost investment in infrastructure
and housing. We also believe that 2013 being the first year of the new
leadership transition, the central government should have an incentive
to maintain a high growth economy. As a result, we may see a renewed
growth to support a continued strong demand for various industrial
commodities. In addition, with the emphasis of support from the PRC
Government to develop the recycling industry, we are confident that
the metal recycling industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will
become an important source and an integral part of the metal resource
supply chain of the PRC in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEwES (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Prospects (continued)

On the basis that metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to
cater for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC. With
this in mind and in accordance with our expansion strategy, the Group
is aiming to procure 65,000 to 75,000 tonnes of mixed metal scrap
materials per month to cater for its processing needs. This purchase
volume is expected to increase as the Group continues to expand. The
management will continue making efforts to capitalise on such direction
in achieving satisfactory returns to the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$1.6 billion, or 16.4%, from
HK$9.8 billion in 2011 to HK$8.2 billion in the year. The decrease was
mainly contributed by a decrease in sales volume as well as average
selling prices for our recycled metal products and foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$1.3 billion, or 14.2%, from
HK$9.4 billion in 2011 to HK$8.0 billion in the year. The decrease is in
line with the decrease in revenue and primarily due to a decrease in sales
volume and reduction in the average purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit for the year was HK$171.4 million as compared to a
gross profit of HK$452.6 million for 2011. We recorded a gross profit
margin of 4.6% last year as compared to gross profit margin in the year
of 2.1%.

The decrease in gross margin to 2.1% recorded during the year was due
to an adverse impact of the continued volatile with downward focus
global metal prices throughout the year and “mark-to-market” basis for
provision for inventories.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately HK$2.2
million, or 7.0%, from HK$31.3 million in 2011 to HK$33.5 million in
the year. This was mainly due to increase in selling activities in Hong
Kong during the year.

Administrative and other expenses

Total administrative and other expenses increased by approximately
HK$44.0 million, or 30.7%, from HK$143.5 million in 2011 to
HK$187.5 million in the year. This was mainly due to expansion in Hong
Kong facility and various one-off expenses incurred by our Shanghai
facility during the year.

Other income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$0.8 million, or 3.6%,
from HK$22.3 million in 2011 to HK$21.5 million in the year. This was
mainly due to decrease in interest income during the year.

Other gains and losses

Other gains increased by approximately HK$270.7 million from HK$2.1
million in 2011 to HK$272.8 million in the year. This was mainly due
to a significant increase in fair value gains from commodity derivatives,
derivative component of convertible bonds and warrants when
compared to previous year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$74.9 million, or 76.6%,
from HK$97.8 million in 2011 to HK$172.7 million in the year. This was
mainly due to the interest expenses from the issuance of the convertible
bonds together with the accounting adjustments on its imputed
interests during the year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
As a result of the factors mentioned above, the net profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company decreased by HK$63.5 million,
or 41.7% from HK$152.1 million in 2011 to HK$88.6 million in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the date
for the periods indicated:

B EIRE (%)

BASERI Tt
TRESINAR A B RBEAARNE TS
P

Liquidity Ratios REESLE

At 31 At 31
December December
2012 2011
R-E——F RZT—F
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H
Current ratio mEN = 1.96 1.47
Quick ratio RE)HE & 0.66 0.47
Gearing ratio (%) BEEENLE (%) 51.1 49.9

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HILEE
2012 2011
—E-——F T ——F
Inventory turnover days FEEEBRH 141 108
Debtor’s turnover days FEUER JE 4% B 21 1 8
Creditor’s turnover days FERTRREEE B 28 10 9

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totalling HK$598.4 million (2011: HK$590.9 million). Total borrowings
were HK$2.7 billion (2011: HK$2.7 billion), and these were mainly
used to finance the purchases of mixed metal scrap from overseas.
Such borrowings are mainly denominated in United States dollars and
Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was 51.1%
(2011: 49.9%).

Debtor’s turnover days and creditor’s turnover days both increased from
8 days and 9 days for the year ended 31 December 2011 to 11 days and
10 days for the year ended 31 December 2012 respectively.

Inventory turnover days increased from 108 days for the year ended 31
December 2011 to 141 days for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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17 77 7% ££598,400,000/8 jt( = T — — F :
590,900,000 % 7T) ° {&E#2%842,700,000,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, we had pledged certain buildings, prepaid
lease payments, investment properties, trade receivables and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$367.6
million (2011: HK$295.5 million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2012, we had capital commitments in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease
payments but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to approximately HK$12.0 million (2011: HK$185.9 million).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risk
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk management strategy aims to
minimise the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

With the establishment of the Pricing Committee, a formal hedging
policy took effect on 23 June 2010 which aimed to enhance the Group'’s
risk management of commodity price fluctuations.

With regard to foreign currency risk management, we continued
borrowing in United States dollars borrowings by securing Renminbi
deposits in order to take advantage of the favourable exchange rate.
We will continue following this strategy so long as the trend of foreign
exchange movement justifies it and will consider other alternative
measures including hedging exchange rate exposure when appropriate.

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, we have
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other interest
rate related derivative financial instrument. However, we continue
to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need arises.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

As for credit risk, we continue to follow the trade practices of cash on
collection from sales of all of its metal recycling products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in our Group's
financial statements. In addition, we will continue to monitor closely the
trade debtors for the Foundry business to minimise potential impairment
losses.

With the liquidity risk, we will continue maintaining a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, we had a workforce of 638 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 3,700 separation and selection
workers through local recognised labour service contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor disputes
which have affected its operations in the past. We have not experienced
any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We
continue to maintain good relationships with our employees.

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

We remunerate employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent employees. In
addition to benefits normally provided in line with industry practices,
the Company also has a share option scheme in place for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible persons including
employees of Group companies for their contributions to the long term
success of our Group.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, 30,900,000 share
options were granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Ankong (75 &), aged 47, is an Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). Mr. Fang Ankong was appointed as an
Executive Director on 15 May 2008. Mr. Fang serves as a Chairman
of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Pricing Committee of the Company and he is also a
Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also
one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong founded the
Group in 1999 and has over 18 years of experience in the business of
metallurgy and metal scrap recycling. Mr. Fang Ankong is primarily
responsible for setting corporate strategy and planning, and overall
management of the Group. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Fang
Ankong has been engaged in the import and trading of metals scrap.
From 1995, Mr. Fang Ankong was a shareholder of Tianan Resources,
a company engaged in the importing of metal scrap into China and
recycling of metal scrap, and also participated in the operation and
management of Tianan Resources. Tianan Resources was deregistered in
2002.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the younger brother of Ms. Fang Aiping and elder
brother of Mr. Fang Anlin, who are both Vice President of the Group.
Mr. Fang Ankong is also the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei, the
Senior Vice President of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also the younger
brother of the father-in-law of Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, the manager of the
sales and marketing department of the Group.

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, aged 50, is an Executive Director,
Vice President and one of the founders of the Group. He was appointed
as an Executive Director on 15 May 2008. He serves as a member of
the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. van QOoijen is primarily in charge of
corporate strategy and planning with focus on the Group’s import
functions and has over 15 years of experience. Mr. van Ooijen obtained
a diploma in 1985 from Hogere Agrarische Scholen van de Katholieke
Nederlandse Boeren-en Tuindersbond ‘S-Hertogenbosch (Higher
Agricultural Schools of the Catholic Dutch Farmers and Gardeners Union
of 'S-Hertogenbosch) in the Netherlands. Mr. van Qoijen is the sole
shareholder and has been appointed as the director of SVO Company
B.V. since 30 September 1993. He was also the director of Delco
Participation B.V. from 2 November 2000 until 23 April 2008.
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Mr. Gu Liyong (B8ZE), aged 50, is an Executive Director and Vice
President of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 28
August 2008. Mr. Gu serves as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for operational and financial activities
and has over 27 years of experience in the industry. Mr. Gu graduated
from Shanghai University of Technology (/8T % X2 in 1984 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and majoring in steel making from the
Department of Metallurgy. He worked at China Resources Reclamation
Corp., East China Co. (FEIMEBAFABHEARERAT]), a company
for recycling and trading ferrous metal (such as steel and iron) and non-
ferrous metal (such as copper, aluminium, lead and tin) and plastic scrap
in the East China region, for at least 10 years and started his career in
the management and operation of domestic and international recycling
business. He was a manager for the import and export department and
an assistant to general manager in China Resources Reclamation Corp.,
East China Co., and was responsible for managing the procurement of
metal scrap from overseas and reselling to their customers. Mr. Gu has
extensive experience in the recycling of different resources, including
metals and other scrap materials. Since he joined the Group in 1999,
Mr. Gu has been responsible for the import and export businesses of the
Group by utilising his professional knowledge in the recycling resources
business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Michael Charles Lion, aged 63, is a Non-Executive Director. He
was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 17 January 2012. He
serves as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He has a
career of over 40 years in the international non-ferrous metals industry,
including pioneering the development of China and other Asian
markets as consumers of international non-ferrous scrap in the early
1970s. He has been working with SMM Asia, being a wholly-owned
Hong Kong subsidiary of SMM, for 15 years and is the Chairman and a
Director of SMM Asia. SMM Asia is engaged in the global international
marketing and trading of SMM’s owned and brokered non-ferrous
scrap, nonferrous by-products and primary metals. From 1967 to 1986,
he was a partner in Philipp and Lion Partnership; from 1986 to 1991, he
was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Philipp and Lion Group
Ltd., and from 1997, he has been the President of Lion Consulting
Inc.. As a founding member of the London Metals Exchange secondary
aluminium sub-committee, he currently serves as chairman of the
Bureau of International Recycling (“BIR”) Membership committee and a
member of its Advisory and Executive boards. He was the president of
the former British Secondary Metals Association and the president of the
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Nonferrous Division of BIR. He is a frequent speaker and contributor of
articles at global industry events such as Metal Bulletin, IWCC and CRU,
Cessco gatherings, on the topics of nonferrous metals and hedging.
He graduated from Haileybury and Imperial Service College in 1963,
and has a certificate of Former Ring Dealing Member of London Metals
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#R), aged 67, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. She joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Ms. Zhang
is also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. She was the vice-
secretary-general of Financial Trust Association of Zhejiang Province
CIMTA S RMELEWE) before joining our Group and she served as
chief and general manager and held various positions in various Chinese
banking and corporate finance sectors including the People’s Bank
of China Heilongjiang Branch (FE ARIEITREEETE H77), Financial
Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (I & & & REF ), and
office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of People’s Bank of China
Shanghai Branch (FEIARRIT BTN EREERAE).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (825 12)
from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (28T &1 &k

27).

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (B£3&#£), aged 63, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over
37 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants; and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He is also an Associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves
as an independent non-executive director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: Vodone Limited, Matrix
Holdings Limited, Sino Distillery Group Limited, China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD
Group Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited.

Mr. Li Xikui (Z$%), aged 68, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Mr. Li serves as
a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor’s
degree majoring in foreign trade (¥9M& 5% %) from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics (B4LEI4EKE2) (formally known as Liaoning
Finance and Economics College (GEZEBF4CERT)) in August 1970 and a
master diploma in finance from Research Institute for Fiscal Science of
Ministry of Finance (8 ExED8A IR EHITAT) in July 1982.

Mr. Li became the Researcher (13 &) of China Construction Bank (4 Bl
#25&R77) in 1993. He has been receiving a special allowance granted by
the State Council (E#Fz) since 1992.

Mr. Li was appointed as the vice president of the head office (477877
) of China Construction Bank (FEI#E:&3E77) in 1985 and 1988; the
vice president (gJ42%f) of China Galaxy Securities Company (¥ B4R 1] 7%
%/~ )). Since February 2006, he has been the chairman of the board (&
E ) of Galaxy Asset Management Co., Ltd (SR &S EE Q7).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul (AZ§), aged 57, is the Qualified
Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the
Group in June 2009 as chief financial officer with responsibility for
overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance. He is an associate of both the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Associated
International Hotels Limited (Stock code: 0105) and Tian Teck Land
Limited (Stock code: 0266), companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ding Guopei (T Bl#E), aged 50, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group, the General Manager, Director and Vice-Chairman of Taizhou
Chiho-Tiande Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Foundry Company Limited. Mr. Ding has over 14 years of experience in
the industry and joined the Group in December 1999. Prior to joining
the Group, he was a trader principally engaged in the metal recycling
industry. Mr. Ding obtained a diploma majoring in International
Economics and Trade from the Faculty of Business from Ningbo
University in 2002.

Mr. Ding successively worked as Vice-Chairman of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Association Recycling Metal Branch in November 2004,
Chairman of Association of Resources Comprehensive Utilization of
Taizhou City in June 2005, and executive director of China Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association in April 2006. He has
been chosen as a member of the third session Standing Committee
of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress in December 2006, the second
session outstanding builders of Taizhou City of the socialism with
Chinese characteristic in February 2007, and was awarded the Top 10
Contribution to the China Metal Recycling Industry Award in October
2007. He was also been the Vice-Chairman of the Zhejiang Association
of Solid Waste Recycle and Disposal in May 2008. He has been chosen
as NPC deputies of Taizhou in January 2011. Mr. Ding held the post
of Vice-Chairman of Zhejiang Provincial Environment Monitoring
Association in August 2011, he has been chosen as the representative
of Fourth People’s Congress of Lu Qiao District and a member of the
fourth session Standing Committee of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress
in March 2012 and held the post of Vice-Chairman of Taizhou City
Federation of Industry and Commerce in November 2012. Mr. Ding is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin, and the
husband of Ms. Fang Aiping.

Ms. Fang Aiping (77 E3¥), aged 49, is the Vice President of the Group,
and the Financial Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company Limited.
She is primarily responsible for the subsidiary’s overall financial planning,
financial reporting and budgeting as well as implementing our Group's
business strategies. Ms. Fang Aiping joined our Group since December
1999. Ms. Fang Aiping has more than 13 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Fang Aiping is the sister of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr.
Fang Anlin. She is the wife of Mr. Ding Guopei.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREBEAERERE (F)

Mr. Fang Anlin (J3 Z#k), aged 44, is the Vice President of the Group,
the Director and the Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company
Limited. He is primarily responsible for the production of the subsidiary.
Mr. Fang Anlin joined the Group in December 1999 and has over 18
years of experience in the business of mixed metal scrap. Since Mr.
Fang Anlin joined the Group, Mr. Fang Anlin has been responsible for
overseeing the production of recycled metal products. Mr. Fang Anlin is
the brother of Mr. Fang Ankong and Ms. Fang Aiping. Mr. Fang Anlin is
also the brother in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Cai Haifeng (¥/81£), aged 41, is the Vice President of the Group
and the General Manager of Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals Recycling
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Cai graduated from
Zhejiang Polytechnic University (4T L% X&) with a Bachelor’s degree
in Fine Chemical Engineering in 1993. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cai worked for Zhejiang Dong Da Ji Tuan Company (T T8 A%
E2A7]), a company whose business involves the import and export
agency business, as an assistant manager in the business development
department responsible for metal scrap import business. He joined the
Group in May 2000.

Mr. Gan Jun (HE), aged 43, is the assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Manager of the Group. Mr. Gan joined our Group in
September 2007 and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He holds a diploma of Accountancy in Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FEE 814X K E2). Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Gan worked as the financial manager and the assistant to the general
manager in Guangdong Gentle Technology Company Limited (& IEi&
B AR AR, an information technology application provider ({2 84
fiir FE FA AR 7% 75), for more than a year. Mr. Gan has extensive experience
in the accounting and finance field, and he is also a certified public
accountant and registered tax adviser in China.

Mr. Xu Jialiang (FFINR), aged 49, is the manager of the procurement
department of the Group and is primarily responsible for procuring raw
material supply of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the procurement of mixed metal
scrap. Mr. Xu has over 12 years of experience in mixed metal scrap
procurement.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENRSREEASEE (8)

Mr. Zhu Zhonghui (5 818), aged 34, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of the Group and is primarily responsible for the
sales management of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the selling of recycled metal products. Mr.
Zhu is the son-in-law of the elder brother of Mr. Fang Ankong.

Mr. Xu Jun (#}B&), aged 35, is the Head of Investor Relations of the
Group and he joined the Group in September 2010 as Vice Head
of Investor Relations, and promoted to Head of Investor Relations
in December 2010. Mr. Xu is graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_E/83238 K 2) with a Bachelor’s degree in Dynamic & Energy
Engineering in 2000. In 2003, he is graduated from New York Institute
of Technology with a Master degree in Business Administration. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xu has worked for Alcatel Shanghai Bell Limited
(S E MM REARAR) as the Sales & Bid Director of overseas
market; the Head of Investment Banking of Great China for Hongjing
Bangxun Information (Shanghai) Limited (Z&BHEN (L&) BRA
7)) and the Executive Director for Shanghai Jingshun Equity Investment
Limited ( H/BRIEREREFRQA).
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
Group on page 88.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK2.12 cents per ordinary share,
subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
repurchased 1,970,000 ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$7,865,000. The
repurchases were effected by the Directors for the enhancement of
shareholders’ value. Details of the repurchases are as follows:

Total number

BE - HEFEEIARRTIRMD

HE T —F+-_A=Z+—HUIHKREE
N ARARIEBBHAERZIBRARFEE
1,970,000 % & 3@ % - 41X (E & 7,865,000 %
JL o BEBERRN EERFAREEE - BRF
BT

Month of the of the ordinary Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
repurchases shares repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
e AR EEEARAY FERESE FRBRRERE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT
September 2012 —E--FNA 1,802,000 4.09 3.87 7,215,000
October 2012 —T-—F+A 168,000 3.90 3.84 650,000
1,970,000 7,865,000

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its [ FXIRFTEEI - FRAQ T REEAMBR

subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholder.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2012, the distribution reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,163,188,000.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$474,845 (2011: HK$120,530).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2012, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 10.6% (2011:
11.5%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
36.5% (2011: 40.8%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was
less than 30% of total revenue in 2012 and 2011.

Apart from Sims Metal Management Asia Limited which indirectly
holds approximately 15.97% of the Company’s share capital and is
the Group’s largest supplier, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their respective associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which, to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s other
four largest suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contacts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.

b=l
NREBNFERNBREA74845E T (- F — —
££1120,530%7T) °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company and
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions are the connected transactions
between the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company, certain of which are ongoing. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the following transactions:

1. Connected transaction with respect to the
subscription agreement entered into between
the Company as issuer, HWH Holdings Limited
(“"HWH"), Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) and
Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims") as subscribers in respect of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the warrants
On 17 January 2012, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with HWH, Delco
and Sims pursuant to which the Company will issue to Delco,
HWH and Sims three-year 4% coupon convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$815,800,000 with detachable
warrants in registered form to subscribe for an aggregate of
12,638,441 shares of the Company (“Shares”) at an initial
exercise price of HK$6.00 per Share for an aggregate principal
amount of HK$75,830,646.

As at the time of execution of the Subscription Agreement,
HWH and Delco, together with their respective associates were
interested in 312,923,265 Shares and 230,395,981 Shares
respectively, representing approximately 30.04% and 22.11%
respectively of the then issued share capital of the Company
and Green Elite Limited, a 50-50 joint venture between Delco
and HWH, is interested in 60,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 5.76% of the then issued share capital of the
Company. HWH and Delco are therefore substantial shareholders
and connected persons of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Connected transaction with respect to the
subscription agreement entered into between
the Company as issuer, HWH Holdings Limited
("HWH"), Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) and
Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims") as subscribers in respect of the issue of the

convertible bonds and the warrants (continued)

In addition, following the completion of the purchase of an
aggregate of 16% issued share capital of the Company by Sims
pursuant to a share sale and purchase agreement dated 17
January 2012 (the ”“Share Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
Sims and its associates became interested in 166,696,754 Shares,
representing approximately 16% of the then issued share capital
of the Company. Sims has therefore also become a substantial
shareholder and a connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the execution of the Subscription Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted connected
transactions for the Company and was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements of the Listing Rules and the
approval by the independent shareholders of the Company (the
“Independent Shareholders”).

Continuing transactions with Sims Metal
Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”) with
respect to the execution of a master supply
agreement which subsequently became continuing
connected transactions of the Company

Immediately prior to the execution of the Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement, on 16 January 2012, the Company entered into
a master supply agreement with Sims Asia to document their
business relationships relating to the purchase of certain products
by the Group from the relevant member(s) of Sims Asia, its
subsidiaries and/or associates (the “Sims Asia Group”). Upon
completion of the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, as Sims
Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims which holds
16% of the issued share capital of the Company, therefore,
Sims Asia is a substantial shareholder and hence a connected
person of the Company. The Company had complied with the
applicable reporting, annual review and disclosure requirements in
accordance with Rule 14A.41 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the master purchase agreement for the supply of

copper scrap to Sims Asia

On 16 February 2012, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement (the “Master Purchase Agreement”) with
Sims Asia pursuant to which the Sims Asia Group may purchase
from the relevant member(s) of the Group certain products
including copper scraps (the “Products”) at prevailing market
prices during the term between 1 February 2012 and 31 May
2012. The aggregate value of the Products purchased shall not
exceed the cap (the “Cap”) of US$28 million (approximately
HK$218.4 million) during the term of the agreement.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
as the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Cap are more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the Master Purchase Agreement was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but was exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing
Rules.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the master supply agreement for the purchase of
scrap metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V.

On 21 March 2012, the Company entered into the master supply
agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) with De Leeuw
Metalen B.V. (the “Supplier”), pursuant to which the relevant
member(s) of the Group may purchase from the Supplier certain
products including scrap metals at prevailing market prices during
the term between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2014. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and
the Supplier under the Master Supply Agreement in the relevant
financial years of the Company during the term are capped at the
following annual caps:
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4,

Continuing connected transactions in relation to the
master supply agreement for the purchase of scrap
metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V. (continued)

Relevant financial years of the
Company during the term

RERAERDREBRMBREE

4. EEHDe Leeuw Metalen B.V. X

BeBzIHERB 2 FEARERS

(%)

Annual Caps

FELR

1 January 2012 — 31 December 2012
T —F—-A-HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—H
1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013
—E-ZF—A-HE-_ZT-—=ZF+-A=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NFE-R—HEZE-WF+A=+—H

As the Supplier is majority-owned by one of the sons of Mr.
Herman Maurits de Leeuw, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, therefore, the Supplier is an associate of a controlling
shareholder of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4)(b)(ii) of the
Listing Rules and hence a connected person of the Company. The
transactions contemplated under the Master Supply Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps are
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Master Supply Agreement
was subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but was exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

US$2 million (approximately HK$15.6 million)
2,000,000 37T, (47 15,600,000 87T )
US$3 million (approximately HK$23.4 million)
3,000,000 37T (%) 23,400,000 % 7T)
US$3 million (approximately HK$23.4 million)
3,000,000 3= 7T (49 23,400,000 % 7T)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Asia

In order to renew the existing arrangements under the Master
Purchase Agreement, on 28 March 2012, the Company entered
into the new master purchase agreement (the “New Master
Purchase Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to which the
relevant member(s) of the Sims Asia Group may purchase from
the relevant member(s) of the Group the Products at prevailing
market prices for the term of three years from 1 June 2012 to 31
May 2015. The aggregate values of the transactions between the
Group and the Sims Asia Group under the New Master Purchase
Agreement in the relevant periods during the term are capped at
the following annual caps:

Relevant financial years of the
Company during the term

RERAE AR BT BFE

5. FBHESIms AsialNF = HRBIHRZE
BHEXS

BEEITRBHECHABLY  RZF
—Z—F=AZ=Z+/\H ' KARAHSims
Asiaf] LT T IR E e ([ X RBH
) B Sims AsiakEEHEBKER
AR _E—Z—_FA—HEZ=F—H
FRA=Z+—AL=BFE 2 HR A%
WM ERAEEEEKE R RIREZ
LER - ANEBEE Sims Asia £ B RHAR
WAEEIRRIE T IRE R EITR S
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Annual caps

FELR

1 June 2012 — 31 December 2012
—E-—FRXA-HEZZ-—-H+-A=+—H
1 January 2013 - 31 December 2013
—E-=f—f—-HAE-T—=f(+-A=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-MF-A—HEZT—WOF+=-A=+—H
1 January 2015 — 31 May 2015
—E—hF—A—HE-_Z—HFRA=1+—H

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual
caps are more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under
the New Master Purchase Agreement constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules and it was subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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US$37 million (approximately HK$288.6 million)
37,000,000 37T (47 288,600,000 8 7T )

US$74 million (approximately HK$577.2 million)
74,000,000 27T, (49 577,200,000 /#7T)

US$81 million (approximately HK$631.8 million)
81,000,000 27T (47631,800,000 8 7T)

US$45 million (approximately HK$351 million)
45,000,000 7t (49351,000,000 8 7T)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase

of scrap metals from Sims Asia

In order to renew the existing arrangements under the old
master supply agreement dated 16 January 2012 entered into
between the Company and Sims Asia, on 15 November 2012,
the Company entered into the new master supply agreement (the
“New Master Supply Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to
which the relevant member(s) of the Group may purchase from
the relevant member(s) of the Sims Asia Group certain products
including scrap metals at prevailing market prices for the term
of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and the
Sims Asia Group under the New Master Supply Agreement in
the relevant periods during the term are capped at the following
annual caps:

Relevant financial years of the
Company during the term

RERAERAREEMBFE

FERXS RSERERS ()

EFESIms AsialXBESENHEMH
EHEzSERERS

BIEER N B Sims Asiad —E——4F
— At RBRINZREHRERZETZHE
B RZZE——_F+—H+HAB "
ANAFEESims Asiaz] SLFT EHEH
(FEHRERZE]D - Bt A5EEH
RERARAIR_E—=F—A—HZE=
T-RFt+_A=+—BL=ZEAFEZ
PR NIRIRITME B Sims Asia £ & 18
RERARIRERREESBENZETE
M o NEEH Sims Asia £ BRER 48
BERIRIET EHERRETR 248
BEUATHFEELRALR :

Annual caps

FEER

1 January 2013 - 31 December 2013
—T-—=f—B—BE-_T—=F+-F=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—ENE-A-HE-_Z-NE+-_A=1+—H
1 January 2015 — 31 December 2015
—E-RAF—A—HEZZE—AF+ZA=+—H

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps
are more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the New
Master Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35
of the Listing Rules. The New Master Supply Agreement was
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

US$200 million (approximately HK$1,560 million)

200,000,000 27t (49 1,560,000,000 87T )

US$350 million (approximately HK$2,730 million)

350,000,000 %7t (£9 2,730,000,000 7% 7T)

US$500 million (approximately HK$3,900 million)

500,000,000 3= 7t (49 3,900,000,000 7% 7T)

HREBRFELRZEAT S LXBR
5% MEHEHBERBETNRETZIRS
BEARRARIN EMRAIE 14A35I8 N 2
THERPFEBERS - Bt - FEH
JEZEBEET EMBRAEUATETE
BB NS FEEHRBILRELL
HEZITE ©
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Review by Independent Non-executive Directors and
the auditor of the Company

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above not falling
under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

issued
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to
the date of the Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (Vice President)

Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema (resigned on 17 January 2012)

Mr. Michael Charles Lion (appointed on 17 January 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Li Xikui shall retire
from office, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with Mr. Fang Ankong,
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Mr. Gu Liyong, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang
Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui on 24 June 2010 for a period of three years.
On 17 January 2012, the Company entered into an appointment letter
with Mr. Michael Charles Lion for a term commencing from 17 January
2012 up to 2012 annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2012. On 27 March 2012, the Company entered into another
appointment letter with Mr. Michael Charles Lion for a term of 3 years
commencing from 24 May 2012 to 23 May 2015. None of the Directors
of the Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any service contract with the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

£
FRARBEAREABIRFEROLHE

HITES

PRI S (EEHRITEAZE)

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 5E 4 (&I#8#;)
BBk (Fl48#)

FHITEE

Ralph Sytze Ybemast A& (KR=ZZE—=F—AH
- BEE)

Michael Charles Lion %4 (R=ZF——F— A
THHAEZE)

BAFIITES
BEEMEL
BERL L
FHERE

BIEAQAIEBEIZMA - Stephanus Maria
van Ooijen 5t + BEBMIG+ RFHEL A
AER  MREHEEARTEEREEREE
FRGEEBE o

EERBEL

RZZT—TFRAZ+TNE - ARFEGZZE
Jo4 - Stephanus Maria van Ooijen t4 ~ E&
TBENAE  EEMNEL  EMELLIREHE
FEFMRIEEH - BH=F - ARARZE
— —F— A+-+ HEMichael Charles Lionst 4
RINEME  EHEHE T ——F—A++H
BEARAN-_Z——FRA-+MBESETZ
ZE-ZFREBAFRE - ARQFIEMichael
Charles Lion% R —_E——F=A=-++H
RIS —HMEFH BRE=F HEFHA
ZE-—FAAtHBRE_ZT-HFAHA
Z+ =0 BREERRAFAGEEETY
AAREEHERRRE R, HEFMHBR
AIEIB AR —FERMIEE CEERERIN)
MR IERE AR E 4
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the financial year ended 31 December 2012, none of the Directors
of the Company has interests in businesses which compete or are likely
to compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme which were
adopted on 23 June 2010.

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under
which the Company has conditionally granted options to certain
Directors, executives and employees of the Group to purchase
shares of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer
price as defined in the Prospectus.

The total number of shares in respect of which share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2012 was 12,140,000 which represented
approximately 1.16% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2012.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEaRE (&)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RBERAERTE ()
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BEXRAMBEABRETS (E)
As at 31 December 2012, details of the share option granted RZE——F+_-_A=+—8 " REH
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: RN SR B EPTIR A BB
REFFIBMT
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
Exercisable tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise period  options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) ~price per (dd/mm/yyyy) 1January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012 Approximate
(Note1)  share Noted) MW=ZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe MW=ZF-ZF  percentage
RiAH (HKS) 88 -A-BXE year year year TZA=t-R shareholdings
Grantees (B/8/%) BRIRE (B/B/%)  BREHE EREL ERTRE ERER RfTRERE R
ERA (RtsE1) (7) (ME2) k€ BREHE BREYE BREZR  HERGHUE BREsH
(i) Directors
B2
Mr. Fang Ankong 231062010 243 120072011 - 120772012 1,050,000 0 1,050,000 0 0 -
FRERE “T-IE CR-ErATIEE
PRV = “E-ZFtAtZH
13/07/2012 - 121072013 1,050,000 0 0 0 1,050,000 0.10062%
S Ak
I 0 g
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 1,400,000 0 0 0 1,400,000 0.13417%
ZE-CEEATERE
ZZ-RELATIA
3,500,000 0 1,050,000 0 2,450,000 0.23479%
Mr. Stephanus 23/06/2010 243 120072011 - 120772012 300,000 0 300,000 0 0 -
Mariavan Qolen ~ =5-%% ZR--ErAtIAE
StephanusMaria ~ ~AZT=A “E-CEERTCA
van Oofjen £ 13/07/2012 - 1210772013 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02875%
“F--FtAft-AZ
ZB-ZELATIR
13/07/2013 - 120072014 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.03833%
Z3-ZFtAtERZ
Z2-BELATZA
1,000,000 0 300,000 0 700,000 0.06708%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RBERAERTE ()
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BEXRAMBEABRETS (E)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
Exercisable to outstanding Number of Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise period  options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per (dd/mm/yyyy) 1January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012 Approximate
(Note1)  share Noted) MW=ZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe MW=ZF-ZF  percentage
RiAH (HKS) TE8 -A-BXE year year year TZB=t-H shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIRE (B/B/%)  BREHE EREL ERTR ERER RfTRERE h#
ERA (Mt 1) (1) (Rfsk2) R #E BREHA BREHA BREZR  HERGHUR D
(i) Directors (continued)
22(5)
Mr. Gu Liyong 23/06/2010 243 120772011 - 12/07/2012 127,500 0 127,500 0 0 -
BEERE 3% ZF—FtATIAZ
AAZT=H “E-CEEATCE
13/07/2012 - 1210712013 127,500 0 0 0 127,500 0.01222%
CR-CErATEAE
“E-ZErATIA
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 170,000 0 0 0 170,000 0.01629%
“T-CEtATERZ
ZZ-RELATIR
425,000 0 127,500 0 297,500 0.02851%
4,925,000 0 1,477,500 0 3,447,500 0.33038%
(i) Employegs and 2310612010 243 12072011 - 120772012 579,500 0 579,500 0 0 -
other participants ~ ZF—%% “R-—ErAtIAE
EERAMBRE  SAZTER “E-CEERTCA
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 2,140,500 0 580,000 0 1,560,500 0.14954%
-z ﬁtﬁ% RE
ZE-ZELATIR
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 2,854,000 0 0 64,000 2,790,000 0.26737%
2 R =)
Z2-mELATZA
5,574,000 0 1,159,500 64,000 4,350,500 041691%
Total A3 10,499,000 0 2,637,000 64,000 7,798,000 0.74729%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (H)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BB rEST 2l (4E)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BEXRAMBEABRETS (E)
Notes: M5E
(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the (1) WARRARREEXAMEESER
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. ST EIRAR AR B EREN B -
(2)  Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally (2) WBEBXIARESHERIETSES
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to HIEHRTERENSERA - AT
exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any (i) BARBIBRNDRBRAER L
time during the period commencing from the date of the mzB(ETmEHRDEBE—RA
first anniversary of the date when the shares of the Company FZHRBREIMABRE_ATF
were first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) to EALZHAA(BEERMK
the date of the second anniversary of the Listing Date (both EA) - BEEITEEREBRER
days inclusive); HEBRB30%

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at (ii) BEELITMHEBRE_HF
any time during the period commencing from the date HERRBRZE FMBHRE=RF
immediately following the date of the second anniversary of ERIEZHERN(REEREMRK
the Listing Date to the date of the third anniversary of the R - BER TR ER
Listing Date (both days inclusive); and T HEiB30% &

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at (i) BHEEITEHEFE=RF2
any time during the period commencing from the date HERRZE FMBEHRENRES
immediately following the date of the third anniversary of ERIEZHERN(REERERK
the Listing Date to the date of the fourth anniversary of the EA) - BEEITEEREBRER
Listing Date (both days inclusive). HERIBA0% ©

BEERHEERRAT —T--FFR



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010, which was
approved by the shareholders’ written resolutions, is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years. It is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee,
advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer,
agent, business partner, joint venture business partner, promoter,
service provider of any member of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 100,000,000 shares, representing 9.58% of
the total number of shares of the Company as at 31 December
2012.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a
general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value
of a Share.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2012, details of the share option granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

BRrEsTE (&)

BRRRABREREBRESTS ()

R-F-—_F+=A=+—

B REE

RARBEERBIMET S AL MER

BT
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant ~ Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised lapsed 2012
(Note1) share period  WZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe RZZF-ZF  Approximate
RHEAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-R&{E year year year TZB=t-R  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BROFE eS8  BREHE FRRE R ER%R  ATEBRE  shareholdings
BEA (W) () (B/B/%) Rt#R  BREHE  BREHR  BREME HERGEE REEOESM
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Fang Ankong 03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 4,950,000 0 0 0 4,950,000 0.47436%
FEERE -3 “E-CFnfAzAE
A=A “E-ZERA=H
(Note 4) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 4,950,000 0 0 0 4,950,000 047436%
(M) “Z--ERAMAZ
“Z-RETA=ZA
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 6,600,000 0 0 0 6,600,000 0.63249%
“Z-MERANAZ
“E-nERA=A
(Note 2)
(Hst2)
16,500,000 0 0 0 16,500,000 1.58121%
28/03/2012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 0 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0.47436%
kS ZB-ZESACT\RE
ZA=tNA ZF-EZAZT4A
(Note 5) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 047436%
(Mzs) TE-MEZA-T/\RE
Z5-FZRZTtA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 0 6,600,000 0 0 6,600,000 0.63249%
ZR-REZAZT\RE
ZF-~EZRZT4A
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
0 16,500,000 0 0 16,500,000 1.58121%

BEEREEFRAHE



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BRrEsTE (&)

(b) BEXRDMABRERBRESTS (H)

Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe RZE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRAFE eS8 BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  R{TEBRE  shareholdings
ERA (RsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Directors {continued)
22(5)
Mr. Stephanus Maria  03/05/2011 6388 03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02875%
van Ooijen —F—-F “E--Fnf-RZE
Stephanus Maria 1AZH “3-=FRA=A
van Ooijen 7t £ (Note 4) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02875%
(Ftsk4) “E-CERANAZ
“E-mERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.03833%
“Z-MERAMAZ
“Z-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(HsE2)
1,000,000 0 0 0 1,000,000 0.09583%
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 0 600,000 0 0 600,000 0.05750%
“E-CF TE-ZEZACT/\RE
ZA=tNA ZE-REZAITHA
(Note 5) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 600,000 0 0 600,000 0.05750%
(FtsEs) Z3-RE=AZT/\HE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 0 800,000 0 0 800,000 0.07666%
ZT-REZACT/\BE
5 EZRZTtA
(Note 3)
(H3E3)
0 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 0.19166%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

SERERTE ()
R AR SRR 8 ()

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe RZE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRAFE eS8 BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  R{TEBRE  shareholdings
ERA (RsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Directors {continued)
22(5)
Mr. Gu Liyong 03/05/2011 6.388  03/052012 - 03/05/2013 262,500 0 0 0 262,500 0.02515%
B2ERY Tk ZZ-CFRAZRE
TA=A Z5-=%1A=A
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 262,500 0 0 0 262,500 0.02515%
“E-=FnAmAZ
“E-MERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 350,000 0 0 0 350,000 0.03355%
“Z-MERAMAZ
“Z-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(f3k2)
875,000 0 0 0 875,000 0.08385%
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 0 195,000 0 0 195,000 0.01869%
“E-CF TE-ZEZACT/\RE
ZA=tNA ZE-REZAITHA
(Note 5) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 195,000 0 0 195,000 0.01869%
(FtsEs) Z3-RE=AZT/\HE
ZE-EZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 0 260,000 0 0 260,000 0.02491%
ZT-REZACT/\BE
5 EZRZTtA
(Note 3)
(H3E3)
0 650,000 0 0 650,000 0.06229%

BEEREEFRAHE



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

BRrEsTE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) \
BEROMBERBRESS (H)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (RtsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RHHE BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(5)
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema 03/05/2011 6388  03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 0 0 -
(resigned on 5k “F-Z%nAzRZ (Note 6)
17 January 2012) 1A=A “5-=FRA=A (HizEe)
Ralph Sytze Ybema 7t 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 0 -
(R=F-2& “T-ZFTARAZ (Note 6]
—ATtAEE) “E-MERAZA (Hizte)
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 0 -
“F-MERARAZ (Note 6)
“Z-n%nfA=A (Fi3te)
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 0 0 -
(Note 6)
(Fyste)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEWE (E)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RBERAERTE ()
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETEE)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (RtsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(5)
Dr. Loke Yu 03/05/2011 6388  03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
RigHEL “EF “T-—FRAZAZ
A=A Z5-%1A=H
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“F-=FRAmAZ
“Z-mERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00575%
“Z-MERAMAZ
“Z-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 0 150,000 0.01437%
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
ZB-CF TE-ZECAC/\RE
ZAZTNE Z3-NEZAt4A
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
ZZ-REZAZT/\BE
ZF-EZRZTtA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 0.00287%
ZE-REZAZT\AE
ZBESACTHR
(Note 3)
(P3E3)
0 75,000 0 0 75,000 0.00719%

BEERHEERRAT —T--FFR



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRrEsTE (&)

MBRERBRESTS ()

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BERXRA
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
(HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZA=t-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (%7) (B/B/%) RBE  BREHE  BREHE  BREME HERGEE REHOESM
(i) Directors (continued)
22(5)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong 6388  03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
BjRRL “5-“¥nAZRE
“Z-=E7f=H
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“5-=knAmAZ
ZE-MERAZA
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00575%
ZE-MELANAZ
ZF-R5RA=A
(Note 2)
(Psk2)
150,000 0 0 0 150,000 0.01437%
4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
ZE-ZEZAZT/\RE
Z5-EZRZTtA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
ZF-IEZAZT/\AE
ZF-EZRZTtA
2810312015 - 27/03/2016 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 0.00287%
ZE-R5ZAZ/\RE
ZE-EZACTHA
(Note 3)
(P3E3)
0 75,000 0 0 75,000 0.00719%

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2012



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRrEsTE (&)

BRRRABREREBRESTS ()

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (RtsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Directors (continued)
E2(g)
Mr. Li Xikui 03/05/2011 6388  03/05/2012 - 03/05/2013 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
hErk “EF “T-—FRAZAZ
A=A Z5-%1A=H
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 0.00431%
“F-=FRAmAZ
“Z-mERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00575%
“Z-MERAMAZ
“Z-RERAZH
(Note 2)
(BsE2)
150,000 0 0 0 150,000 0.01437%
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
“ER-CF TE-ZEACT/\RE
ZA=tNA ZE-REZAZTHA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 22,500 0 0 22,500 0.00216%
ZB-MESACT)\RE
ZE-REZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 0.00287%
ZT-REZACT/\HE
5 FZRZTtA
(Note 3)
(H3E3)
0 75,000 0 0 75,000 0.00719%
18,975,000 19,375,000 0 0 38,200,000 3.66073%
(Note 6)
(Fste)

BEEREEFRAHE



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

fE I RERT 8l (R
(b) ERDMBELBREE (H)

Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (RtsE1) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Employees and other ~ 22/09/2010 338 2200972011 - 2210972012 1,055,500 0 984,500 71,000 0 -
participants Z3-%f% ZE--EAACTCRE
EERAMAERE  NAZTZR “2-CEnACTCA
23/09/2012 - 2210972013 1,116,000 0 0 30,000 1,086,000 0.10407%
ZR-CEAACTZEE
S
23/09/2013 - 22/09/2014 1,488,000 0 0 40,000 1,448,000 0.13877%
ZE-ZEAACTZRE
“EmEAACTCR
(Note 2)
(f3k2)
3,659,500 0 984,500 141,000 2,534,000 0.24284%
03/05/2011 6.388  03/052012 - 03/05/2013 3,573,000 0 0 141,000 3,477,000 0.33320%
“E-% “R-CETAZAE (Note 6)
A=A —2--knA=A (Hizte)
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 3,573,000 0 0 141,000 3,477,000 0.33320%
“5-ZER1ARAZE (Note 6)
“Z-MERAZA (Fste)
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 4,764,000 0 0 188,000 4,636,000 0.44428%
ZZ-MERAMAZ (Note 6)
“2-1%nA=A (Hizte)
(Note 2)
(f3k2)
11,910,000 0 0 470,000 11,590,000 1.11068%
(Note 6)
(Hizte)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2012



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BRrEsTE (&)

(b) BEXRDMABRERBRESTS (H)

Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  options as at
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 31 December
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2012 granted exercised apsed 2012
(Note1)  share peiod RZE-ZF  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe WZZFE-ZF  Approximate
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmlyyyy) —B-BFTE year year year TZAZt-H  percentage
Grantees (B/B/%) BRIFE e BREHE ERRE EnirE ER&N  RTEBKRE  shareholdings
ERA (M) (1) (B/B/%) RA#E BREHA BREHA BREZA HERGHE RESOASM
(i) Employees and other ~ 28/03/2012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 0 3,457,500 0 114,000 3,343,500 0.32041%
participants “F-of ZT-ZEZACT/\HE
(continued) ZB-tN\A “E-RE-AZTtA
EERENZEE(B) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 0 3,457,500 0 114,000 3,343,500 0.32041%
ZZ-REZAZT/\BE
ZF-EZRZTtA
2810312015 - 27/03/2016 0 4,610,000 0 152,000 4,458,000 0.42721%
ZF-REZAZ/\BE
ZE-EZACTHA
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
0 11,525,000 0 380,000 11,145,000 1.06803%
15,569,500 11,525,000 984,500 991,000 25,269,000 2.42155%
(Note 6)
(Hizte)
Total &3t 34,544,500 30,900,000 984,500 991,000 63,469,000 6.08228%

BEEREEFRAHE



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Date of
Grant”).

(2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at
any time during the period commencing from the first
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date of the second
anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days inclusive);

(ii) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the second anniversary of the Date
of Grant to the date of the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive); and

(iii) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant to the date of the fourth anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive).

(3) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2013, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the date of the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2014, to the date immediately
before the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27
March 2016 (both dates inclusive); and

(iii)  as to 40%, from the date of the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2015, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive).

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEWE (E)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BB rEST 2l (4E)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAFBRERBREE (E)

Notes: (continued)

(4) The 16,500,000 share options and 1,000,000 share options were
granted to each of Mr. Fang and Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011
subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group
for the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2011
is equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition
has not been met and therefore the share options granted to Mr.
Fang and Mr. van Ooijen in 2011 have not been duly vested and are
not exercisable. Notwithstanding this, these share options should
be taken into account for the purpose of determining whether the
limits under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules are exceeded.

(5) The 16,500,000 share options, 2,000,000 share options and
650,000 share options were granted to each of Mr. Fang, Mr.
van Ooijen and Mr. Gu on 28 March 2012 subject to the vesting
condition that the net profit of the Group for the financial year
of the Company ended 31 December 2012 is equal to or exceeds
130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been met and
therefore the share options granted to Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen and
Mr. Gu in 2012 were automatically lapsed on the publication date
of the final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2012.

(6) Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema resigned as Director on 17 January 2012
and was retained as consultant of the Group. His interests in
share options to subscribe for 150,000 shares of the Company
were reclassified under the category of “Employees and other
participants”.

Saved as disclosed as above, no options were granted, cancelled
or lapsed as at 31 December 2012. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.

i s ()

4) WM=ZE——FHA=—BAMEFELEKvan
Ooijen %t A 9 BlJ# F 16,500,000 % &
fi%# % 1,000,000 A% EEA%AE - LR
AEIBE-_ZT——F+=ZA=+—H
IEARRBRBRFEREERFEZER
RBAAEERE_T—ZTF+_A
=+ —HLEHRFEZFNA130%8
SEBIEM o AR B RIEMK -
At RZZE——FEFH %% Kvan
Ooijen e A MBEREW R FXFE &
TATfE - REWUM - BEEELBE
R BIE A7 .04 KR - DRERT R34
LRERE -

5) RZE—=ZF=RA=Z+N\BRAAHL
A ~ van Ooijen 5t 4 N B 5t & 9 Bl H
16,500,000 fif# & ~ 2,000,000 %
[I&# 12 650,000 % E R HE - ZERANAR
AHEZT—=—Ft+=-A=+—AH1
B 2 N S B A AR S R stR a8 AR
EEEE-_T-ZTF+=-A=+—H
IEFT B E 5 80 130% E SR B 161 -
R L REIRENX - Bt - K=
T—ZFETHEE - van Ooijen o4
FEEENBERERNTBEARRBE
—T-—HE+-A=Z+—BILEEZ
PEEEZAABRY -

(6)  Ralph Sytze Ybemaft 4R —ZT——4F
—ATtEBTES  BEE4AEEH
2R o PRI RBAE A2 7] 150,000 A%
Bz EREFPZEEHEFTHIEZE
[RERHMSHEE] —HEZT -

BEXFEESEN R ——F+=
A=+—BIEERERL - sk
B o BAER AT IRE NI RER TR
BA1.0087T °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

>t

EmikE
ESRIETRAERADAREABE
BH RS - MERDRESHEER XA

RZE——FF+-A=+—H0 ARAESK
FEITHAERAR A S E MM EE (F
ZER(BHLAEKRON(TEHFREBEE])E
XV E) Bkt ~ MR RESFPHEE AR AR
BRBESF L EEFIEIIEAETEENE
s AR ET a8k iR iR T 3R BIIP 8+ PRk
BITANBEZETELR ZWEESTA ([1R2ESF
Al ZBMERRARREBHEISMBR AT
([EEZ P ) R SOA B 10T -

() BROORIEEREEIE

Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested in the Company
Director of Interest HEERN HEEEN BEEEN  ERDERE
EZEB 5/ RRtE ROBE  HEROHE RABH  HELEI
Mr. Fang Ankong Beneficial owner 5,614,000 35,450,000 41,064,000
HRERE BRBERA (Note 1)
(BrzE1)
Interest in controlled corporations 376,985,265 31,266,667 408,251,932
REEHEE 2 s (Note 2) (Note 2)
(fizE2) (HizE2)
Interest of the other parties to 397,392,735 141,875,536 539,268,271
an agreement under section (Note 3) (Note 3)
317 of the SFO GEE) (H#E3)
EHFRBEEIE 317 E T R
BT R i 2 s
Total: 85t : 988,584,203 94.74%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) EaiE (8)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERTFETHRAERAQATREBE L

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures EHRKR#® - HEROGRESHEZR AR
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation (&)
(continued)

() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIBER G EIFE - (4E)

Number of Total  Approximate

Number of underlying number of percentage

Shares Shares Shares  shareholding

Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested in the Company

Director of Interest FHERN FEERN REEREN  ERDRRE

ES2H 5/ BEME RAEE HERGHE RABH  HELES

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen  Beneficial owner 300,000 3,700,000 4,000,000

Stephanus Maria van Ooilen T4~ EZEEA (Note 4)
GET))

Interest in controlled corporations 290,395,981 52,100,000 342,495,981

REEFEB 2R (Note 5) (Note 5)
(P7E5) (MizE5)

Interest of the other parties to 489,296,019 152,792,203 642,088,222
an agreement under section (Note 6) (Note 6)
317 of the SFO GiE39) (Hite6)

BHERBEROIEITET
RN A B

Total: 85t : 988,584,203 94.74%
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner 127,500 1,822,500 1,950,000 0.19%
BEEEEE ERHEBEA (Note 7)
(Hi&E7)
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Beneficial owner - 150,000 150,000 0.01%
(resigned on 17 January 2012) E#EAA
Ralph Sytze Ybema %4

(R=B——F-A+tHABHE)

BEEREEFRAHE




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) R E (&)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EZERFTETHRABRARQARREMEEE
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures EHRKR#® - HEROGRESHEZR AR
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation (&)

(continued)

() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIBER G EIFE - (4E)
Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested in the Company
Director of Interest FHERN FEERN REEREN  ERDRRE
ES2H 5/ BEME RAEE HERGHE RABH  HELES
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner - 225,000 225,000 0.02%
BgmEL ERAEA (Note 8)
GiE:)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong Beneficial owner - 225,000 225,000 0.02%
BHRLL ERAAA (Note 9)
CiE:)
Mr. Li Xikui Beneficial owner - 225,000 225,000 0.02%
rHERE BRBERA (Note 10)
(GBI
(i) Short positions in Shares: (i) RIPEGAE -

Approximate

percentage

shareholding in

Name of Capacity/Nature Number of the Company

Director of Interest Shares AR R ARAE

ExEB 5 RaittE R E HENE D

Mr. Fang Ankong Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
ARERE agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 11)
EHREERAIENTE T HE (BizE11)

BT R F PR < s

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %¢ 4 REEHEE 2 (Note 11)
(FEE11)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

¢>—\/

of the Company and Its Associated Corporation (&)
(continued)

(iif)

Long positions in debentures of the Company: (iir)

W%

ZIVA

(&)

EERFIETRABREQAREEEE
EHRG HERORESNHESERAXR

FIEHHIAE

Principal amount of
the debentures held

FsEES 2 ASHE

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest (HK$)
EEZE8 B EEEE ()
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporations 187,600,000
HRZERE AR PEEDEE 2 (Note 12)
(Bt 12)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 312,600,000
Stephanus Maria van Qoijen 754 REIEHEE 2 (Note 13)
(Kf3E13)

Notes:

(@) Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) was granted Share Options under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 3,500,000 Shares and 33,000,000 Shares,
respectively. Mr. Fang exercised Share Options to subscribe for

1,050,000 Shares on 18 May 2012.

(2) 316,985,265 Shares are held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH")
as beneficial owner and HWH is wholly-owned by Mr. Fang. Green
Elite Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 Shares as beneficial
owner and is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco Participation
B.V. (“Delco”). On 1 March 2012, the Company issued a three-
year 4% coupon convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$815,800,000 entitling the
holders thereof to convert into Shares at an initial conversion price
of HK$6.00 per Share, subject to adjustments. The 31,266,667
underlying Shares represent such number of underlying Shares
which fall to be issued to HWH upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds. Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested
in an aggregate of 408,251,932 Shares held by his controlled

corporations.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
(i) Long positions in debentures of the Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3) Mr. Fang, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Ooijen”),
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw”), HWH, Delco,
Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) and
Sims Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”) are considered
having entered into an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.
The 397,392,735 Shares comprise (i) 300,000 Shares held by Mr.
van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (i) 230,395,981 Shares held by
Delco as beneficial owner; and (iii) 166,696,754 Shares held by
Sims as beneficial owner. The 141,875,536 underlying Shares
comprise (i) 3,700,000 underlying Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 4 below; (ii) 52,100,000
underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to
be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds;
(iii) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner
which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option
by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial
owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by
Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 539,268,271 Shares held by the other
parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

(4) Mr. van Ooijen was granted Share Options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for 1,000,000 Shares and 3,000,000 Shares, respectively. Mr. van
Ooijen exercised Share Options to subscribe for 300,000 Shares on
18 May 2012.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

(iii)  Long positions in debentures of the Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(5) 230,395,981 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner and
Delco is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 Shares as beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by each
of HWH and Delco. The 52,100,000 underlying Shares represent
such number of underlying Shares which fall to be issued to Delco
upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Therefore, Mr. van
Ooijen is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 342,495,981
Shares held by his controlled corporations.

(6) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims
and Sims Asia are considered having entered into an agreement
under section 317 of the SFO. The 489,296,019 Shares comprise
(i) 5,614,000 Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii)
316,985,265 Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner; and
(iii) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The
152,792,203 underlying Shares comprise (i) 35,450,000 underlying
Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 1
above; (i) 31,266,667 underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner which fall to be issued to HWH upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; (iii) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims
as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon
exercise of the Option by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims
upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to
be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore,
Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
642,088,222 Shares held by the other parties to an agreement
under section 317 of the SFO.

(7) Mr. Gu Liyong (“Mr. Gu") was granted Share Options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for 425,000 Shares and 1,525,000 Shares, respectively.
Mr. Gu exercised Share Options to subscribe for 127,500 Shares on
18 May 2012.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
(i) Long positions in debentures of the Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(8) Dr. Loke Yu was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares.

9) Ms. Zhang Jingdong was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares.

(10)  Mr. Li Xikui was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares.

(11)  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 17 January 2012
entered into between, among others, Delco and Sims, Delco has
granted a call option (the “Option”) in favour of Sims in respect of
20,837,095 Shares, subject to adjustments (the “Option Shares”).
The short position in respect of 20,837,095 Shares represent the
number of the Option Shares which Delco is obliged to deliver to
Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims. Mr. van Ooijen is deemed
to have the same short position as Delco since Delco is indirectly
50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. Mr. Fang is also deemed to have the
same short position as Delco since Mr. Fang and Delco are parties to
an agreement under section 317 of the SFO referred to in Notes 3
and 6 above.

(12)  This represents the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
subscribed by HWH, by virtue of which HWH is deemed to be
interested in 31,266,667 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes
2, 3 and 6 above. Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in the same
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds as HWH since HWH s
wholly-owned by Mr. Fang.

(13)  This represents the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
subscribed by Delco, by virtue of which Delco is deemed to be
interested in 52,100,000 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes
3, 5 and 6 above. Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in the
same principal amount of the Convertible Bonds as Delco since
Delco is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE (E)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) EaiE (8)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FEBRRRALQ TR G R EER 2%
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company wRAR

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the RZZE——F+-HA=+—H BAQRFTES
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, RFEITHA BN - UTFATRAR TR K&
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in  #EEARR /A ERIEE S NS KM 336
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as &8 7178 2 & 50 A FTER 8k i 25 A A 10

follows: T
(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: () R RIBER (D EILEE -
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEERN BEERN BEERN AN RE
RRER a/BEEE RAEE HERREAE PR WEARS L
HWH Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 316,985,265 31,266,667 348,251,932
ERHEA (Note 1) (Note 1)
i3 (Rt 1)
Interest in controlled corporations 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
REEHEE ER (Note 1)
(BizE1)
Interest of the other parties to 403,006,735 177,325,536 580,332,271
an agreement under section (Note 2) (Note 2)
317 of the SFO (Mz2) (Mz2)
EHREEROENTETBE
Rz per S
Total: 51 988,584,203 94.74%
Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 230,395,981 52,100,000 282,495,981
BEXHBA (Note 3) (Note 3)
(HiE3) (Wi33)
Interest in controlled corporations 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
REEHEE 2 R (Note 3)
GiEE)
Interest of the other parties to 489,596,019 156,492,203 646,088,222
an agreement under section (Note 4) (Note 4)
317 of the SFO GE (Fiizxa)
EARAERAIZITET HE
EthiTOnFiE s
Total: &5 988,584,203 94.74%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE (H)
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) EEWE (8)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions TERFERAXATNRKRG REBERKRGHWE
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company #K#*#2 (%)
(continued)
() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () R RIEERGFE - (&)
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEERN BERERN BEERN AN R RE
RRER a/BEEE RAEE HERREAE PR WEARS L
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 290,395,981 52,100,000 342,495,981
Herman Maurits de Leeuw %4 REEHEE 2 R (Notes 3 & 5) (Notes 3 & 5)
(M3 R5) (M3 R5)
Interest of the other parties to 489,596,019 156,492,203 646,088,222
an agreement under section (Notes 4 &5) (Notes 4 &5)
317 of the SFO (M4 R5) (M4 R5)
BERAEROIENTET
BEEMET AR E R
Total: 51 : 988,584,203 94.74%
SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%
WEEHER ER (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(W3 4R5) (W3- 4R5)
H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%
REEHEE 2 R (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(53 4R5) (M7E3 - 4 R5)
Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%
H.P.L. Metals WEEH AR R (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(M3 4R5) (W3- 4R5)
Green Elite Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 - 60,000,000 5.75%

BEHBA

BEEREEFRAHE




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares. (continued)

RN E (&)

FERRRADANKRD RABERDEE

mRxRE (F)

() BROOREEREAHE - (&)

Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
Name of Capacity/Nature interested interested interested  in the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEERN BEREEN BEERN ERDARE
RRER® a/BEEE RAEE HERBEAE PR WEARAE
Sims Metal Management Beneficial owner 166,696,754 86,075,536 252,772,290
Dragon Holdings Limited ERHEAA (Note 6) (Note 6)
(Mizk6) (Mizke)
Interest of the other parties to 613,295,246 122,516,667 735,811,913
an agreement under section (Note 7) (Note 7)
317 of the SFO (M3E7) (Miz7)
BERAEROIENTET
BEEMITANAEE  ER
Total: 51 : 988,584,203 94.74%
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%
China Holdings Limited WEEHAR BR (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes 6, 7 & 8)
(M6 7k8)  (MizEe 7RS)
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%
Asia Limited REEHEE R (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes6, 7 &8)
(M6 7k8) (M6 7RS)
Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 779,992,000 208,592,203 988,584,203 94.74%

RS EE B (Notes 6,7 & 8)

(M6 7R8)

(Notes 6, 7 & 8)
(36 7k8)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

i (&)
TERRRAD TR RARBR G 0 &

mRxRE (F)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

BT A7 s A 2

BEEREEFRAHE

(i)~ Short positions in underlying Shares: (i) HEEAR (D EAE
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
Shares shareholding in
Name of Capacity/Nature interested the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEREN {EA A R B
BRREHB g,/ ERtE HEROEHE HENE D
Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 20,837,095 1.99%
EanBEA (Note 9)
(GER)
HWH Holdings Limited Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 9)
BHRIERIIENTIRTIRZ (B3 9)
BRI Prsh 2 s
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Herman Maurits de Leeuw ¢4 REEEEE 2 (Notes 5 & 9)
(PHZE5 % 9)
SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEHER 2 s (Notes 5 & 9)
(Ffi#E5%9)
H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEENES 2 2 (Notes 5 &9)
(PH3E5 % 9)
Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
H.P.L. Metals REEHEE 2 (Notes 5 & 9)
(F#E5%9)
Sims Metal Management Dragon Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
Holdings Limited agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 9)
EHRBEROE T IE T HE (BfF5E9)




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

EmiiE
TERERAATNRE RARRE OR

mhRe (&

(&)

E)

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued) (i) HEERGEAE - (&)
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
Shares shareholding in
Name of Capacity/Nature interested the Company
Shareholder of Interest BEREN {EA A R B
BRREHB g,/ ERtE HEROEHE HENE D
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
China Holdings Limited MEEHEE 2 (Notes 8 & 9)
(P8 12 9)
Sims Metal Management Asia Limited ~ Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEGEE 2 2 (Notes 8 &9)
(P58 1 9)
Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REAEGER 2 (Notes 8 & 9)
(FizF8 & 9)

Notes:

(1) 316,985,265 Shares are held by HWH as beneficial owner. The
31,266,667 underlying Shares represent such number of underlying
Shares which fall to be issued to HWH upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds. Green Elite holds 60,000,000 Shares as
beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco and
therefore HWH is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares as held by Green Elite.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and
Sims Asia are considered having entered into an agreement under
section 317 of the SFO. The 403,006,735 Shares comprise (i)
5,614,000 Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000
Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 230,395,981
Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner; and (iv) 166,696,754
Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 177,325,536
underlying Shares comprise (i) 35,450,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 3,700,000 underlying
Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 52,100,000
underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to
be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds;
(iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner
which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option
by Sims; (v) 52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial
owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; and (vi) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held
by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon
full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, HWH is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 580,332,271 Shares held by the other
parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

230,395,981 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner. The
52,100,000 underlying Shares represent such number of underlying
Shares which fall to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds. Green Elite holds 60,000,000 Shares as
beneficial owner and is 50%-owned by each of HWH and Delco and
therefore Delco is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares as held by Green Elite.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and
Sims Asia are considered having entered into an agreement under
section 317 of the SFO. The 489,596,019 Shares comprise (i)
5,614,000 Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000
Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 316,985,265
Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner; and (iv) 166,696,754
Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 156,492,203
underlying Shares comprise (i) 35,450,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 3,700,000 underlying
Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667
underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner which fall to
be issued to HWH upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds;
(iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner
which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option
by Sims; (v) 52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial
owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; and (vi) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by
Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed
to be interested in an aggregate of 646,088,222 Shares held by the
other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

(5) Delco is 50%-owned by each of SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”) and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL"). SVO is wholly-owned by Mr. van Ooijen.
HPL is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals
(“Stichting HPL"), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. de Leeuw.
Therefore, each of SVO, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HPL and
Stichting HPL is deemed to be interested in the long positions and
short positions held by and through Delco.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©)

166,696,754 Shares are held by Sims as beneficial owner. The
86,075,536 underlying Shares comprise (i) 20,837,095 underlying
Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to
deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (ii) 52,600,000
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be
issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and
(iii) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner
which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants.

Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and
Sims Asia are considered having entered into an agreement under
section 317 of the SFO. The 613,295,246 Shares comprise (i)
5,614,000 Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 300,000
Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 316,985,265
Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner; (iv) 230,395,981 Shares
held by Delco as beneficial owner; and (v) 60,000,000 Shares held
by Green Elite as beneficial owner. The 122,516,667 underlying
Shares comprise (i) 35,450,000 underlying Shares held by Mr. Fang
as beneficial owner; (i) 3,700,000 underlying Shares held by Mr.
van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667 underlying Shares
held by HWH as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to HWH
upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (iv) 52,100,000
underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to
be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
Therefore, Sims is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
735,811,913 Shares held by the other parties to an agreement
under section 317 of the SFO.

Sims is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sims Metal Management China
Holdings Limited (“SMM China”), which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sims Asia. Sims Asia is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Sims Metal Management Limited (“SMM?"). Therefore, each of
SMM, SMM China and Sims Asia is deemed to be interested in the
long positions and short positions held by and through Sims.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(9) The short position in respect of 20,837,095 Shares represent the
number of the Option Shares which Delco is obliged to deliver to
Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

i (&)
TERRRAD TR RARBR G 0 &

mRxRE (F)
(i) 1R EKE - (&)

fsE - ()

(9) A [#320,837,005 % i 19 2 K A B
Sims 1T A #E & Delco BEAERNN T
Sims BB AR ERR (D B8R E

BEXHHEEN RE——F+-_A=+—
B ARRTFMBEMALT(ARFEER
FETHABBRRIN) RAR B AR
FIEEERIEE S M EEIE XV EE 2 &3
DEPESRTE T A TR sk AN A RIAR IR 35 5 1A
EIEHIS 336 (5B TR ERE R MATR R #E
WIIKE °

BEREHR

MAFERERERFENEAERE - LEEAF
BONEREH  EIH—HRARRRHEEM
MEBRR  EARBEEHZERBRNETE
ERMREREARES

B
AEENERERERESEEREHRE -
ERRRATREGRFHRRAR BG4
HiEE -

FINZESRERARRMBLERE  BAAR
BARLEBMIGEBRETESNH -

AARERABRIETEERHBEERAE
BIER - FBIFIERN RS MBS MKMEIT -

TRER
ARFRANEELEEEERBANAF R

KERWMSE -



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
with the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2012.

AUDITORS

Morison Heng resigned as one of the joint auditors of the Group on
27 September 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu remains as the sole
auditor of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s
auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
Fang Ankong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
EERBRE

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results
and improve our image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Board has set up procedures on corporate governance that comply
with the requirement of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Old CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) which was amended as the Corporate Governance
Code (the “"New CG Code”) in 2012. The Board has reviewed the New
CG Code and revised Listing Rules and the impact to the Company and
taken measures to comply with the New CG Code and revised Listing
Rules.

The Company has adopted, applied and complied with all the code
provisions set out in the Old CG Code for the period from 1 January
2012 to 31 March 2012 and the New CG Code for the period from
1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 except on the deviations set out
below.

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been segregated as required by the provision A.2.1 of the Old
CG Code and the New CG Code.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. With extensive experience in the mixed metal scrap recycling
business, Mr. Fang is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic
planning and the management of our business. The Board of Directors
(the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”) considers that vesting
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of the Group.
The balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprise experienced and
high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises three Executive
Directors (including Mr. Fang), one Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition.

In respect of code provision A.6.7, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend the general
meetings and develop a balance undertaking of views of shareholders.
Due to other pre-arranged business commitments by Mr. Michael
Charles Lion, Mr. Li Xikui and Ms. Zhang Jingdong, they were not
present at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
18 December 2012. Mr. Li Xikui and Ms. Zhang Jingdong were also not
present at the annual general meeting and two extraordinary general
meetings of the Company held on 27 February 2012 and 24 May 2012
due to other overseas commitments.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2012 (the “Relevant Period”) in relation to their securities
dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management
and relevant employees who likely possesses the inside information of
the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group'’s business, strategic decisions and
performances and comprises seven Directors, including three Executive
Directors namely Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen and
Mr. Gu Liyong, one Non-Executive Director namely Mr. Michael Charles
Lion and three Independent Non-Executive Directors namely Ms. Zhang
Jingdong, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Li Xikui. The management is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operation and management of the Group under the Board'’s instruction.
In addition, the Board has also established various Board committees and
has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees including
the Executive Committee (the “Executive Committee”), the Audit
Committee (the “Audit Committee”), the Remuneration Committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination Committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the Pricing Committee (the “Pricing
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Monitoring
Committee was dissolved in 2012 as the net proceeds raised by the
Company'’s initial public offering were fully utilized in 2011. All the
Board Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and further details of these committees
are set out hereunder. The Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012 were approved in the board meetings of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

The Non-Executive Director is appointed for a term of 3 years.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

THE BOARD (continued)

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board has convened four meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2012 and the attendance of all Directors at the Board
Meetings, Annual General Meeting (“AGM") and Extraordinary General
Meetings (“EGMs") of the Company held during the year are as follows:
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No. of Meetings attended/No. of Meetings held

LEEE8E BTERHA
Board Meetings AGM/EGMs
Name of Directors REBFRE
EEHR EEEER BREIRE
Executive Directors BITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) FeE(EXR) 4/4 4/4
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 4/4 4/4
Gu Liyong BZE 4/4 4/4
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion
(appointed on 17 January 2012) (RZZE——F—-A+tBEZE) 4/4 3/4
Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema
(resigned on 17 January 2012) (R=ZZE——F—A+tAHEET) - -
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu R Gk 4/4 4/4
Li Xikui ZihE 4/4 0/4
Zhang Jingdong BEHR 4/4 0/4
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

THE BOARD (continued)

The New CG Code requires that the Non-Executive Directors should
attend general meetings of the Company. Due to other pre-arranged
business commitments by Mr. Michael Charles Lion, Mr. Li Xikui and
Ms. Zhang Jingdong, they were not present at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 18 December 2012. Mr. Li Xikui
and Ms. Zhang Jingdong were also not present at the annual general
meeting and two extraordinary general meetings of the Company
held on 27 February 2012 and 24 May 2012 due to other overseas
commitments. The aforesaid Directors were not the chairman of any
Board Committees.

The Company adopted a procedure to enable the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’'s expense. Subject to the prior approval by the Chairman
of the Board and notification to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the Directors may seek independent legal, financial or other
professional advice from advisors independent of those advising the
Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances to
enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively, either on the
Company'’s affairs or in respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Chairman of the Company held two meetings with the Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors)
without the Executive Directors present in March and December 2012.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Executive Committee with terms of
reference, which is responsible for the management and administration
of the business of the Company and any matters which are within
the ordinary course of the Company’s business under the control and
supervision of the Board and in accordance with the provisions of the
Terms of Reference of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited for ensuring a high
standard of corporate governance and compliance of the Company.
On 19 March 2012, the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of
reference of the Executive Committee, which has included changes in
line with the New CG Code’s new requirements effective from 1 April
2012. The written terms of reference of the Executive Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and Company’s website.

LS (8)

MEEARTRIRTE  IERTEZTEL AR
AR AR E - @ Michael Charles Lion4t 4
FRESERERRLTAEMIELRLEZE
%o MEETENFEARRTNR T ——_F+=
AT N\BERMRERFRARE - FHEXER
EMRZTRAEMGINER - PUEEFEAR
AR E——F A t++ARZE—=
FRAZTIOARTHRFBEFT RS KM ER
HEFIAG - FllEEWIIEFNESEZESH
FE o

ARRERM—ARFREFHEEEBR TS
FBIEEER BRBARAXN - AR
REEETEERMERATRARIE LB
Mo EEZUREFEREEEBERTHAARLA
EBAWMENEAE EREMBERBLNA
RARUEBREZ ATNBERSIBINER -
MHHEMEESR  HMEREERETH
Bff BRBARAEX -

ARREFEFNTER (BREBELIFNTE
BRZT-—F=ZART-_AEBRTMAE
& MERTERHE -

HITEES

ERQCRUATEES  LrRIAEMBER
CHITZESRABEARAMNERRITRE
% ARARRAFEBBREPOEFAEE
XEZeRHINEGE  URBEARHEEBER
NEIBEBEMMRETSE  UERAQRSK
ENCEEBRRAR - RB—Z-F=Ath
B BEFEERMA—RIEETAMTRESRE
HE  FPEERE T _FOA-HAEL
MHF R EASTRIFTRE(F L — &S -
TR B & A & B 60 B 7O B X P AR 1 e AR
N EABUE A B E -

EaREEBRAR



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

The Executive Committee consists of Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus
Maria van Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Directors of the
Company, and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

The Board delegated the corporate governance function to the
Executive Committee to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendation to
the Board, review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, review and monitor the code of
conduct and Model Code applicable to the Directors or employees.

The Executive Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the New CG Code and made recommendations to the Board in the
Board Meetings held on 18 December 2012 and made disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report of the 2012 Annual Report.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director of the Company receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment to make sure that he has proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities in the Company.

During the year 2012, all Directors received regular updates and
presentation on changes and developments to the Group’s business and
on the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars for
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Since the effective date of the New CG Code,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional development
programmes by attending seminars, in-house briefing and reading
materials. The Company organized a training section conducted by a
professional firm in December 2012 on Amendments on Listing Rules
and Corporate Governance.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

Directors’ training is an ongoing process, all Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses and they are
requested to provide their respective training records to the Company
Secretary for record as follows:

Name of Directors

HITEREE (&)
ESRIREERE ()

EREIIRERERE  MAEEEHESR2
MAEREIEHIERTE - BRMARRXN - ARE
ARARMERHREESGHEIEENT

Attending seminars/In-house briefing/
Reading materials

EEME SNMHE RIEEREES R
Executive Directors BITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) FzE(EF) v
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen v
Gu Liyong BEE v
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion

(appointed on 17 January 2012) (R=ZE——F—ATtRAEZE) v
Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema

(resigned on 17 January 2012) (RZZE—=F—ATtRHET -
Independent BIYFHTES

Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu BeE /G A v
Li Xikui ESVES 4
Zhang Jingdong FHR v
AUDIT COMMITTEE BREEE
The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms AN &) 2 B8 48 B 45+ PO B 2
of reference in compliance with the Old CG Code as set out in Appendix ~ JASFRIN T — Tﬂi/\ﬂﬁki%ﬁég\ﬁ NI
14 to the Listing Rules. On 19 March 2012, the Board adopted a set 'ET E2EEESE - R-E——F=A+~N
of the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which has CEEEeEMN— gﬁljﬁgf SIEREE e
included changes in line with the New CG Code’s new requirements %EI BREERE S —FNA-BRE

effective from 1 April 2012. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and Company’s

website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Group and nominating and monitoring external
auditors. The Audit Committee consists of one Non-Executive Director
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Michael Charles
Lion, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui and is chaired
by Dr. Loke Yu. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee has convened three meetings during the financial

year ended 31 December 2012 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

Name of Committee members

%1‘2?5%( )
BEMEERECERTREBRAEE
E’Jﬁﬁ%#&t‘:&V&W*ﬁﬁf% B ARIES
RERINEZEAD c EXZESRIE—BIHE
HITEBER=BBIUIEHNTES - B Michael
Charles Lion f’ﬁi - BEgAREL ﬁ’»ﬂ(?ﬁi

REHERE - EENBLIREREZES
J& o ﬁ?hAtmiﬁﬁll%3 2UEMRE - BRERER
SEIRABEEERREFER

BHE-Z——-F+-A=1+—HLUKFE "
EZEgHEBFA-REGH  SKELED
™

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEHREHA HESSHE ETEEYE
Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu (Chairman) R (EE) 3/3
Li Xikui BN ES 3/3
Zhang lJingdong BANER 3/3
Non-Executive Director FPITES

Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed in the Committee
meetings the audited financial results for the year ended 31 December
2011, the unaudited interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2012, the engagement terms and remuneration of
auditors, the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company. On 18 December 2012, the Audit Committee has adopted a
whistleblowing policy of the Company and set out the procedures on
reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting matters of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Old CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. On 19 March 2012, the Board adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
which has included changes in line with the New CG Code’s new
requirements effective from 1 April 2012. The written terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's
website and Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages and
conditions of employment for the Directors and senior management
and evaluating and making recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Executive Directors, and
Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

The Remuneration Committee has convened four meetings during the

financial year ended 31 December 2012 with the attendance of each
member as follows:

Name of Committee members

HNEZES
ADFIE M ETRAIN S AR R
afmw—% TENARIHMERS

REmBRESEE - R-_T——F=At+h
EI CEEERM—RIKERIHME B 2 RiE
#E - EPEERE T —_FOA-AR4E
MHFT IR ST RIFT R E M — B &
HriNZ 8 & o) [ B 40 E OB S P A U I AR
”Aﬂ%ﬁiﬁ—ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ °

YHMEE SN T ERECEREETRARE
BABNFMES RERKEMESSRE
E** C LA RETE B TR R B Rt kiR

FHZEERERNTES IR ELER
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %4 A & 857 3F
BITERREAMNEL ﬁ%ﬁl%ﬁi&éﬁ%%%
B DRERERFMEZESE

(E_E-_F+_A=t+—RILIBFE "
FWZESHBROREE  SKEHEDN
™

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHE HESEYE ETEEYE
Executive Directors HITES

Fang Ankong (Chairman) FzzE(ER) a/4
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 4/4
Independent BUKHTES

Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu R Gk 4/4
Li Xikui FiH= 4/4
Zhang Jingdong EHR 4/4

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the remuneration of Mr.
Michael Charles Lion after his appointment as Non-Executive Director,
the bonus payment to the Directors and senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, the grant of share options
to the Directors, senior management and employees on 28 March 2012,
the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the renewal of service contracts
of senior management of the Company in 2012.

RERFE  FTHEESEIRAEREERS
HE#E Michael Charles Lion B EREEZ TR
ENITEBRNFH  MAKEESERSRE
BABYNEHE-Z—F+-_A=+—81t
FEEMEL  R—E——F=A-+/\BA%E
= SREEAEBREEFRDERE  AKH
EENEREBABEE T ——F+=A
=+ —ALFENTHEN T —_FEEAK
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Old CG Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. On 19 March 2012, the Board
appointed Mr. Fang Ankong as Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company and adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee, which has included changes in line with
the New CG Code's new requirements effective from 1 April 2012. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and Company’s website.

The duties of the Committee include:

1. to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

3. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors, having regard to the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited;

5.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

6.  to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms.
Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive Directors
and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee has convened 2 meetings during the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 with the attendance of each
member as follows:

Name of Committee members

REZEE (R)
REZBRRE-_F——F+-A=T—AL

MREE  £EARAMAEE  SKEHED
™

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHE SMERHE T BITEEHYE
Executive Directors HITES

Fang Ankong (Chairman) e (ER) 2/2
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 2/2
Independent BUKHTES

Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu e g 2/2
Li Xikui FiH= 2/2
Zhang Jingdong EHAR 212

Throughout the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed and
discussed the appointment of Mr. Michael Charles Lion as Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the composition, size and structure of the
Board of Directors, the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, the service contract and remuneration of Mr. Michael Charles
Lion.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee and the
Committee will review and make recommendation to the Board on the
expertise, skills and experience of the candidates appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

RERFE REZESERTERABRET
Michael Charles Lion fe4 AR RATIZEHITE
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010 to review
and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group’s physical stock
as well as the Group’s hedging positions requirements on a daily basis;
to enhance the risk management of commodity price fluctuations and
to ensure an effective risk monitoring system. The Pricing Committee
comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Xu lJialiang, Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, Mr.
Gan Jun, Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul and is
chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Pricing Committee
held regular meetings, to review and make recommendation where
applicable to the Directors on the Company’s pricing and hedging
policies.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policies and procedures are followed. The draft Minutes of all Board
Meetings and Committee Meetings were circulated to the Board and
Board Committees within a reasonable time. All signed Minutes and
Resolutions of all Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were
circulated to all the Directors and Committee Members for record.

The Company Secretary is not an employee of the Company. The
Company appointed Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Director, as primary
contact person with the Company Secretary of the Company.

The Company Secretary has attended relevant professional seminars to
update her skills and knowledge. She has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules and has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the financial year ended 31 December 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION
During the reporting period, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are as

il a
MNBEHA - RBZRGSEFEZRFE A
BN T12E) « BEMRS GETATHMESNT

follows:
HK$
BT
Type of services RBER
Audit fee for the Group AEFBEZER 2,300,000
Review of the Group's Interim Result EMAEEPEES 600,000
Review of Continuing Connected B REEERER S
Transactions of the Group 50,000
Total et 2,950,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate
accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board and the management. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 86 of this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating
an effective system of internal controls. The Company leverages
on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals to
develop its internal control system which includes a well-established
corporate structure and an organization with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. The Internal Control Department is to
provide independent assurance to the Board and executive management
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group.
The internal control system is reviewed and assessed on on-going basis
by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Internal Control Department adopts a risk-and-control based audit
approach. The annual work plan of Internal Control Department covers
major activities and processes of the Group’s business units. The audit
plan is reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
agreed schedule of work, Internal Control Department conducts other
review and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 19 March 2012, the Company has established and adopted
a Shareholders’ Communication Policy setting out the policies,
communication strategies and practices of the Company for
communication with its shareholders. Such Policy provides the
shareholders to be able to obtain comprehensive, similar and plain
information of the Company and also enable the shareholders to
exercise the powers on an informed basis and to strengthen their
communication with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and investors
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports);
annual General Meeting and other Meetings that may be held; and all
the information submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "SEHK") for disclosure, as well as corporate communications
and other publications which shall be posted on the website of the
Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about this policy, it shall be delivered to the Company
Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations Department.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. Contact of the Company Secretary is as follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: cosec@chiho-tiande.com

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
may convene general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) may require the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
("EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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ERHmE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings (continued)

2.

The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists.

Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the Requisition.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time and place and the
general nature of the proposed business to be transacted at the
EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled to attend the EGM
for consideration in the following manner:

(i) notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General

Meetings (continued)
The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice is
served or deemed to be served; and (i) the day on which the EGM
is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company,
the Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, shareholders
of the Company may propose a resolution at general meetings of the
Company by following the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
General Meetings” to convene an extraordinary general meeting
and propose a resolution to be resolved at that extraordinary general
meeting. Please refer to the document with section headed “Procedures
for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” on the Company's
website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company,
the Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a director of the Company (the “Director”) either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) may
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director at
general meeting in accordance with the following procedures:

(@)  a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting (the “AGM") and if
the notice of an AGM includes the election of Directors, any
Shareholder may propose the election of any person as a
Director at the AGM;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RE (H)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director (continued)
Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless:

(i)  a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven (7)
days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date appointed for such general meeting.

2. In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified in
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

(i)  full name;

(i) age;

(i) business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency of
the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with the
shareholders and investors through various channels such as interview,
presentation, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, we have during the year organized numerous site visits
to our facilities with several fund managers and equity market
analysts. Through the site visits, the visitors managed to have a better
understanding of the Group’s operations and the opportunity to know
more about the Group’s development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy in a Board
meeting held on 18 December 2012. The policy aims at encouraging
and enabling employees of the Group at all levels and others to report
violations or suspected violations and to raise serious concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters
of the Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R TE: S

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBE®RE ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about % MHITIZ 7 IAEEUE B4R & B IS R&R AT
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. & & ERFESENBZZEE - FMEENIEFT
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including — BURZEETR)HET - B IET G B ERGESEE
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 3R B E4R A BTSHREKFA B A SRR A E,
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those  [& o FEFFhZSREGE - B E EEBER
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the — ®IE B ATV H4GE B 7GR F AR NP ES1E -
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true AR EHEA NEISRHBZIZT © BWIESE
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in ~ $ZEE N IEEIEHM B RELRER - BRINE
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on  ¥EFHEEEMEASTERAAS B LTS
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes — FHEETAIA IR - A NRFHEBEZEA B HREANE
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the &%=k = -

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and B FI4EE - BRFEMESHEZEBREREE
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. MR FNERE RETER -

Opinion 2R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and TR 5 @ KREEMEREEDFENGEE
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, HMBHRXACEEQA TN SEFEFR_-Z
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance ——F+-A=+—B88KRAIk S£E
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly & Z#% B FFEEN M RRESRE - WEIKR
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong BB R GHEHI Z W TR T L EHR -

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g e BAER A RETHEIT
Certified Public Accountants B ETAD

Hong Kong B

21 March 2013 —E—=%=H=—+—H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meETHEWER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FA&T
Revenue Wz 7 8,202,702 9,815,522
Cost of sales SHER A 8 (8,031,286) (9,362,935)
Gross profit EF 171,416 452,587
Other income EAbUA 9 21,453 22,345
Other gains and losses Eithas & &5 18 10 272,760 2,051
Distribution and selling expenses AR SHE R X (33.456) (31,303)
Administrative expenses THFEX (155,294) (143,466)
Other expense HibhFx (32,156) -
Finance costs BTSN 11 (172,689) (97,755)
Profit before tax R A AT g A 12 72,034 204,459
Income tax expense s R 14 (32,683) (88,208)
Profit for the year F R A 39,351 116,251
Other comprehensive (expense) income HMZ2ME (Bx) KA
Exchange difference arising on translation &Rk 2R E#
to presentation currency EERER =5 (8,029) 51,433
Reclassification adjustment relating disposal 3t & Al &8 & (EH
of available-for-sale investment B HPATHE 429 -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale A ERE
investment N EEE (805) (6,653)
Cumulative impairment loss reclassified to ~ BAIEHEREMEH HIE
profit or loss on available-for-sale =7 RBRERE
investment 7,029 -
Total comprehensive income for the year FALHEPA BT 37,975 161,031
Profit for the year attributable to: T EFEEFRET
Owners of the Company PN/NCIEZZ DN 88,591 152,087
Non-controlling interests IR R (49,240) (35,836)
39,351 116,251
Total comprehensive (expense) income A& ARG
for the year attributable to: FRRE () WAL :
Owners of the Company RAEIER A 87,422 195,930
Non-controlling interests eI i A (49,447) (34,899)
37,975 161,031
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share BRAF]
- basic — &R 16 0.08 0.15
~ diluted — 458 16 0.08 0.15
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2012 R=—ZE——F+—-_HA=+—H

2012 2011
—E-CfF —T——%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FAET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 17 298,463 319,967
Prepaid lease payments TERHEE 18 346,547 185,968
Investment properties ‘A 19 30,808 =
Available-for-sale investment At HERE 20 15,470 19,060
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WM - MR
plant and equipment RBEFRE 2,063 22,070
Deferred tax assets R THE & 33 12,621 23,594
705,972 570,659
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 2,982,599 3,219,271
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E fth e RIA 22 786,074 813,397
Bills receivables KRR 23 7,054 33,676
Amount due from a substantial shareholder f&Us=E Z % R 08 38 23,636 -
Prepaid lease payments BRHEE 18 8,687 5,244
Investments at fair value through BATEFABRZRE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MMERAFETAEZE]) 24 24,677 =
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 25 55,438 37,021
Tax recoverable AR EFIE 9,484 44,330
Pledged bank deposits IR ITIER 26 105,765 127,004
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 26 44,656 71,158
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 26 447,937 392,762
4,496,007 4,743,863
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H fh TR IE 27 265,439 519,552
Amount due to a substantial shareholder — fEEERAKIA 38 42,917 =
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 25 21,520 39,765
Tax payable I FiIE 14,640 9,100
Bank borrowings RITIEE 28 1,949,673 2,651,697
2,294,189 3,220,114
Net current assets REBEERE 2,201,818 1,523,749
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBARS 2,907,790 2,094,408
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
HREMBERRE (E)

As at 31 December 2012 R—Z——F+_-_HA=+—H

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FH&T
Capital and reserves B2 R @
Share capital 1IN 29 10,435 10,419
Share premium and reserves A&7 (B R i 2,104,570 2,036,203
Equity attributable to owners of RAREER NE(EERS
the Company 2,115,005 2,046,622
Non-controlling interests PR i A 30 (41,463) 17,398
Total equity g 2,073,542 2,064,020
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Convertible bonds AR EH 31 708,547 =
Embedded derivative components of ARRESFRAR
convertible bonds PTHET RS 31 85,290 -
Warrants RIAERE 32 8,046 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEE & 33 32,365 30,388
834,248 30,388
2,907,790 2,094,408

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 211 were HEHMNE8BEZE211ENGZEMBMEIN_Z

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March —=F=A-_+—HEEFSHEREELR
2013 and are signed on its behalf by: - W RIESERERESE -
Mr. Fang Ankong Mr. Gu Liyong FREXE BEEEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR £ BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEx

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to holders of the Company

KAREEARE
Foreign Attributable
Capital Share Statutory  Enterprise  Investment  currency fonon-
Share  Share redemption option  Capital  general expansion  revaluation translation Accumulated controllng
apital  premum  reseve  reseve  reserve Teserve fund — resee  resene profis  Sub-fotel  interests Total
ErRE R ek GRER REER  MEEX Hilk

RE RiaE fif fit  BAGR G i i R 2t WG ERERG 5
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tkt fér TR Thr  TAr  TEr  TAr  TEn TRt  TAr TRt TRr  ThEn
(notel)  (notedl)  (noteil)
(heE) (ki) (Risk)

At 1 January 2011 NE-—%-F-A 10,000 578,540 - 2500 222760 67603 61613 - 7621 586478 1,611,801 34880 1,646,681
Profit for the year Epghl = - - - - - - - - 152087 152087 (3583%) 116,251

Bchangediference  HEREH
ansngon transationto ~ EEEEH

pesentaton cureny  EFEE - - - - - - - - N04% - 504% B 5148
Falr value loss on avallable- TAHEREATE

for-ale investment BB - - = = = = - (66%) - - (66%) - (66%)
Totdl comprehensiie ~ ERAE

income for the year WAEE = - - - - - - (6653) 5049 152,087 195930  (34.899) 161,031
Cash dividend paid BiiEke

(Note 15) (H15) - = = = - - - - - (38449 (88449) - (38449
Dividend recognised &s B AARARS

distributon (Notes 15 (At 1529

829 (note i) (Frstin) 1 1,190 - - - - - - - (1,192) - - -
Issbe of new shares Bk (a2

(Note 29 (note ) (Hiaki) 600 395400 - - - - - - - - 39,000 - 39,000
Transaction costs BRERS

atiibutabletoissie A

of new shares - (10513 - - - - - - - - (10583 - (10513
Acquiston of additional  BE-FIRBAZR

interestinasubsidary  EfiER

(Note 38 (note ) (A 38 (ReED) - = = = = - - - - 1 1 (4950 (4779
Capitd contribution from ~ AR &

non-contoling intrests ~ (¥&£30)

(Note 30) - - - - - - - - - - - 036 037
Share options erercked BRI

(Note 29 (note i) (A 20 (R 17 4,040 - 871) - - - - - 87 4,057 - 4057
Lapse of shareoptions B - - - () - - - - = 1) - - -
Recognition of equity-  ELREEER

setfled share-based IR AER (13

pmentsote3T) (1) - - T - - - - - T -
Shares repurchasedand ~ RABE Rt

cancelled (Note 29 (BsEa (Bt i)

(note v)) (2000 (83,740) 200 - - = = = = (2000 (83%0) - (8394)
Trnsferof reserves~ EifEEA - - - - - Im um - - (o456d) = = =
M30 December 2011 R=5——%

+ZR=+-H 10419 83491 00 278 12760 94905 94905 (6653) 126773 595624 2046622 17398 2,004,020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

REER2ER (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=F—=

F+=A=t+—HBILFE

Attributable to holders of the Company

KAERAEL
Foreign Attributable
Capital ~ Share Statutory Enterprise Investment  currency tonon-
Share  Share redemption  option  Capital  general expansion revaluation translationAccumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  reserve  reseve  profits  Sub-total  interests Total
E15E  BRE HE-h  CEBE  REER  HEER FER
B REEE it i EARE G i¢ it it ZahEd 0t REEL ot
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén TEn TR TER  TEn  TEn TR fEn TR TEn TR TEn TEn
(notei) ~ (noteil)  (noteii)
(W) Rt (W)
Profit for the year Emaf - - - - - - - - - 88591 88591 (49.240) 3931
Bchangediference  HERER
arsing on translationto ~ EEEA
presentation cureny  EEE - - - - - - - - (180) - (180 @on) (8009
Reclasifed to profitor loss EXABELENE
on disposal o avallable- ~ HEFBER
for-sle investment - - - - - - - Lvg - - 9 - 9
Fairvalue los on avaleble- 2K ERERTE
for-sales investment BB - - - - - - - (805) - - (805) - (805)
Cumulatie impaiment oss & B285(EH RE
redassfied toprofitor ~ EHERENERR
loss on impairment of
avaiablefor-sale
Investment - - - - - - - 7009 - - 1029 - 1009
Total comprehensiie ~ ERAT
income for the year WA aE - - - - - - - 6653 (7820 88591 874  (49M7) 31975
Cash dividend paid BliReRE
(Note 15) (H15) - - - - - - - - - (38612 (38612) - (38612)
Share options exercised {7 ERE
(Note 29 {note i) (20 (M) 36 11,920 - - - - - - - 9,735 - 9,735
Lapse of shareoptons B - - - B - - - - - - - -
Recognition of equity- ~ EFNRELER
setfled share-based~— DRGAER 21T
payments (Note 37) (kx37) - - - 10 - - - - - -1, - 10
Shares repurchasedand ~ RABE Rt
cancelled (Note 29 (29 F3Ew))
(note iv) ) (7.88) 0 - - - - - - (200 (7.865) - (7869
Deregistration of a iH-EERE
non-wholly subsidiary ~ WEAR
(note i (i) - - - - - - - - - - - 4 ()
Translerof reseries~ fGER - - - - - 128 16 - - (45n) - - -
At31 December 2012 H=5-2%
+ZA=1-A 10435 888,986 00 29987 222,760 102,167 102,166 - 118951 639333 115,005  (41,463) 2,073,542
Notes: B E

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal value (i) ﬁKﬁ%fﬁ?a(a)$ﬂ AIRZ 22)\@%@?@%%1&

of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the

Company'’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in IMEBRRE R °
2010.

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the appropriation (i) ARE R BEMEARNASZRZMAGRTE - ARIE
of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant accounting rules and rhEs AR SCEN ([ B ) Rt R A ROARETE
regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as required by the Articles of HEERTLR R 10% BATETE —RFBEROFHRE
Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if o MEE —MEBROEZRE SR ER BN
the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund has reached BAREMEARN50% « B4R ERHE -

50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group decided to deregister a 51% (i) RBE_Z——F+=A=*+— Elltir AEE
owned subsidiary. Immediately prior to deregistration, all assets (other than cash) were REFH—EEAS 1% B A SR
disposed of and liabilities of the subsidiary were settled. The cash of HK$19,212,000 Al - ZHB A R 8 ﬁﬁﬁé(iﬁﬁl‘??l\) EEE&E
was distributed to the equity owners in proportion to their equity interest. BEAE - 31$19,212,000 8 B 2= EE AH

B IR TR A A o

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2012 2011
g% —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit for the year EREF 39,351 116,251
Adjustments for: HTHBE 2 AE
Income tax FiEHiIE 32,683 88,208
Finance costs BRI 172,689 89,690
Interest income FIEHA (6,689) (16,701)
Dividend income from available- A{HEHERERSMA
for-sale investment (418) -
Depreciation of investment properties BREMENE 1,244 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRENE 69,254 24,250
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments e 3 7,995 909
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE « BEREENESR 2,139 126
Impairment loss recognised in respect of mE - BERBERRAESE
property, plant and equipment - 1,099
Recognition of impairment loss on trade B 5 REMEWHBERRERR
and other receivables 8,014 452
Share-based payment expense ARG BEENH 2 A 17,703 21,571
Reclassification of cumulative impairment loss on BENHRAREERE 2ERERE
available-for-sale investment 7,029 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investment HERHHEREER 429 =
Gain on fair value change of derivative ARREFTETANH 2
components of convertible bonds ATEEKE (57,481) -
Gain on fair value change of warrants RREELNTEZS N (5,372) =
Net foreign exchange gains B S e 558 (6,858) (79,081)
Write down of inventories FEMA 40,618 97,557
Operating cash flows before movements EERCFHA
in working capital MEERERE 322,330 344,331
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (Em) 196,576 (1,112,001)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 REMEUIER D (3 ) 19,441 (419,823)
Decrease (increase) in bills receivables EUREER D (5Em) 26,627 (19,673)
Increase in amount due from a substantial shareholder &Y= 2% & B A1 19,281 -
Increase in investments at FVTPL RATFEF A B=AREL N (24,585) -
(Increase) decrease in derivative financial instruments — $74£& B T & (240) 4 (36,811) 2,548
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EMENFIE (D) E (246,085) 329,718
Decrease in bills payables ERNZEERD - (142,766)
Decrease in amount due to non-controlling ERFERERTIERS - B E
interest — trading in nature - (23,976)
Cash from (used in) operations mEmE (AR 276,774 (1,041,642)
Interest paid ERAIE (131,865) (80,036)
Tax paid EfHE (24,158) (187,007)
Tax refunded ERERE 44,720 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES &= EEME (FiH) BREFHE 165,471 (1,308,685)

ESRiEEFRAE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HRERERER (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E-CF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BEREE (89,671) (132,725)
Deposit for property, plant and equipment 0% - BERRE2KRE (1,526) (14,808)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BE kREHEHE 9,913 491
Payment for prepaid lease payments SEEEEAEA (152,637) (153,148)
Placement of restricted bank deposits BAXBHIRITFR (568,209) (288,904)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits RIERAIFTER 594,723 217,746
Placement of pledged bank deposits BABERRIER (106,360) (382,943)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIMEERRTER 127,620 592,569
Purchases of available-for-sale investment BEAHREERE - (25,713)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investment & AT & K& M5B 2,785 -
Dividend received from available-for-sale investment — WeER A HERERRE 418 -
Interest received BIKFIE 6,689 16,701
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHFARSTE (176,255) (170,734)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised MEBRITEE 8,243,516 8,624,893
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETREE (8,946,129) (7,243,197)
Issue of convertible bonds and detachable warrants ~ E{TAIHARR &5 R AR EE 815,800 =
Issue of share capital BITRA - 396,000
Expense on issue of new shares BATHRG % - (10,513)
Repurchases of shares LRGN (7,865) (83,946)
Net proceeds from issue of shares through exercise  EBITFEBRERTRDFTSHEFE
of share options 9,735 4,057
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FERERTE - 22,367
Return of investment to non-controlling interests upon 75— FEIF B 2 78 @ FE2 AR 25
the deregistration of a subsidiary RERE (9,414) =
Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries BB AR B A RIS ME R - (4,779)
Dividend paid BERRE (38,612) (88,449)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBMERSTE 67,031 1,616,433
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE&RBELZEBEEFEEM 56,247 137,014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R-A—-HBRERELEEER 390,477 251,335
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES  /NEEZRSEMNTE (188) 2,128
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER W+=-A=+—-RBEERELZEER 446,536 390,477
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBLSEBEEE DN
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE 447,937 392,762
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) RITEX (i 28) (1,401) (2,285)
446,536 390,477

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMIEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL 1.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its main place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone
of Metal Recycling Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset; and

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

—RER

RAARREREHERENFEHS
MR Rt R E AR AR o A
ANEROR=_Z—ZFFLAT=ZARE
BEaRXSGMERAR ([BRAT]) £
M o ANRAa] 2 Mo EE R Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,Cayman
Islands fx B = 2 & 35 3 B 7 AR BT
HEEMNMmERREBTIHEAMNEBHEET

KRB EHREER AR - B ATH
FBEBHAWTAL2

ARARWYEERRARBKIAR
¥ BRARBERR LT > /IR
PRI - A BRI ABT (BT 2
5I) o

FE R #T AT RAMAER] B 78 B B 4R
HEA(THFETHREER ])

RAFE  AEBCERATHEES
AHEAE ([BREMAE ) BEMZE
BRI BB R ELER

Fr gt £ ERERIR ¢ I E
F12F(BRIA) HEEE: Rk
BRMBHRELEL SRTAE: KE-
FIRUETA) HERESREE -

RAFEERABZBBUBRELNZE
AHASERAFEMBEFEZMH
RARMRR K, RN ZEGEWBRE
P& MBS BBEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e MR ERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE =T ——F+=-_F=+—HILLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEAM:] RZETEBNBIR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS FER (BB RS ER )
("HKFRSs") (continued) (#&)
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised REBWARRFHATIIE EMHEBR
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: ER 2T REIET BB BHRE%E
Al
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB HRE LR —EEHhFRE
2009-2011 Cycle! (1B3TA) —T——FRH
ZEENE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial BB HREER FE-cREER
Assets and Financial Liabilities' £ 7% (BFIA) ERBELHE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of g e BB TSRS %R
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition FORRBBUBRE  FIRHREIL
Disclosures? ERIE 75 (BFTX) EHAHRBE
TR
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial BB RS R fRE MR
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint F105% - UK sﬂtﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
Arrangements and WEERZE N RR Bl ERR
Disclosure of Interests in Other BRI SRS £ BEES!
Entities: Transition Guidance! F12% (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities? BENBRELEAE 0%  REER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 BEEVBMELEE 125
RERGERE 275
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? ERUBRELNEIR SHMIES
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BERERELNE10S SAFKRK
Statements’
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements' BEMBRELENE NS SETH
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in ERUBRELNE 125 REMBEZER
Other Entities! B
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement! ERUHREENF 135 ATEHE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of BESHERE 15 Hith 2 E W8 B
Other Comprehensive Income* (1B3TA) i ERGE
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits' BAGERFE 195 EEREA
(RZZ——F&3])
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements! ERGERE 275 BEUBHRE
(RZZ——%3])
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and EBasHERIE 285 BEfAehE
Joint Ventures' (RZF——5B3]) ®E'
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and EEQERE 325 TRHEEREHE
Financial Liabilities? (1B7TR) fRETEE?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BF (BERIBRERE BAEZEESN
Phase of a Surface Mine' ZE€)-REF20%  HBEKX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments are
effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1 January
2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the amendments to HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory
otherwise. The directors do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments may have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The directors anticipate
that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group has
already adopted this treatment.

F& R #T 5] RASAER] B 7B B 5 3R
SRR ((FBMHREZER D)

(&)

! BRAR-Z—=F—A— B ARRIGNHF
EHAR -

? BAR-F—MF— A — BRIARFRIBNF
EHAR -

: BAR-Z—AF— A —B3ARRIEMHE
EHAR] ©

N BRAR-Z——FtA—BARRIGNHF
EHAR -

CERE-CHEAAEGZERMBRSE
HA-BBENFE_Z——FEHL
FEBGE

BEMBEHREEN —FFENFE_F
——FEHC FRMEBREZRER
MM EEANZIBIER] - ZFEFTN
—T-=F— A BRBNFEDRHRY
AEBER - BEPBREEAZAEFT
BRHEBBETEMNE6RYE - BE
RREZETTREBGHERE 3252
TR 2HZIEFT -

BRGHENF16R(BRIRN)RE - &
i RERERERTRE-ANTS
EEGFENF 16RATYE  BER
RENER  EIBER/YME  BER
B BRI BEARTE  EXEHE
R FEFT AT S HARE NG AR
BRRENEATE -

BRGREAE2FRUETA)VES - A
Bt T AR B AFED IREFTSBIA K
BHERZ SR ZRAEREEE G E
AIF12RAEHARR - AREEERER
RZERENR  EEEHZEHER
BEHERIE 2R Z BB TEHARE
ZIEAMBMERENTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities and amendments to
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such
as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for the Group annual
period beginning on 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual period. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual period
beginning on 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 will have no material impact on the
amounts reported but may result in more disclosures on derivative
instruments which are under master netting agreements as
reported in the consolidated statement of financial positions at 31
December 2012.

m Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follow:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
HKFRS 9 is effective for the Group for annual period beginning on
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will affect
the measurement and classification of the Group's available-for-
sale investment but may not affect the Group’s other financial
assets and financial liabilities.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to
the transitional guidance, are effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2013.

The directors anticipate that the application of these five
standards will not have a significant impact on amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for the Group annual period beginning
on 1 January 2013. The directors anticipate that the application
of the new standard is unlikely to affect derivative financial
instruments reported in the consolidated financial statements but
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of I[tems of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a 'statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a 'statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the amendments to HKAS
1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change
the option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

2.

V& RFTR] RASSE] & 8 M 5 3
HEA((HBMBEREED )
(%)
ERETENE 1R LMD ERANY
EEELICHES)
BERENB 1R (BTN A 2E
WAEE 82 H A2 ERHRRMEER
BIAFTEINGEE - RIBBBREHEAE
HOEHA)  2ERSKRERRBER
i 2ERSE - BEEIHENE 15
(ERTA) RER B2 ERAEE T &5
AWM () AT REHN A BE AR
BE ¢ RO)RH AT IR - HE&T
BN FERBNIER - Rt 2EKA
ER NS HAREREETUSE
CHES £ ¢ U Pl e
H A 2T UATE B MR 185 -

BEESHENFIR(EITR)R_-F
——F—- A BRANFEDRRE RS
BAN - BRMZERTAR - Hth2mE
WAEB®E25 A K& EHARE
2

EEEHEAEMI REETER
R BEARERE KM BRI
TEREATE -

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR

103




104
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Incomes and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group'’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-

controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the proportionate share of
net assets attributable to the non-controlling interests and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by the
applicable HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Annual Report 2012

3.

ERSETEER ()

EBa6t (&)

RUHE R - 2 BB R AT SRl & B R P

AEENARREENEERRNATE
R ETHIRB R :

s EEHBEEERBEBENEEER
Mz BBENEESAED BIR
BEBETEE 12RATEH R
BB G EAE 195 E S 577

RRGHE

o HWIWEH K URMG Xk
7R ER B AT S A B 1 U 77 A BR
NN RFEHENABERRET
ARKBEBREEEM B RS
BRNE2|UBG ZETE(RT
XEFHBR) &

s  REFBEUBWSENFSHAFE
HERIEREEER B IAEE
XEE D RFEEHENEE (i
EHE) RIBZEAGE -

PR EUARTER 2 RE - FFERERR
W ARG S ERKET AEREE
WUREE H R 2 AFE(nE) 285 -
SETURE 2 AT BB EE R FTAIE 2 BE
RULHE B 81 2 5 E% - FTB i 2 Z58ET
B - WEREMRGE - IEZ T H#RE
ERMEEEERKEAHZFHESR
wE Y R(E - EERE S A UEE 5
Ffr i 4 58 2 s B8 75 LA 13 35 75 40 Wt S 5 4
w2 NFE(INE) 2 &8 - BIZEE
RBENER A BRI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period" (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as finance
leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other than
properties under construction, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than properties under
construction, less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

3.

i}

ERSETEER ()

/

R ()
+  RPEEERPELZAAT
AFIHE -

EREMNEZA TG RANEE &K E
SREAIAF A SR - SREEZH
BWARERER - FBWAZRKEERE
AEERBERERFRARRELR
At BRAERANEREREBREERTA
ERFHAMG BRRESMALENTR
ERMEER VAR REFEZH
5 o

REZBRSWA » RERRWERRR S 2 #
FIRESL B RERR - MHEAR B FI) 23158 Al RE SR
REBEME KR E WL R e At ER T
TRHIER.

ME - BERRE

WE - BELRE(BRFEEENR
HE IR HAETHRA &R L3 ()
REBBEE) RET  ETEEERY
F)URARERRANERRFIRE
BER (B RiEa MBI R HIER -

FEDERME  BELRHBER (B
WMERIN) WA A ERFHAERE
MEHAR AR E RIBREE - At AT E A F
- RpEERFEEINSHBERRR
A MEAEFESNFEREHREE
N

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR

109




110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

When an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment is transferred to investment property at the
date of change in use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and carrying an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the event
that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments" in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE =T ——F + A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2012

3.

ERSETEER ()

BiIE (&)
BERBIZGAMBHRRABEERAE
AR (B R 5t 5 R AR A it ) B BR R RO AR R
ME 2 R E R Z MR - A BRN
TRHEZH - RERRECHRRE - ¥
A B2 H 30 ER A i A R R VR 4 8 T AR
TREE - AMAAMREREZR R
ERRBERBEE - &AL HER—
BR 5 (EBEHEIN CEMEERR
EmMELY &Y EERY G XS
MHERERE AT ERAZTEESR
BfE-

EERTEE EZRNHB R BREREE
FERRE R = TR - AEBAES]
BETE AR AN R RETS
BEABERAIRIN - A SRERER
MRERERAELNECHBEEEER
A] BB EE AE R S AR A vk 1) R PR (4K 88 Al
B) FA 87 By 2 A M 25 30 78 HA1E ] B R
Bl RERR ©

RERERARDERTELCHAEEN
FREE - LHRETAEBEA T HER
g M T el 2 B AN BEERL ©

BEEHBREERABRREEABRER
BEHBNHAMEARE(RESHRS
HRECERIERCDEBZHE (RB
) ETE -

BERBREREE <t ERRIZRA
S EPTEEIT AR & s BR = 208
BEREEMABREBEIHBER - B
HAMRFE AR R a5 T RERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost
necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gain or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two sub-categories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments

that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the other gains and losses
line item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 4.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, amount due to a
substantial shareholder, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss of
financial assets below).
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL or
loans and receivables.

Equity securities traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

Financial assets such as trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit periods,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit and
loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the interest
expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The Group's financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are derivatives
that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a substantial shareholder and bank borrowings
and overdrafts) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both debt
and derivative option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Derivative that will be
settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option derivative. At the date
of issue, both the debt and derivative option components are
recognised at fair value.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible bonds and warrants (continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivatives together with other embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative components are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included in
the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Warrants

Warrants that will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as derivatives
and are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments include commodity
futures, provisional pricing arrangements and foreign currency
forwards contracts.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item at a future date that
can be settled net in cash are accounted for as derivatives unless
they were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of
the receipt of the non-finance item in accordance with the entity’s
expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
thus they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or
financial liabilities held-for-trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and directors

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). The
Group estimates the fair value of share options using a Binominal
Option Pricing Model. This model requires inputs such as share
price, exercise price, risk-free rate, expected option period,
expected volatility, dividend yield and option type. Service and
non-market base performance conditions are taken in account
when estimating the fair value at measurement date.

Instead, service and non-market base performance conditions are
taken in consideration to determine the number of share options
that are expected to ultimately vest.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured at the
fair values of the services received, unless that fair value cannot
be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair values of the services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the counterparties render services, unless the
services qualify for recognition as assets.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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4.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Write down on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on
a category-by-category basis at the end of reporting period,
and assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable commodity
exchanges. If the market price of inventories are to decline,
additional write down may be required. The Group’s inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of
reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories is disclosed
in Note 21.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
When there is indication that an item of the property, plant
and equipment has suffered an impairment loss, management
of the Group takes into consideration of the estimation of its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount calculation requires
the Company to estimate higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use expected to arise from the property, plant and
equipment and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 17.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are depreciated on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account their estimated
residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. If the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge in the year in which such estimate
is changed.

Fair value of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants

As described in Notes 31 and 32, the directors of the Company
use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair values of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants are determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model adjusted for specific terms and conditions
of the respective instrument. Major inputs into the model include
quoted market prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.
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5.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed in Note 28
and Note 31, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising capital,
various reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchases as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2012.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a. Categories of financial instruments
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6a. SEMTEANES

2012 2011
—B-=fF 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Investments at FVTPL BAFEFABRZIEE 24,677 =
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 55,438 37,021
Loans and receivables (including ER R BN FIE (BE
cash and cash equivalents) RekFeFMEER) 837,874 935,298
Available-for-sale investments RIELERE 15,470 19,060
Financial liabilities cRaE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMT A 21,520 39,765
Embedded derivative components  A[ IR EH# AR STE
of convertible bonds TAFS 85,290 -
Warrants RAAETE 8,046 -
Amortised cost B A 2,916,427 3,131,250
BEXhEBERAT T —FFH
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bills receivables, investments at FVTPL,
derivative financial assets, pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from
(to) a substantial shareholder, available-for-sale investment,
trade and other payables, derivative financial liabilities, bank
borrowings and overdrafts, convertible bonds, embedded
derivative components of convertible bonds and warrants.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, available-for-
sale investment, trade and other payables, and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group to market risk
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors its foreign currency risk exposure and
considers any foreign currency forward contracts

should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITA(E)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for trade payables which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"”). The
derivatives were not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group was required to estimate the
fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts at
the end of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are as follows:

6b. SRIEMEEBRERBEK (H)

™5 mk ()

(0

E¥mE (&)

BEAN - AR B — R ERTT AT
Y ZEHINESH) - DARE
EERMRET (%)) XA
F& A5 B8 55 iR K 7T 0 e 0 55 6
RENER o FTET ARRY
HEFIAYIAR - AEREAR
BEHRGTERAINES LD
ZAFE ALERAKE
R M E R o

rEBEEEEERBEZER
HEDREAEEEE 2
BEEB AN Z AT E
A :

2012 2011
—E-—CF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Monetary assets EWEE
HK$ BIT 5,935 4,850
RMB AR 3,770 183,193
usbD =TT 16,030 93,660
Euro ("EUR") B ([BTl) 221,714 1,205
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
HK$ BT 4,420 8,451
usbD ETT 1,669,891 1,924,896
EUR BT 14,950 60,405
Net monetary assets EWEE(BE) 38
(liabilities)
HK$ BIT 1,515 (3,601)
RMB AR HE 3,770 183,193
usbD ETT (1,653,861) (1,831,236)
EUR BT 206,764 (59,200)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITA(E)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

6b. RIEMEEBEREEK (H)

Market risk (continued) miZ A (&)
() Currency risk (continued) () EEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis HREE ST

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies
of HK$, RMB, USD and EUR when such currencies are
different from the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
because it represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. On
this basis, if the foreign currencies strengthen/weaken
against the functional currency of the relevant
group entities by 5%, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year would increase/decrease by the following
magnitude, and vice versa:

AEBETZRBT AR
¥ - XL RBUTA RS
B & FE R0 T BE B W i [ 8 %
SEHONER -

RAIANBRERERAEZ
RN [ ez B 155 FR 5% HY B
RELLE  DRZEEREK
IR B AT (A E R AT AL H IR
RO BN EL R o EA L - fis b
KRS BB 2 DR
EBTFE/EZESY  A5E
F B B 12 0% F1) A% 38 00 /08
DHEET - RZIR

2012 2011
—E-=F —=——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Increase (decrease) in profit: ARG CRL )
Monetary assets and liabilities H¥EER&E
HKS$ strengthening against RMB 87T H AREFHE 63 (150)
USD strengthening against RMB ETLAAREHE (62,656) (71,005)
EUR strengthening against BT H AR
RMB/USD /ETAHE 8,335 (2,472)
RMB strengthening against USD AR X FETHE 157 7,648
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITE (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. TEEREERFEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) miZ A (&)
() Currency risk (continued) () EmEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BB DI ()
The sensitivity analysis below had been determined AT SR E DT T EREAR
based on the exposure to the Group’s forward buying EERREHRTER 2R
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. If the HE ABERRRRETE o WX
forward exchange rate of EUR strengthens/weakens T H, 55 7T 3R A PE S AHE /2
5% against USD while all other input variables of the B5% @ MEEEXNZE
valuation models were held constant, the Group's Hihsm ASESHFTE - 8l
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease N £ B4 s A A 38 /R
by the following magnitude: DEIBELATS
2012 2011
—B-=F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Increase/decrease in profit b b=y 1A 2,646 -
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EERERG - ARFRER
not necessarily representative of the inherent foreign OERIME A E g - AEZE
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not R JE DA A AR [E B IMNE
reflect the exposure during the year. [E Bz o
Other than HK$, RMB, USD and EUR, the Group BAET - AR% - XITRE
does not have any other major exposure to foreign TCHN + ZNER [ I 4 T T ELAR
currency risk. F ESNE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ =%

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of London
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s USD
denominated borrowings.

The Group considers the variable-rate bank balances
are within short maturity period, and the fluctuation
in interest rate and the cash flow interest rate risk
arising from the bank balances are insignificant.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, bank
borrowings and overdrafts and convertible bonds.
It is the Group’s policy to maintain a majority of
borrowings at fixed rate of interest so as to reduce the
cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate
hedging contracts. Management monitors the
Group's related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

“E+-A=THALFE

6.

TRIA (&)
6b. £RIEAREREBFERBE (&)

™5 mk ()
(i) FIEm@E
REERBITERLF SR

RGOV IRV E S 4D
MEHIRSREF KR
$%@E"ﬁﬁ$muﬂ$ﬂ %
EEPREREBIAE T
ERNE RS B R BRTE
I BHIKE o

REBRBRZEERTINE
,HﬂﬁqﬁlJ,Hﬂ - AR B R A
RITHERERNIRE R E
Jee\ e B8 - EL B o

REESAFENERRE
BLTE BEEMRITFER
RITEE LB R HBRRE
FHER - NEEBBER S
ABAEERTRERE
= /ﬁfﬁiﬁuimu;ﬂ};ﬂ‘

i
N

$%@iﬁﬂi&ﬂﬂ$“‘ﬁ
e  BEEESTIRE
ARE @*H%@ﬂrﬂ[ﬁ“ﬂlﬁf‘b
RRZEHBERNN XA

when the need arises. i o
Sensitivity analysis B DT
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REREBRR - ZEEF X
liabilities which carried variable interest rates at the EMASEERARKREE
end of the reporting period are as follows: m
2012 2011
S %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Liabilities afs 245,160 582,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. TEEMREERFERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) ThiZ A (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIEmEE (E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BT ()
The sensitivity analysis below was determined based TONBRE DT HER R E
on the exposure to risk of interest rate changes for HRZERITEENF X
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the R TE - BRFTS SRR
reporting period and management considered that TR WEBERFTEIR
such exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was 717 R A 2= 2 B [ B NI
minimal as the amount involved was not significant. Koo
A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used when LA 100 & 2 2hH 7  A 1T 45
reporting interest risk internally to key management MABEZERAEZ2HF
personnel because it represented management’s EEf - REREAEEE
assessment of the possible change in interest rate. R AR B AT o
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/ i 1) 2= 38 B0,k 2> 100 fiE E
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Zhim T b B ECRE - B
Group's post-tax profit for the year would decrease/ 7 5% B 4 A BR B 12 08 AR
increase by the following magnitude: L ENERERT
2012 2011
S —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Decrease/increase in profit — FIm /140 9,194 4,378
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Equity, debt and commodity price risks

At 31 December 2012, the Group was exposed to
equity, debt and commodity price risks through its
available-for-sale investment, investments at FVTPL,
aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future
contracts and its provisional pricing arrangements
embedded in sales contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based on
the exposure to commodity price risk of aluminium,
copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts and the
provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales
contract of copper scrap at the end of the reporting
period. If the commodity price risk of aluminium,
copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts and
the of quoted copper future price for the valuation
of provisional pricing arrangements had been 5%

6.

TRIA (&)
6b. £RIEAREREBFERBE (&)

™5 mk ()

(ifi)

FRHE - (EIE R (BT R
W—E——&F+=—f=+—
B AEEERAIHEER
E - BAFEFABRZE
E R HEAOR
B2 R E (B 2 BE 1 2T AR
B KR ERRERR

THGRBRED M TIERE R
SHREAIAF MG A4
AR EE LT EH A
anBAR B T E o fin a3 5
MEMEAANEmER
Kt B b5 E B R B E
BOMBEBERLEA T
F&5% @ BIARLEEF AR
1& )8 M = H fth 2 1 40 A3

higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit or other mn RO EEERT
comprehensive income for the year would increase/
decrease by the following magnitude:
2012 2011
—E—_F —F—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Increase/decrease in profit St A 0, SR 89,893 43,690

The sensitivity analysis above excluded the price risks
on available-for-sale investments and investments at
FVTPL, the management considers the price sensitivity
on available-for-sale investment and investments at
FVTPL are not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e MR ERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITA(E)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Equity price risk on the Company’s shares

At 31 December 2012, the Group was also exposed to
equity price risk as a result of the fair value change on
the embedded derivative components of convertible
bonds and the warrants the Company had issued as
set out in Notes 31 and 32.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s shares’ equity
price risk of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants. If the share price
of the Company inputted to the valuation model for
assessing the fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and warrants had
been 10% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
would be changed by the following magnitude:

6b. SRIEMEEBRERBEK (H)

Company’s share price

™5 mk ()

AR a2 REEE R
RZE——F+=—RA=+—
H AEBITREARQFD
TR RRES 2 BRARDT
ST EFH RBBREZF 2 A
S EEZB) (a0IFE31 K32 AT
&) MR EERER

SRR D HT

TR ERE AT ToAR BR AT 2
BfEH 2 RARSTET A
D RRBEEMTER AR
AREERRKRMEE it
PR R ES 2 A
AOTETEIBH K RIREF
AAFEMmEAZGHER
2 ARRA R PRE ER/ T B
10% -+ mATA H i 2R
& BIARRFABRTEZ
A2 IRENT

Company's share price

10% higher 10% lower

FARRELIE10% AARBRETE10%
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —F—% ZB-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FET FAET
(Decrease) increase & (E4) N/A N/A
in profit s (25,673) A 22,825 @A

In - management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses
are not necessarily representative of the inherent
market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value
valuation of the embedded derivative components
of convertible bonds and warrants involves multiple
variable where certain variables are interdependent.

ESRiEEFRAE

BEEERR  BRENR
BREBEAM SRR - B
ARBESZRARITET
A BP0 kB EE 2 A FE
HEPAERZEBER -
BREEBE - MERET
BHBORTE -

—m-—EEg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 31% and 73% (2011: 26% and 70%) of its
total trade receivables was due from its largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The five largest
customers have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

The Group also exposes to concentration of credit risk on
arising on the amount due from a substantial shareholder
of HK$23,636,000 (2011: Nil) as at 31 December 2012, and
deposits with several banks and commodities future brokers
with high credit ratings. The substantial shareholder has
good repayment history and credit quality with reference to
the track records under internal assessment by the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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TR T H (&)

6b.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITEA(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEIEMEEHZRBEKR (&)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The table was
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative liabilities that settle on a net basis,
and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that required gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial liabilities
were prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considered that the contractual maturities
were essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

ESRiEEFRAE

RBEERER
AEENERARF[H/ERE
BRERRITEE ZRNFE -

TRANAEEIFTESRAR
RSB ENFH - JIRBRAE
B AN e & B I
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BRERENITEAERMAFER
HE RARBREENITTERE
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Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. IR (&)

Annual Report 2012

6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEIEMEEHZRBEKR (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE LR (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB & RFEE R F1E
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average  less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate ~ 1month ~ months  to 1year years cash flows period
nE  KERE =fAZE AERRS NEEERZ
ToRE HR-fA -E=fA -&  -EEf RESE BEAE
%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TR TER TR Tén TEn TEn
At 31 December 2012 ZB-ZECAZt-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 $B1&
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE - 2529 - - - 2520 21529
Amount due to a ERTERRE
substantial shareholder - 2917 - - - 42,917 42917
Bank borrowings and overdrafts  FIEERER
- fixed rate -E8& 3.67 808,746 546,687 361,250 - 1,716,683 1,704,513
- Variable rate —#8. 345 695 1390 248,346 - 250431 245,160
Convertible bonds kES
- fixed rate ) 4.00 - 16,316 16,316 864,748 897,380 708,547
1,067,648 564,393 625,912 864,748 3,122,701 2,916,427
Derivatives - net settlement fiEIA-FEEE
Aluminium, copper, zing and AFRBRERY
steel rebar future contracts 6,676 13,331 - - 20,007 20,007
Provisional pricing arrangements  EBEEERH - - - 1433 - 1433 1433
Derivatives - gross settlement 1A TA-AHLE 6,676 13331 1433 - 2440 21,440
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SMS&E&4
- inflow =it - - (73,652) - - (73,652)  (73,652)
- outflow —i - - 13732 - - 73,732 73,732
- 80 - - 80 80
Derivative financial liabilities 175288 6,676 13411 1,433 - 21,520 21,520




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =R ITA (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. ©HEREEEERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REES R (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) BB % KT EE X1 (&)
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total end of the
average less than 13 3months  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year cash flows period
g Bk =ER  AEBAE  RREERY

TEnE  SR-BR  -Z=fA E-F REAR FASE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

At 31 December 2011 Z2--F+ZB=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities %474 £B& %
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNTE = 479,553 = - 479,553 479,553
Bank borrowings RiTieE
- fixed rate -E8 461 652,051 800,017 645,955 2,098,023 2,069,327
- variable rate -8 5.29 570,082 13,639 - 583,721 582,370

1,701,686 813,656 645,955 3161297 3,131,250

Derivatives - net settlement ~ fT4£IR-£EFE
Aluminium, copper and zinc EFHEAN

future contracts - 17,350 17,346 - 34,696 34,696
Provisional pricing arrangements BB TEER - - - 5,069 5,069 5,069
17,350 17,346 5,069 39,765 39,765
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 1 month"
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2012, the aggregate carrying amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$629,252,000 (2011:
HK$918,461,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within one
to two years (2011: within three years) after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and the facility letters. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
of HK$436,961,000 and HK$193,798,000 will be repaid
within one year and one to two years respectively (2011:
HK$748,931,000 and HK$209,372,000 within one year and
one to three years respectively).

The amounts included above for the variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in actual
interest rates differ to those estimated at the end of the
reporting period.

Annual Report 2012

6.

TR T H (&)

6b.

TEEREERERBEEE)

REBESRER (&)
BIREREEZRITEEGFAL
MEEAR DT 2 [HRERKK AR —
BAIKEASEARN - R —=
F+-_A=+—8 " %ZFR7E
B 7 IR B #8 %8 3£ 629,252,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Group were determined as follows:

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments
(excluding provisional pricing arrangements) and
available-for-sale investments traded on active
markets were determined with reference to quoted
market prices and exchange rates;

o the fair value of the provisional pricing arrangements
are measured using quoted market price of
commodity future contracts with approximate prompt
date; and

J the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) were
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

o the fair value of investments at FVTPL were
determined with reference to inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the investment
indirectly; and

o the fair value of embedded derivative components
of convertible bonds and warrants were determined
using Binomial Option Pricing Models where the main
assumptions are included in Notes 31 and 32.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

6. TRIA (&)

6c¢.

AT
AEEERAERSBMARL A
FEETHHREE

e NERRBTSXZHNITE
TR TA (T BERREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6c. Fair value (continued) 6c. FE(E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBEMRRRERN D FE
consolidated statement of financial position ATE
The following table provided an analysis of financial TRHEH GRERBIZQFE
instruments that were measured subsequent to initial EMERIAEZH RAFE
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based HABREEDR—E=MHK -

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements were those derived . —RATEFEEZFAEE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for EXEERERMSENRE
identical assets or liabilities. CRECHE) = -

. Level 2 fair value measurements were those derived . ZRATFEAEEREES
from inputs other than quoted prices included within BENERE (BAMER) skE5
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, (BMZERTER) A BRE2
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived (— Gt 2FTARERKRIN)
from prices). AR e

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived . F=WATFEFETIREMSE
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the BRZEGELH  HhaEHE
liability that are not based on observable market data. B s TNrl R A R M5

EUREG 2 A E R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITE(E)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AYE(H)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBEMRRRERN D FE
consolidated statement of financial position =TE (1)
(continued)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—& st 1} = @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FER FEx
As at 31 December 2012 R-B--F
t=A=t-H
Available-for-sale financial ~ AHESHEE
assets
Listed equity securities EmRAES 15,470 - - 15,470
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABE
NEemEE
Investments at FVTPL BATEF A ER
A - 24,677 - 24,677
Derivative financial assets TEEREE 50,761 4,677 - 55,438
Financial liabilities at FVTPL A Y@ ABH
HemasE
Derivative financial liabilities fTESmAR 20,087 1,433 - 21,520
Derivative components of AR EFHRALR
convertible bonds TTHET AR - - 85,290 85,290
Warrants RIRIEE - - 8,046 8,046
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——%
t=A=1-H
Available-for-sale financial ~ AtEELREE
assets
Listed equity securities LR AES 19,060 - - 19,060
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABE
NEREE
Derivative financial asset TEeREE 37,021 - - 37,021
Financial liabilities at FVTPL A V@ A B
HemaE
Derivative financial liability TESRMAE 34,696 5,069 - 39,765
There were no transfers between the three levels during BE-Z——F=ZT—=F

T-A=+T—BHLEFE =@
Rz RN EETS -

either of the years ended 31 December 2011 or 2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6¢c. Fair value (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities

TRT A (&)

6c. AT (M)
SHEBEIE-RATEIES
iR

Derivative
components of
convertible bonds Warrants
ARRES ZHTE
IAEDH RIRER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FExT
At 1 January 2011 and RZZE——F—A—HE
31 December 2011 —T——%+=-A=1+—H = =
Issue of convertible bonds BITAI R ES 142,771 13,418
Gain recognised in profit or loss PR R R Y W e (57,481) (5,372)
At 31 December 2012 R—E——F+_-_A=+—H 85,290 8,046
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WmERKkopEER

The Group's revenue represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year.

Operating and reportable segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The executive directors of the Company are
identified as the CODM and they regularly review the internal
report on gross profit derived from different business activities and
different products to assess performance and allocate resources of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves
trading of other metal scrap without processing. The operating
and reportable segments are identified based on major products
under three categories of business activities:

(i)  metal recycling business (including sales of copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal

scrap);

(i) foundry business (including sales of aluminium-alloy ingots
and copper rod and wire); and

(i) wholesales business.

7.

Wz ko AR E R (&)

AEETERESBBERE - HRK
RERE DB D U0 BB 8 - REEE - BE
ta BENEMESE  THESRE
EREERTE  URIARRIARENE
EEBESREEEMANTESBS
MR EET - RERA 2D BPIRER
EmdDR=BX%KLE :

() SBBEXRG(BREIEEENR - E
- REER - RN EMESE)

(i)  SWEFB (BIEHERE MR
RiRmg) - &

(i) HEEEETS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenues and segment results

by operating and reportable segment is as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

7.

s & 2 2R E R (4R)

2 U R D B R
ATREREBRALBS BB IEES
BPM 3k B S BB EMEATHEZ DT -

BE-_ZT——H+-A=1+—HLEFE

Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business ~ business
SRALEH BEER HEEH
Other
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal alloy Copperrod  without
scrap scrap scrap scrap scrap ingots  and wire processing ~Elimination Total
Hf HER  HfANI
B ] B8 4] ESR i3 il ESR H4 3t
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TEm TR TERL TBr TR TER TR TR
REVENUE g
External sales e 4982451 1295304 249,440 266,777 80209 305697 227651 795173 - 8,202,702
Inter-segment sales AHEHE 202,604 2659 215576 B 10,730 14,334 - 4,038,016 (4567,875) -
Total segment revenue HEmEE 5,185,055  13218% 525016 266,800 90939 320031 227651 4833189 (4567875 8,202,702
Segment profit APEH 71,061 (12,899) 11,660 3,987 (2,682 5314 2,030 100,137 (119 1M46
Other income AfplA 1453
Other gains and losses Al REE 272,760
Distrbution and seling expenses ~ AHEHER (33,456)
Administrative expenses R (155,294)
Other expense 05 (32,156)
Finance costs BB (172,689)
Profit before tax WA 72,034
Income tax expense FERRS (32,683)
Profitfor the year Eg] 39,351
Inventory allowance included BERA DR
in segment profit REGEAE  (18946)  (13.418) (690) ® @) - (7,514) - - (40618)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WaEKoEER (&)
(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEbE R o EREAE (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BHE_T——&F+-_A=1+—HLEFE
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business business
SRALER BERH HEEH
Other
Other  Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal aloy  Copperrod  without
SCrap Srap Srap Srap Srap ingots ~ andwire ~processing  Elimination Total
A WER  EfANT
& 3] 3] B BeR i @ E4E H# &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tk Tk TR Thn  TRr  TEr  TEr TR TErx Thn
REVENUE g
External sales e 5711958 1882559 250272 346,142 67421 312468 716803 52589 - 9815522
Inter-segment sales AHEEE 15,613 51,200 194,59 = 134 8,005 - 4477634 (4747,238) -
Total segment revenue AHUEEE SIS 1933819 446864 346,142 6755 320473 716803 5003533 (4747,238) 9,815,522
Seqment profit AEH 190,470 24,740 15,716 13,631 (2,29 12,945 649712 196,123 (63712) 452,587
Other income EA 2,345
Other gains and losses AfphakER 2,051
Distrbution and seling expenses ~ AHEHERE (31303
Administrative expenses R (143,466)
Finance costs BiAR (97.755)
Profit before tax I tAaA 204459
Income tax expense FERRAY (88,208)
Profitfor the year R 116,251
Inventory allowance included BERATEA
in segment profit MEEEER (46,731)  (27,689) (1,387) (527) (3,066) - (18159) - - (9755)
BaXitEEERAT —T—_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ =%

7.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results
(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment profit represents the gross profit resulted in each
segment without allocation of other income, other gains and
losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other expense, finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the executive directors of the Company for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the
Group are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets
and segment liabilities are presented.

Geographical information

Approximately 90.3% of external revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 95.0%) are attributable
to customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of
the Group’s major operating entities. The remaining revenue is
immaterial for separate disclosure of its geographical information.
Majority of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

No individual customer contributed to more than 10% of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

8. COST OF SALES 8. SHEAK
Included in cost of sales are the following inventory allowance: SHEKABEU T FERE !
2012 2011
—B——f —z——f
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Inventory allowance GFERE 40,618 97,557
Management assesses whether the carrying value of inventories EEERMEARTEEFEREAES
exceed their net realisable value at the end of the reporting period. RHATENERFE - BEELE
Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories RBEMREETSHNESCBEEER
with reference to the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant HARGRIMeBREGTFE
markets and the quoted prices of metal on applicable commodity AR FE R_T—=—F+=A
exchanges at the end of reporting period. As at 31 December =+—H BREamERAEETF
2012, because the market prices of the commodities were lower ENSERBEEAR  ALBREE
than the respective purchase prices of certain inventories held, B H#40,618,0008 L (=T ——4F :
an inventory allowance of approximately HK$40,618,000 (2011: 97,557,000/ 7C) °

HK$97,557,000) was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfA
2012 2011
—B--F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T
Interest income FIEWA 6,689 16,701
Gross rental income from REMERS WA B
investment properties 1,329 -
Less: direct operating expenses W EBREERY (106) =
Net rental income from REMERS WA FE
investment properties 1,223 -
Rental income for a temporary lease T timEe A - 1,125
Government subsidies (note) BT B (B =) 9,734 3,471
Transportation and scale income B R 1,647 -
Dividend income from available- A HERERBIKA
for-sale investment 418 -
Others Hit 1,742 1,048
21,453 22,345
note: The Group received unconditional government subsidies from a local municipal s A MR ASRBAEEERERELE LT
government as an encouragement for the development and advancement of BT AEEOEGHEBITHE - ERRBUT
business. No other contingencies attach to the government subsidies that have R B M ANE SR E M -

been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hiblam R EE
2012 2011
—B-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of: NHEZNE (BE)
— derivative financial instruments (note) —fTESRT A (K 214,977 (78,892)
— investments at FVTPL —BRATEFABRZEE 1 =
— derivative components of convertible —ARREFITETASS
bonds (Note 31) (BE31) 57,481 -
— warrants (Note 32) — AR (M 32) 5,372 -
Net foreign exchange gains T 5 e F 5 6,858 79,081
Recognition of impairment loss on B 5 REMEYGRIE R E R B TER
trade and other receivables (8,014) (452)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHHEREEE
investment (429) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE - BE RS EEE
and equipment (2,139) (126)
Impairment loss recognised on property, Mm% - BERFECERNRESE
plant and equipment - (1,099)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AftHERERERR
investment (7,029) -
Net compensation received from WER Bt e P B R
suppliers 5,672 3,539
272,760 2,051
note: The amounts arose from aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future Mzt : ZEFeBEDRERNFRGHESH  ZF5H
contracts, provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales contracts and EAHNENEREETHRIMNERIIEL
foreign currency forward contracts. AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

11.

12.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCE COSTS 1. BARERRZR
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
Interest on: ATEIEHFE
— bank borrowings wholly —ARAFENEE
repayable within five years HIRITIEE 106,743 97,755
— bank overdraft —RITIEX 694 =
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2 B AER X
convertible bonds 65,252 -
172,689 97,755
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 12. BR¥EADEF
2012 2011
—E-=f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
Profit before tax has been arrived BRBtAnEA - 2 ek
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments =M 6,759 14,625
Other staff costs Hith 8 TH A 209,716 205,789
Retirement benefit scheme RIRBHIE B HER -
contributions, excluding those TEREEEL
of directors RNERIF B 2,723 3,009
Share-based payments, excluding ARG RERAMNR - T
those of directors BEURMAERNH 15,787 11,378
Total staff costs STHALE 234,985 234,801
Cost of inventories recognised AR N FERA
as an expense 8,031,286 9,362,935
Depreciation of investment properties REMEHE 1,244 =
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BELREENE
and equipment 69,254 24,250
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BRHSHHE 7,995 909
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHEE 78,493 25,159
Auditor’s remuneration ZERME 2,300 2,650
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13. EE - FE2TBAERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS B
Directors 5=
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of AREEBRFALZNARRRESHIEE
the Company for the year are as follows: BAR
Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit
and bonus scheme Share-based
Fees allowances (note i) contributions  payment Total
HeR RATA BIRER RRGA
e 25 (HizEi) FHEfR EROAR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR FHT TERL FET
Year ended 31 December 2012: #z_T-—-F1+-A
ST-HIEFE:
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang") hRERE (54D 24 1,176 500 8 556 2,264
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van
Qoijen %4 24 1,056 300 - 159 1,539
Mr. Gu Liyong BEBERE 24 936 300 8 659 1,927
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema (note ii) Ralph Sytze Ybema 5t &
(i) 6 3 - - 101 138
Mr. Li Xikui FHEEA 150 - - - 147 297
Dr. Loke Yu FEaEL 150 - - - 147 297
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHRTL 150 - - - 147 297
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (note i) Michael Charles Lion
54 (Bistin) - - - - - -
528 3,199 1,100 16 1,916 6,759
EAFHEBERAT —T-—F5% [NEE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. EF - FETHAEREES
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) < (48)
Directors (continued) EE(#\)
Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
and bonus scheme  Share-hased
Fees  allowances (note i) contributions payment Total
HeRk FAA RINEF SRR A
ik =113 (W) ST EREAR =)

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TAL TAL TEL TAL TEL

Year ended 31 December 2011: HE-_Z——%1_HR
=+-HIEFRE
Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Fang FRE 24 918 500 7 8,444 9,893
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van
QOoijen &4 24 1,056 300 - 4 2,121
Mr. Gu Liyong BEBLAE 24 677 300 2 648 1,651
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema 54 150 = = = 90 240
Mr. Li Xikui HELE 150 - - - 90 240
Dr. Loke Yu BegEL 150 - - - 90 240
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHELL 150 - - - 90 240
672 2,651 1,100 9 10,193 14,625
Mr. Fang is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his HEENMABRARIZEETRAERE
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered PGB EEEAETEITHASIRMH
by him as the Chief Executive. BR% < #riM -
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e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=F —

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13.

“FtZA=t—HLEFE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees
Of the five highest paid individuals of the

Group, three (2011:

three) were directors, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2011:

two) individuals were as follows:

EE - IETHRABRES
B (48)

]
RAKBEAREHHALES =4
—E-—F: =) REF AMSE
HREXHBEE - BTmA(ZF——
6 WB) ATHBSIT :

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Salaries and other allowances e R HE AR 3,529 2,901
Performance bonus (note i) RIBIEAT (FisED) 700 650
Retirement benefit scheme RIRE T B K

contributions 21 19
4,250 3,570

Analysed into the following bands: MeHBESTIT :
Number of Number of
individual individual
AT A AT A
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 % 7T £ 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

notes:

2,000,001 % 7T = 2,500,000 77T

(i) The performance bonus was determined as a percentage of the net profit

before inventory allowance.

(ii) Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema resigned and Mr. Michael Charles Lion was appointed

as non-executive director on 17 January 2012.

(iii) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
waived any emoluments during both years.

office. None of the directors

(i) REIEAL VIR T ERAERTAFEFIAB DL
BT -

(i) MZZT—=—%F— A+t H  Ralph Sytze
Ybema % 4 E B & Michael Charles Lion %t
EEEZERIEPITES -

(i) ~ AMEFEN AEBEYVEREMEERD
BREFAIINME - ERSRSIMARSE
B i A7 6% [ s Y B2 D sk B BB AR 1 © 70
MEFEA - MEEEREERHE -

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FrEFiRAX
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax: BIEATR IR -

PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT") B EATSHE ([RERMEHL 22,556 93,454
Hong Kong BB 791 13,388
Other jurisdiction Hh AR 127 129
23,474 106,971

(Over)underprovision in prior years: RBEFERE (BLE) TR :
PRC EIT RS 1,050 142
Hong Kong BB (4,745) =
(3,695) 142
Deferred tax (Note 33) EEFIAE (FzE33) 12,904 (18,905)
32,683 88,208
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZT——F+Z—A=+—HILLFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. PIEHMAX ()
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FABIER X A iR A 2 E R R AR
tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as AR MR ¢
follows:
2012 2011
—g-=% —E——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Profit before tax BRI A& A 72,034 204,459
Tax at applicable tax rates (note iv) BEARERGTE 2 HE (MiEiv) 11,455 52,193
Tax effect of expenses not RN Aok irh -2
deductible for tax purpose 12,875 15,672
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIMA R T 722
for tax purpose (28,723) (3,297)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RUER B AR R R = FEH)
differences not recognised M E 26 4,789
Tax effect of tax losses not REERTEE RN B E
recognised 43,557 16,013
Utilisation of tax loss previously R 2 AR FER T IE 18
not recognised (3,823) -
Deferred tax provided on dividends R EIR B A RIS
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries B 2 FELEFIB 1,011 2,696
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFERE(BLE) TR (3.695) 142
Tax charge for the year FAMETFRZ 32,683 88,208
notes: Bt e
(i) The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at the rate of 25%. (i) IR A R BT B A BB R 25 % HI B R B

PEREMER o

(ii) All the Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate (i) e B BHIE R R¥97812 16.5% BB R B
of 16.5%. BTG

(i) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the (i) POE M EDERE R E L AT IR VIR FARE
relevant jurisdiction. [REIRITR R E -

(iv) As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate reconciliations (iv) ARAEBRTIRAB K AVEERL S - RS
using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction have been B e A EN SR EAENBLHRE S
aggregated and presented. eI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. BRE
2012 2011
—B-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Dividend recognised as BEREREANDIKRE
distribution during the year:
2011 final dividend paid BIRN T ——FRERKRE
— HK3.7 cents per share — &% 3.7%51 38,612 =
2010 final dividend paid BERN =T —ZFRERE
— HK9 cents per share —E& 9B - 89,641
note: P E
(i) Shareholders were offered a choice of cash or script in respect of the 2010 final (i) BRE T —FFRAREAEREBUR SR
dividend. As a result, the 2010 final dividend was settled as to HK$88,449,000 DEREFRGEE - Bt —T—ZTF K
in cash and HK$ 1,192,000 in scrip shares. HA AR B LA 3R & 88,449,000 7 7T K AR X B

1,192,000 & L4 H -

(i) The final dividend of HK2.12 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December (i) BEEHBRREBE T ——F+-_A=1+—
2012 (2011: final dividend of HK3.7 cents in respect of the year ended 31 BIEFEZREAKREER2.12BMW(=ZF
December 2011) per share amounting to approximately HK$22,122,000 in ——F HEZZ——F+=-ZA=+—H
total (2011: HK$38,549,000) has been proposed by the directors and is subject IFFE 2 REBRSFR3.7EM) - LFEH
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. 22,122,000 7t (= Z — —4F : 38,549,000

BIT)  AfFhRERRENEETZREBF
A& EHER - TTAIEE -
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e MR R AR MR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE =T ——F+=-_F=+—HILLFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BRER
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share R BER AR EIREAR KL E8E 2R
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following TR AT EEETE -
data:
2012 2011
—g-=% —e——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Profit for the year attributable to FTEARATHAA
owners of the Company G BRERRFIH
for the purposes of basic earnings FE AR
per share 88,591 152,087
Effect of diluted potential BIELTBEREETE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible bonds — ARESFHFE 65,252 =
— Gain on change in fair value of — AR RESITE T A H
the derivative components N EZE W
of convertible bonds (57,481) -
Profit for the year attributable to STEARQREA AT
owners of the Company HERNOF AR
for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 96,362 152,087
Number of shares: AR :
Weighted average number of FTESREARRBTN
ordinary shares for the TEARINE 9 ER
purpose of basic earnings
per share 1,043,069,463 1,035,912,789
Effect of diluted potential BELRREETE
ordinary shares
— Convertible Bond (Note 31) — AR E S (FEE31) 113,615,982 -
— Share options (Note 37) —RE R (PMHsE37) 3,818,367 1,349,778
Weighted average number of FrEEREERFT
ordinary shares for the @R INETSEE
purpose of diluted
earnings per share 1,160,503,812 1,037,262,567
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume M'_Hxﬁﬁ/éE’T'JITﬁ?&Lﬂ@$
the exercise of the Company’s warrants and certain share options wuﬁ%& :Fmﬁ%éu’tﬂﬁﬁ?é%éﬁﬁ
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme because the iRt B b ERE - BRZERAR
exercise prices of these warrants and share options were higher EERERENTEESNEZITAR
than the average market price of the Company’s shares between EZMERRPEARTRG 8T ™
the date of their issuance and the end of the reporting period. g -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e MR ERME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

17. Y% - BER®RME

Office
Plant furniture Construction
and and Motor Leasehold in
machinery equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
Buildings HER YN BENE
BF EE Rik E £ FEIR @3
HK$" 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET THT THT T THL THT
CosT R
At 1 January 2011 R=E-——%-F—-H 133,046 96,774 11,046 5,582 2,766 4315 253,529
Exchange realignment B 5 4,330 5,357 573 348 1,032 370 12,010
Additions HE 2,053 44,951 5,560 7470 9,242 63,449 132,725
Transfers gz = 20,650 = = 32,674 (53,324) -
Disposal e = = (137) (1,520) = (5) (1,662)
At31 December 2011 R=Z——%
+-A=1+-H 139,429 167,732 17,042 11,880 45,714 14,805 396,602
Exchange realignment B 5% 22) (29) (1) - (7) @) (61)
Additions HE 263 22,100 2,568 3,666 7,154 56,371 92,122
Transfers gz 413 9,564 = = 3,941 (13,918) -
Transfer to investment  EZRENE (H319)
properties (Note 19) (37,312) - - - - - (37,312)
Disposal irt (1,681) (7,323) (284) (6,520) (556) - (16,364)
At31December 2012 MZZE—=
+-A=t-H 101,090 192,044 19,325 9,026 56,246 57,256 434,987
DEPRECIATION FE
At 1 January 2011 RZF——%-F-H 25175 18,382 3,726 2,261 250 - 49,794
Exchange realignment R HZ 1111 1,045 214 13 54 - 2,537
Provided for the year FRERE 6,519 11,766 2,252 1,449 2,264 - 24,250
Impairment loss REGTHERZ
recognised in HEER
profit or loss - 787 120 84 108 - 1,099
Disposal e = = (122 (923) = = (1,045)
At31 December 2011 R=Z——%
+-A=1+-H 32,805 31,980 6,190 2,984 2,676 - 76,635
Exchange realignment B 5% 12 45 11 7 132 - 207
Charge for the period BRZ 5,361 19,281 3,307 1,941 39,364 - 69,254
Transfer to investment  EZK AN (H319)
properties (Note 19) (5,260) - - - - - (5,260)
Disposal e (60) (1,910) (59) (2,004) (283) - (4312)
At31 December 2012 W=Z-—%
+-A=1+-H 32,858 49,39 9,453 2,928 41,889 - 136,524
CARRYING VALUE REE
At31December 2012 W=E-=F
+-A=t+-H 68,232 142,648 9,872 6,098 14,357 57,256 298,463
At31 December 2011 W=Z-——%
+-A=1+-H 106,624 135,752 10,852 8,896 43,038 14,805 319,967
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BE K& (&)

(continued)

Notes: Bt &

(i) As at 31 December 2012, certain buildings with carrying amount of (i) R-_TE——F+_-_A=+—H EEEAS
HK$44,825,000 (2011: HK$99,918,000) were pledged as security for bank 44,825,000 75 (=2 ——4F : 99,918,000
borrowings granted to the Group. BL) HE TEFERERR FAKEERIT

BEEHER -

(ii) During the year, certain buildings of the Group situated in Hong Kong and (i) FA - AEBELREBAPBHBELFERE
held under medium-term leases at the carrying amount of HK$32,052,000 832,052,000 B2 & FEFEXEERE
were transferred from the category of owner-occupied properties to the RECHRETARVEIREERENES
category of investment properties by the end of owner-occupation. The o AEER-_T——F+-_A=1+—8®
Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2012 were stated at cost less REMEURABITEREE T B AMER
depreciation using the same depreciation rates adopted for owner-occupied EXRBRAITE XTI o
properties.

(i) As at 31 December 2012, all buildings were situated in the PRC (2011: (iii) R-B——F+-A=+—8 FEZFY
leasehold land and buildings situated in Hong Kong and held under medium- NRPE(ZZ——F : (R BB B
term leases were HK$32,674,000 and buildings situated in the PRC were X EEE32,674,000 BTy A THE L
HK$73,950,000). Ko 48 T A e 57 74 A B AR T B 4% 73,950,000

BILZETF) °

(iv) The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are (iv) M - R REE (ERIRRIN K8
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their FIShBER - R A AEEFENT :
residual value, as follows:

Buildings 20 years, the relevant lease term, gF 20F A RATEE
whichever is shorter (ABREERE)

Plant and machinery 9%-20% RS R i B3 9% = 20%

Office furniture and equipment 9%-30% WAREREE 9% E30%

Motor vehicles 9%-30% bt 9% % 30%

Leasehold improvement 30%-50%, the relevant lease term or the HEMEEE 30% % 50% 34 B
estimated useful lives whichever is shorter HEA S (At AT AR

(ABEE BE)

During the year, the estimated useful lives of the leasehold improvements in a FR - ARTEELHERERE - W ITREE

factory facility were shortened in view of the expected schedule of relocation MEEMELENGEATAFHERE - B

of the facility. As a result of such a change in estimate, the Group’s leasehold R ZEEE 22— —F+=

improvements of the aforementioned facility for the year ended 31 December A=+—HLEFEAREE LMFHHEE

2012 were fully depreciated and the depreciation charge has increased by MERBERBITERTESERDE MY

approximately HK$32,156,000 which was included in other expenses. 32,156,000 77T * REMFHS AR -

(v) As at 31 December 2011, the directors conducted a review of the Group’s (v) R-ZE——F+_A=+—H8 EFHFIT
plant and equipment and determined that a number of those assets used in AL ERBRE &I T H A S EEER
the Group’s metal recycling business were impaired, accordingly, impairment B - AERASEBEREEKPEAN
losses of HK$1,099,000 were recognised in respect of these assets. The ZEAEMERER1,099,0007% 7T - 184
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets were determined on the basis of BEMAEKSBEREGHERRE - 85
their value in use. No impairment loss was recognised in respect of property, -t A=t+—BHUEFEXERY
plant and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2012. ¥ - BB RERERERRERSE -

BAXMEMERAT —B——FFR 161




162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

18. FE{JHE

2012 2011
—E-C-F T ——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
The prepaid lease payments RS
comprise leasehold land BERE L
—in Hong Kong held under — IR B A
medium term leases FHATRAEE 149,066 153,148
—in the PRC held under — 7 FAH B A
medium term leases FHEARAEE 206,168 38,064
355,234 191,212
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A28 AE BRI
Current asset MENEE 8,687 5,244
Non-current asset ERMBEE 346,547 185,968
355,234 191,212
notes: Fi%E
(i) The leasehold land in Hong Kong is under a medium term sub-lease and for (i) NREBNEE L EPHRO S BERTE

specific usage.

(ii) As at 31 December 2012, prepaid lease payments with carrying amount of
HK$186,194,000 (2011: HK$38,064,000) were pledged as security for bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

(iii) During the year, the Group acquired certain leasehold land in the PRC held
under medium term lease with carrying amount of HK$171,436,000 (2011:
Nil).

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

(i)

(iii)

R °

RZT——F+=-_A=+—H8 KEEA
186,194,000 /87T (=2 ——%F : 38,064,000
) BN SERIEAR T AREERIT
EEMER o

FRN - ANEBERFBEESETHE L - A
REIF A4S - BREE A171,436,0007%8 7T
(ZZ—F : |) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REYZE
HK$'000
FAET
COST [2%:S
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 RZZB——F—-A—HBHK
—T——+ZA=1+—H -
Transferred from property, plant and RZZ——FRA—BHEBEEYHE
equipment on 1 May 2012 EEE G 37,312
At 31 December 2012 RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H 37,312
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 RZZB——F—-A—HBHK
—T——+ZA=1+—H -
Transfer from property, plant and R=—ZT——FRA—H
equipment on 1 May 2012 EEEWE - W REE 5,260
Provided for the year F B 1,244
At 31 December 2012 RZZE—=—F+=A=+—H 6,504
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2012 R—ZF——F+=-A=+—H 30,808
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=-A=+—H -
Notes: B & -
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in Hong Kong and held (i) IR B E R AFEBRBENIF BN ENE
under medium-term leases, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at 5% per REEIRGFS% ITE -
annum.
(i) As at 31 December 2012, the investment properties were pledged as security (i) R-B——F+-_A=+—H REVETF
for bank borrowings granted to the Group. DEHRIERBITRASBIRHIEENER o
(i) The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2012 was (iii) AEBBEMER T ——F+_A=+—
HK$64,800,000. The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried B H A F(E A64,800,0008 7L c Z A FE
out by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent valuers not connected with the TIRBESEE T EAR AR (EAKERE
Group, by reference to recent market prices for similar properties in similar BRI 2 B (HERD) 2 RBE R BB E Rk
locations and conditions. SEVELIYE A B BT IS B A% FT Ve E T &
2 o
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. AIEERE
It represents an investment of equity security listed in Hong Kong BIRENEB FTHERARES  T2E
and is stated at fair value which is determined based on the bid ERMIBETRMEABETEAFET
price quoted in an active market. iR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F&T
Raw materials JE 1,160,851 1,562,982
Finished goods UK oh 1,821,748 1,656,289
2,982,599 3,219,271

At 31 December 2012, inventories were stated at purchase

RZE——F+=-RA=+—8 F&EK

FREEAK A8 2,087,057,000 7% 7T 5l BR & &%
T 895,542,000 7% T AL 2 E ™ %5 FT
RS B B AR AR B A 35 A 2 BRIK
HIER ©

cost of HK$2,087,057,000 and the remaining HK$895,542,000
inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value with reference to the quoted prices of metal scrap in the
relevant markets.

R=B——F+=A=+-8 FsH
B4 B KB 45 7 95 2 B B DA B
118 2 A S F R ES -

At 31 December 2011, all inventories were stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value with reference to the quoted prices
of metal scrap in the relevant markets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B REHMEWRIE
2012 2011
—B-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables: B Z WA
0-30 days 0&30H 129,614 207,462
31-60 days 31260H 30,097 1,336
61-90 days 61290H 685 36,332
91-180 days 91 £ 180 H 36,683 54,425
Over 180 days B3A 180 H 3,015 3,011
200,094 302,566
Other receivables: H A EURIA
Deposits and prepayments 2® RIERFHIEA 48,343 99,388
Deposits paid for purchase BERMZEMNES
of raw materials 264,432 186,063
VAT recoverable AR BIEET 264,473 217,248
Others Eith 8,732 8,132
585,980 510,831
786,074 813,397
notes: B
(i) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential (i) RERFTERA - AREBTHEEEFH
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limit. Credit limits to customers EEEERAEEFPNEERE  YHAT
are reviewed regularly. B R R E BT -
The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days. AEE-—RETESFIEFI0E0AMNEE
A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers with good credit B mRGEERENER  AEETREE
quality upon the approval of management. LBHERIFNESIRFREERNEER -
(ii) The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting (i) REBRER - ANEEE S RBGRIBIRRER
period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, was prepared based on the invoice BEEORER D IMIRER A B (RS2
date which approximate to the date of revenue recognition. HEEE) 251 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

= =p =
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESRHEMEBEWKFIE(E)
(continued)
notes: (continued) FtsE : (48)
(i) Included in the trade receivable balance are the following past due debts for (i)  EIEWRFEGEHEE THIELRERER
which impairment loss of HK$7,332,000 has been provided: 147,332,000 8 TRy B HRE RS
Aging analysis of trade receivables which were past due BBHNE 5 ERGRERE DT
2012 2011
—EB-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
31-60 days 31E60H - 112
61-90 days 61%E90H - 852
91-180 days 912 180H 36,683 54,425
Over 180 days #HiR180H 3,015 3,011
39,698 58,400
The Group does not hold any collateral against the above amounts. However, ARE B RS Ll SR 2 AR o A
management believes that the carrying amounts are recoverable given that - BEERERS  ERETHNRERES
adequate impairment allowance has been recognised as follow: R + ez E BT E
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIEBENEE
2012 2011
—B-—fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEES - -
Recognition of impairment loss B 5 o Bt EUCGRIERL B 5 18
on trade and other receivables R 8,014 452
Amounts written off as uncollectible HU8H 4% 7 AT U 1 O SRR (682) (452)
Balance at end of the year FIR G 7,332 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23.

24,

(continued)

notes: (continued)

(iv) Trade and other receivables that were denominated in currencies other than

22. E5 REMBWFIE (&)

BifeE « (4H)

vy  AEEEERRDEER UM EEHER

the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: B 5 REAMBUFIEMNT
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
RMB AREE - 79,443
HK$ BIT 291 3,140
EUR BT 91 2

BILLS RECEIVABLES

An analysis of the Group's bills receivables by age at the end of the
reporting period, based on their invoice dates (also approximate to

23. EWEE

RBEHR - AEENRERIERER
iR R (R aRTER A MAE) A2

v2)

the date of revenue recognition), are as follows: /AT -
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0-30 days 0Z30H 4,834 617
31-60 days 31£60H 370 16,268
61-90 days 61%290H 1,850 15,369
91-180 days 91% 180 H - 1,422
7,054 33,676
INVESTMENTS AT FVTPL 24. AT EFTABRZZRE
2012 2011
—B-—& -2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
Investments at FVTPL BEATEABEZ
include: B BIE
Unlisted investments: ELETIRE :
— Investment fund investing —RERHE ETHER
in listed PRC debt securities BHEEES 24,677 =

ESRiEEFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEEmT A
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Derivative financial asset TELMERE
Aluminium, copper, zinc and i £ &2 3 AR
steel rebar future contracts HMEEH (i) 50,761 37,021
Provisional pricing arrangements PR E BB (i) 4,677 -
55,438 37,021
Derivative financial liability fTEEREE
Aluminium, copper, zinc and 7 8 2 % 8
steel rebar future contracts HEGHL (i) 20,007 34,696
Provisional pricing arrangements e I TE B 2 HE (ii) 1,433 5,069
Foreign currency forward contracts SNEIRERE X (iii) 80 -
21,520 39,765
notes: Bt et -
(i) Aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts (net settlement) (i) R R MBS S CFREEE)
The Group enters into aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts AEBET VRS REGHREEH - UE
in order to manage its exposure to the price risk of aluminium, copper and B kA B TFENERRR - RIRE
other metal inventory. These contracts are actively traded in an active market HIR - ZE AN ERTIS FRAERA R
and are measured at fair values based on unadjusted quoted price at the end RACAEREBUAFETZE - HEBEE
of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in the profit or BRIBEEP R o

loss.
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e MR RAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ ==

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  25.

(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i)

Aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts (net settlement)

(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

“FTA=t—HLFE

PTEEMIA (&)
s« ()

Major terms of the aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts

outstanding at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

31 December 2012

(i)

R RMEREA N CFREE) (8)

REBEHR - REHRRGFRAHHEELD
REZEFT -

—®B——f+=A=+-—AH

Contract price Standard trading unit Total units Maturity date

BRER REBEEMN HEB FHA

Aluminium future contracts:

EHEEH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 252 From 10 January 2013
USD1,898 to USD2,071 per tonne 251 to 28 March 2013

BN FEGME1,898KLE2,071% T BE-Z—=5—A+HZ
WERESE —T—=F=FA=+N\H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 144 From 2 January 2013
USD2,080 to USD2,135 per tonne 2508 to 28 March 2013

BN T GME2,080%TE2,135% T BE-Z—=f—AZHZ
EERHE —2—=F=A=+N\H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 244 From 2 January 2013
USD2,074 to USD2,124 per tonne 250 to 27 March 2013

BN FEME2,074% T 52,1245 BE=Z—=f—A=A%
NEREE —T—=F=A=t+H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 224 From 24 January 2013

USD1,944 to USD2,050 per tonne 25MF to 28 February 2013

TN EHE1,944% 7T 52,0505 T BE=Z-—=f—-A=-tmRAZE
HERHE —E—=F-A=+NH

Copper future contracts:

HHEEH -

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 2,684 From 15 January 2013
RMB55,400 to RMB58,810 per tonne S to 15 April 2013

BN TEME AR 55,400 E ARH58,8107T BE=Z-—=f—-AtAaAZE
NEREE —T-=FWA+EHAE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 508 From 16 January 2013
USD7,510 to USD7,923 per tonne 25MF to 28 March 2013

AT EHE7,510%7TE7,923% T B=Z—=F—-At<HE
NEREE —Z—=F=A=+NH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 204 From 3 January 2013
USD7,920 to USD8,269 per tonne 25HA to 20 March 2013

BN T EHi7,920% T E8,2695% T
HERHE

EaRtEEERAR —T——FFR
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e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i)

Aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts (net settlement)

(continued)

31 December 2012 (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. TTEE®m I A (8)

WieE (4

(0]

R RMEREA N CFREE) (8)

“E--H+-A=t—-8 )

Contract price Standard trading unit Total units Maturity date

AHER BEEEEN BE A

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 300 From 3 January 2013
USD7,926 to USD8,305 per tonne 2508 to 28 March 2013

BN FEM7,926% T E8,305% T B-T—=F—A=H%
WERESE —T—=F=A=tNH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 96 From 15 January 2013
USD7,633 to USD7,929 per tonne 251 to 21 February 2013

BN FEME7,633KTLE7,929% T BE-Z—=f—A1+ABZE
ERHE =2 =F-F=F—H

Zinc future contracts:

FHEAHK

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 429 From 9 January 2013
USD1,852 to USD2,080 per tonne 2508 to 28 March 2013

BT EME1,8525 L E2,080% T BEZT—=F—AhBZ
WERESE —T—=F=A=tNH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 288 From 3 January 2013
USD2,057 to USD2,107 per tonne 251 to 28 March 2013

BN FEME2,057%TE2,107% T BT =f—HA=HZ%
HERHE —T—=F=A=tNH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 208 From 2 January 2013
USD2,054 to USD2,105 per tonne 2508 to 27 March 2013

AT EME2,0545 T E2,105% 7T EZT—=F—HAZHZ
HEEEE —T—=f=A=++A

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 296 From 3 January 2013
USD1,890 to USD2,075 per tonne 250 to 28 March 2013

I FGME1,890% T E2,075% T B-—Z—=f—R=H=
ERHE —T-=F=A=1TNH

Steel rebar future contracts:

HFHEEH -

Sell at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 900 15 May 2013
RMB3,942 to RMB3,990 per tonne 10M8

BT EMEARE3,94270E ARES,9907T
HEE SHE

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i)

Aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts (net settlement)

(continued)

31 December 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. TTEE®m I A (8)

WieE (4

(i) R RMEREA N CFREE) (8)

—®——%+-A=+-8

Contract price Standard trading unit Total units Maturity date

AREE BREEEEN BE A

Aluminium future contracts:

HEHEEA

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 170 From 15 February 2012
RMB16,155 to RMB16,340 per tonne SHE to 15 March 2012

BN TEMARE16,155TE ARKE16,3407T B-Z——f#-At+HAZE
NEREE —T——#=A+HA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 136 From 4 January 2012
USD1,966 to USD 1,998 per tonne 25HA to 19 March 2012

BN FEHE1,9665% T E 1,998 T B=Z——f—AWmAZE
HEREE —Z——F=RA+hH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 176 From 10 January 2012
USD2,030 to USD2,269 per tonne 2508 to 2 March 2012

BN T EME2,0305K T E2,269% T BEZT——_F—A+HZ
HBRIEE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 440 From 3 January 2012
USD2,000 to USD2,249 per tonne 251 to 9 March 2012

BN FEME2,000%TTE2,249% T BT —4—H=HZ%
HEREE —T——#=AANAB

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 108 From 3 January 2012
USD1,972 to USD2,014 per tonne 25048 to 19 March 2012

BN T HUE1,972ETE2,014% T BE-Z———A=HZ%
HERHE —T——F=A+ANH

Copper future contracts:

HHEEH ¢

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 150 15 March 2012
RMB57,760 to RMB57,880 per tonne S

BN FEMEARKES7, 76072 ARH57,8807T —T——f=R+HH
HEREE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 252 From 3 January 2012
UsD6,710 to USD7,565 per tonne 25048 to 28 March 2012

BN T SHE6,710ETLET,565% 7T
HEREE

BT —f#—A=RA=%
—T——f=A=+NAR

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

Aluminium, copper, zinc and steel rebar future contracts (net settlement)

(continued)

31 December 2011 (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. TTEE®m I A (8)

WieE (4

(0]

R RMEREA N CFREE) (8)

—B2——F+=-A=+—-H (&)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total units Maturity date

AREE BREEEEN BE A

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 136 From 25 January 2012
USD7,630 to USD8,039 per tonne 2508 to 7 March 2012

BN T EME7,6305% T E8,0395% T B=Z——4—A-t+AB=E
HBRIEE —T——F=R+H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 264 From 27 January 2012
USD7,602 to USD8,140 per tonne 251 to 23 March 2012

BN FEME7,602KTTE8, 140% T BE-Z——4—A-t+tB=E
HEREE —T——-f=A=+=H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 152 From 3 January 2012
USD6,934 to USD7,580 per tonne 25048 to 24 February 2012

N TG HE6,934% T E7,580% T BT ——A=HZ%
EERHE —E——F-A=+WmAH

Zinc future contracts:

HHERA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 116 From 18 January 2012
USD1,780 to USD 1,830 per tonne 251 to 20 January 2012

2 FEME1,780K T E 1,830% T BE-Z——4—A+/N\BZE
HEREE —T——F—A=+H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 366 From 4 January 2012
USD1,840 to USD2,101 per tonne 25048 to 22 March 2012

AT EHE1,840 T E2,101% T BT —F—ANAZE
HERHE 2 —F=FA=+=H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 702 From 3 January 2012
USD1,843 to USD2,079 per tonne 250 to 23 March 2012

I FGME1,843% T 22,0795 T B-Z———A=H%
HEIEEE —T——F=A=+=H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 36 From 3 January 2012
UsD1,796 to USD1,828 per tonne 250 to 20 January 2012

BN FEWE1,7965 51,8285 7T
HEEHE

B-Z——-f—HA=HZ%
—T——F—A=+H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii)

Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement)

During the year, the Group entered into copper scrap sales contracts that
contain provisional pricing arrangements with certain customers. The Group
recognises sales revenue, upon delivery of goods once the significant risks
and rewards of ownership has been transferred to the customers, based on
the quoted copper prices on the Shanghai Futures Exchange or London Metal
Exchange as at date of delivery with a fixed discount on the purity of copper
scrap (the “Provisional Selling Price”). The Group will receive the payments
from the customers ranging from 70% to 90% of the Provisional Selling Price
in accordance with its normal trade terms (the “Provisional Payments”).

In general, the provisional pricing arrangements allow the Group to choose a
date (“Price-fixing Date”) within a period of six to twelve months after delivery
to the customers (”Pricing-fixing Period”) to fix the final selling price of the
copper scrap sold with reference to the copper future prices as quoted on
the Shanghai Futures Exchange with similar terms as the provisional pricing
arrangement on the Pricing-fixing Date, as adjusted for the agreed purity of
the copper scrap sold (“Final Selling Price”). If the Group does not choose
the Price-fixing Date within the Price-fixing Period, then the last date in the
Pricing-fixing Period is deemed to be the Price-fixing Date for the purpose of
determining the Final Selling Price. The difference between the Final Selling
Price and the Provisional Payments, once determined, will be settled within a
specified period.

For accounting purposes, the provisional price arrangements are separated
from the host contract for sales of copper scrap and are accounted for as
derivative instruments, the fair value change of which is recognised in profit or
loss.

Major terms of the provisional pricing arrangements contracts outstanding at
31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

31 December 2012

25. $TEEmT A (&)

BifeE « (4H)

(i)

ERES (B R B OF )

FR - ARBEETEF L BERREE
ZHMBEREERYN  ARERERRR R
OHBBEERFRE  YRER LDEHERS
ke R e BR 5 AR RE (RS
B AEERRHEWA - REERFES 1K
AR AR R E P KERERIENT T R &
BH)70% £ 90% ([ ERES{IER) -

—RME - BREEERREAEEAERR
AEFRNEREANET—EAHME(EE
HRD A —ERM(EERHD &2ER
(B H B SRR T E 2 pHA UG 2 £
H 3R 55 P P 5 8 53 (R 14 7 7 P 65 R S 9
BEREE((REEE] LIRS ERNG
SESUEMEATAREE o AN SR E I AR BUR E (B
HRANEERD  AEERRZ&EAH
BERETSEREBENTERS - FREE
R R EE BT - SRR ERE
HRAEE -

HETBENME - B EE R PR R R
HENEROLFAARTETER - AAFE
BHNBRATER

R —FR-_F——F+-A=+—H
BARMITH IR E B A O E Z R
T:

—B—_f+-A=t—-H

Notional amount

EE R

Provisional Selling Prices

BEEE

Price-fixing Periods
EEHH

6 contracts to sell 1,773 tonnes
of copper scrap in total
BRAHE MR, 773 E RS

6MEH

2 contracts to sell 1,744 tonnes
of copper scrap in total
BRAHE BT, 744 BE R )

2 EH

Sell at prices ranging from
RMB45,882 to RMB52,608 per tonne
BN T EHEARYE45,8827E ARES2,6087C
HIERIHE

Sell at prices ranging from
USD7,327 to USD7,699 per tonne

BN FEWE7,327%TTE7,699% T
HIERIHE

BRBEEFRAF

From 26 March 2013
to 12 July 2013
B-T—=F=A=-+XHZE
—T—=F+A+=H

31 October 2013

—E-=F+A=1-8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEEMT A ()
(continued)
notes: (continued) MicE - (4&)
(ii) Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement) (continued) (i) R E B CFBEE) (8)

31 December 2011

Notional amount

BREH

Provisional Selling Prices

iR EE

—2——+=-A=+-H

Price-fixing Periods

EEMM

27 contracts to sell 14,300 tonnes
of copper scrap in total

A RS 45T 14,3000 BE 81 Y
27113 EH

Sell at prices ranging from
RMB45,794 to RMB55,685 per tonne
BN T EWEARYEA5,794TE ARMESS,6857T
HERIHE

(iii) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement) (iii)

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to

minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were

measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of the

reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or loss.

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

31 December 2012

Notional amount

BEREH

Forward contract rates

BHAMMRE

From 21 April 2012
to 30 June 2012

BT —fmNA=-+—BZE
—T——FXA=+H

BEHSNEA W (RBEE)

AEERT SR BINE S K AREINERB

ZECHNBERRERBREREIZAFE

8 HEBRREENERRTER -

BEHSNEGWEZGHROT

—2--%+=A=t+-8

Maturity date
FHA

4 contracts to buy
USD9,501,123 in total

417#£9,501,123% T
HBARK

31 December 2011

USD1: EUR1.30122
to EUR1.31473

1%EITH1.301 228t E
1.31473B7T

No foreign currency forward contract was outstanding at 31 December 2011.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2012

From 14 March 2013

to 18 March 2013

BT =F=ATWHBZE
—Z—=%=A+\H

—E2——f+-A=t+—-H

R-B——F+=A=+—BHEEHINE
a4 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK  26.
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

These represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Bank deposits of HK$105,765,000
(2011: HK$127,004,000) were pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank deposits
carried fixed interest rates as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CIEHBITER ZRHERT
FRBITEBRRRE

BIEARITER

ZEFRERETEBULNERANEE
BEMNBRITEEFEDERNTFER
105,765,000 L( = & — — F:
127,004,000 %7z ) KISRITIF 51 E IR E
HARTEENER  BREIEAR

REE IR - BIERRTERENTE
RERIEEH o

2012 2011
e 24

Interest rate per annum FR=R

0.45% t0 6.00%  0.53% to 1.30%
0.45% £ 6.00% 0.53% = 1.30%

EERMEEFRAT —T--FFR
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26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(continued)

Restricted bank deposits

The balance represents deposits placed with certain financial
institutions to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these
financial institutions for the trading aluminium, copper and zinc
futures. The restricted bank deposits are non-interest bearing.

Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. At the end of the
reporting period, the bank balances carried interest rates as

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e HRRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

EEBRITERZRERIT
R BATHEBRIRE (&)

ZRHBITER

BBEASBERDGE TSR EER
BERRAFHENREBRS M ERIAH
EREBNTR - RREIRTERRT

e -

RITEBRREAE
ZEFRREREIRIBA/=EA
KA THEHRITER - RBEHK
RITREBMELDT

follows:
2012 2011
—E-=f —T——fF
Interest rate per annum R 0.01% to 1.15% 0.01% t0 0.5%

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$238,646,000 (2011: HK$302,752,000) were denominated in
RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other

0.01% Z 1.15% 0.01% £ 0.5%

EFHREFEANDEFPRTER
ERHBIERERITEHRLR S
4858 /5 238,646,000/ T ( — T ——4 :
302,752,000787) * 2EFAAREEHE
I SZHNE B I o

RBEBEEARNEER AN EREE
M EMRITER SR FIRITFHE

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as IRITEHBRIIRSWOT -
follows:

2012 2011
N —E——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FrET
RMB AR 3,770 103,750
HK$ ABIT 5,644 1,710
usb o 16,030 93,660
EUR BT 221,623 1,203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B REMEBNRIE
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade payables: B D REMNFIA
0-30 days 0&30H 72,718 206,179
31-60 days 31260H 17,836 129,432
61-90 days 61%290H - 1,996
91-180 days 912180 H 1,061 3,091
Over 180 days B3A 180 H 16,355 6,853
107,970 347,551
Other payables: HAEARUA
Other payables and accruals (note iv) H A e IR R FEET B A (FaEiv) 142,063 124,399
Interest payable FEASFILE 6,877 14,989
Receipts in advance from customers TEW = = 5RIE 8,529 32,613
157,469 172,001
265,439 519,552
notes: Bt et -
(i) The average credit period for trade purchases is 30 to 60 days. (i) EORENTHEEHR30E60H °
(i) The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables was prepared based on the (i) AEEE G EMNFRIBNRRD T ERER
invoice date. EE
(i)~ Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other than the (iif) NEHEER RGN EEENE
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: S REMERAFKIBAOT
2012 2011
—E-ZF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
HK$ BT 3,590 7,621
EUR BRT 14,950 60,405
usD ESD 29,860 -
(iv) Included in other payables and accruals are import declaration, freight charges, (iv) Hip e RIBRET B A BEENRRE &
accrued salaries and audit fee. B EEHeRETEA -

BaXitEEERAT —T—_FFR 177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

28. BITERERESX

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fixed-rate borrowings: ELEE:
Secured bank loans AEBRITER 771,369 1,450,404
Unsecured bank loans FEHERRITER 931,743 616,638
Unsecured bank overdrafts FERRRITES 1,401 2,285
Variable-rate borrowings: EEBE
Secured bank loans BEBRITER 179,256 12,415
Unsecured bank loans IR TE N 65,904 569,955
1,949,673 2,651,697
Carrying amount repayable FERTRREE (FIEEG))
(note (i)):
Within one year —FR 1,755,875 2,457,393
More than two years, but not BEMFE - BTIZRAF
more than five years 193,798 194,304
1,949,673 2,651,697
Less: e
Amounts due within one year RRBBETZ258
shown under current liabilities TREERBIRER
without repayment on demand BIER—FR
clause B Hir & 58 (1,320,421) (1,733,236)
Amounts due within one year RREBEETZ2INTE
shown under current liabilities IRHRIRZE KB TG
with repayment on demand —FREER S5
clause (435,454) (724,157)
Amounts due over one year RRBBETZ2INEE
shown under current liabilities IRYR IR Z KR TR A
with repayment on demand —FHEHE
clause (193,798) (194,304)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

(continued)

28. RITEEREX (B)

notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rates of the
borrowings are as follows:

(i) IS BEHRERGAMBNOEEERA D

ER

2011

—F—F

Effective interest rate per annum: BRREF|E
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Variable-rate borrowings REEE

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the

1.50% to 6.20%
1.50% % 6.20%
3.31% t0 3.91%
3.31% £3.91%

1.50% to 7.02%
1.50% £ 7.02%
4.41% t0 6.41%
441% £ 6.41%

(i)  ABEEERARDEERUINEEHEHR

functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: SEEEWT
2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HK$ BT 830 830
usb ES 1,640,031 1,924,896

During the year ended 31 December 2012, one of the Group’s subsidiaries
exceeded the loan-to-equity ratio specified in a bank loan agreement in
relation to certain bank loan with a repayable on a demand clause. The
relevant subsidiary has obtained a waiver from the relevant bank that it would
not demand immediate repayment of the bank loan as a result of the breach
of the financial covenant.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, one of the Group’s subsidiaries
exceeded the loan-to-equity ratio specified in a bank loan agreement in
relation to certain bank loan with a repayable on demand clause. The excess
was remedied by the subsidiary in November 2011 by settling part of the
outstanding bank borrowings to lower the loan-to-equity ratio and the
relevant bank subsequently confirmed that it would not take any action
against that subsidiary.

(iv) BE_ZT——&#+_A=+—HILEE &
EEE B A R A BRI R B8
BB EERERERNE TRTE
HETETRARILL R - ZE BB AREMEHE
FARITHR TG BAMBIEFEL M ZE K
BIEFE BRI TE R ©

BE-ZT——F+-A=1+—HLEFE K
SEEF BB A RNERRA L RBHB
BERIBHEAREZEKEREROE THRTE
FRETFTRALL R - FBBME D BB ARR =
T——F+—-ABRBRAEIDARERBTE
FRUABRE S FRARAS b SR AR 6 1E - ERAIRAT
REE B R & %M B A BRI E [T
o

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRA
Number
notes of shares Amounts
B s RAEE S5
HK$
BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RZZT—%—A—H:
at 1 January 2011, —E——FR-T—-F
31 December 2011 and 2012 +-A=+—H
SREEO0.01 B Th LB 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETIHR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZT—F—F—H
at 1 January 2011 EREEO0.01 B TH T R 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issue of new shares BITHAR (i) 60,000,000 600,000
Issue of scrip dividend BATUARRE (ii) 209,206 2,092
Exercise of share options IRk i (iii) 1,645,500 16,455
Shares repurchased and cancelled RO & (iv) (20,000,000) (200,000)
At 31 December 2011 R-_ZE—F+-A=1+—H 1,041,854,706 10,418,547
Exercise of share options i (iif) 3,621,500 36,215
Shares repurchased and cancelled AR R 1 R a4 (iv) (1,970,000) (19,700)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 1,043,506,206 10,435,062

notes:

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

On 15 April 2011, arrangements were made for a placement to independent
investors of 60,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company held by
HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH") and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”), the
controlling shareholders with over 30% beneficial interest in the Company,
in aggregate, at a price of HK$6.60 per share, representing a discount of
approximately 11.41% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares on
15 April 2011.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date, HWH and Delco
subscribed for 60,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at
a price of HK$6.60 per share. The proceeds were used for general working
capital. The subscription was completed on 29 April 2011. These new shares
were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors pursuant to
the written resolutions of all shareholders passed on 23 June 2010.

Annual Report 2012

Wi

R-ZZT——FMA+THRB  ARAIKRER
6.60B T (BRAARBRNN=-F——F N
A+THEBOKRHETEN11.41%) HERK
MBUREEERREESREE BT
#960,000,000 % 7 & Bic & 2 8E - Z ZRRH
#1 HWH Holdings Limited ([HWH) - Delco
Participation B.V.([ Delco|) (HWH K Delco Jb
AHBERARZN30% AAR 2 Bz
HIERRAR R ) #58 ©

BIRRE B 5] KRB - HWH & Delco
ZER6.60 B TREAARSREE.0
JLE) 60,000,000 ARFTAR © PTG SRIRAIE—RR
YELEeHR REFHEER-Z——FNW
AZ+NBREK - ZEFBRBER=-"F—F
FRAZT=H2BERFBBHEMRAR
RTEFH—RIBERIT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 22 June 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of 209,206 new
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of HK$5.70 per share to
shareholders who elected to receive new shares in lieu of cash final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

During the year, 2,637,000 and 984,500 (2011: 1,585,000 and 60,500)
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Scheme (as defined in
Note 38) were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.43 and HK$3.38
(2011: HK$2.43 and HK$3.38) per share respectively, resulting in the issue
of 2,637,000 and 984,000 (2011: 1,585,000 and 60,500) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company.

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,970,000 (2011: 20,000,000)
of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$7,865,000 (2011: HK$83,946,000) pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors at its annual general meeting. The highest
and lowest prices paid for the repurchased shares were HK$4.09 and HK$3.84
(2011: HK$4.55 and HK$3.69), respectively.

29. B (%)

MfeE - (B

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RZFB——FXAZ+T =B ARAKE
f&5.70 T ERARE (HEEREE
T—TFE+ - A=+— A1 FEREER I
BMARRERE) #17 REEETR0.01 BITH
209,206 fEFT ©

FAN - BRAREEAE LGS (ERR
Fff £38)38 T #92,637,000 % K2 984,500 %
(== ——% : 1,585,000 f% }% 60,500 %) &
BRAED BIIR T 2.43 BT X338 L (=T
—— & 12438 R3.38BT) HREEE
T BRARABITEREEO0 BT
#72,637,000 % % 984,000 i (=T ——4F :
1,585,000 % K 60,500 fi% ) & 3@A% °

FA - ARRRBREBREBAFAG LMK
SRR ) — AR IR B A2 P AR (] EL AR & AR
1,970,000 f% ( — & — — 4 : 20,000,000
B%) - A LA (E7,865,0008T( =T ——4 :
83,946,000) ° f# Bl 19 K& = B R AR (B 5
DAlBA09E T R38BT (=T ——4F ¢
4558 % 3.697%TT) °

Details of the repurchases are as follows: BB
Total number Highest Lowest
of the ordinary price paid price paid Aggregate
Month of the repurchases share repurchased per share per share consideration
E158 A 5 [E] % % B Y ENER ENER
ag BeE BIKE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FTET
Year ended 31 December 2012: HE-Z——-fF
+ZA=E+—BIEFE -
September 2012 1,802,000 4.09 3.87 7,215
October 2012 168,000 3.90 3.84 650
1,970,000 7,865
Year ended 31 December 2011: HE-Z——fF
TZRA=t+—HUEFE:
August 2011 —Z—%N\A 2,780,000 4.50 4.08 11,640
September 2011 —Z——%nA 9,934,000 4.55 3.84 42,476
October 2011 —T—%+A 7,286,000 4.30 3.69 29,830
20,000,000 83,946

All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The nominal value of I ET A R YR BEEI & i 8E o sESERDEY

(v)

the cancelled shares was credited to the capital redemption reserve and the
aggregate consideration was paid out of the reserves of the Company.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during both years.

All the above-mentioned new shares allotted and issued ranked pari passu in
all respects with the other shares then in issue.

(v)

EaRitbEEERAR

BZRSEAHABAEEERE - REKLEER
REEET R -

REABEFER - SEAQRNHBARE
B - HERERAR R ER EHES

BRERETH LRMRERREHITHOE
MR EMRE S Z A RS kES -

—m-—EEg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE MR M EE (M)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE =T ——F + A =1+—HItFE
30. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30. FERER
Share of net assets
(liabilities) of subsidiaries

182

Frib M2 Al
FEE(AE)
2012 2011
—B-—fF 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 17,398 34,880
Acquisition of additional interest WS — BB A R
in a subsidiary FHIMERR - (4,950)
Capital contribution FE - 22,367
Share of loss for the year FRATMEEE (49,240) (35,836)
Share of foreign currency PR INEE BE 5 (S
translation reserve (207) 937
Deregistration of a non-wholly i —HFEEEMB AR
owned subsidiary (9,414) _
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H (41,463) 17,398
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31. AIRRES
Debt Derivative
component component
BRI PTER D
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&ET
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZT——F—H—H - -
Fair value at initial recognition ZHERZ AE 659,611 142,771
Interest charge B & A 65,252 =
Interest paid B FIE (16,316) =
Changes in fair value NEEES) - (57,481)
Carrying amount at RZZTE——F+=-A=+—8H
31 December 2012 ZERMEE 708,547 85,290
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE =T ——F + A =1+—HItFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

notes:

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 1 March 2012 (“Issue Date”), the Company issued convertible bonds
to HWH, Delco and Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims") (collectively the “Subscribers”) with an aggregate principal sum
of HK$815,800,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) with detachable three-year
warrants (the “Warrants”) at total consideration of HK$815,800,000 (the

“Subscription”). Details of Warrants are set out in Note 32.

The major terms of Convertible Bonds are as below:

(@) The Convertible Bonds carry 4% coupon interest per annum payable
in arrears semi-annually. Unless previously converted, the Convertible
Bonds will be fully redeemed by the Company at its principal
amount upon maturity on 1 March 2015 (“Maturity Date”). No early
redemption of the Convertible Bonds is allowed unless the Company
commits an event of default under the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds.

(b) The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of
the Issue Date, if any of the Subscribers is not able to exercise any
conversion rights on or before the Maturity Date solely because of the
minimum public float restriction under the Listing Rules.

(c) The holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right to convert the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period
from the second anniversary of Issue Date up to 10 business days prior
to Maturity Date, subject to the minimum public float requirement.

The Convertible Bonds comprise debt component and derivative component
(including conversion, extension and early redemption options), which are
measured at fair value of HK$659,611,000 and HK$142,771,000, respectively,
on initial recognition. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company will be able to maintain the minimum public float of Company’s
shares required under the Listing Rules and will not trigger the condition of
the extension of the Convertible Bonds. Also, the event of default is unlikely to
occur and will not trigger the early redemption of Convertible Bonds, therefore
the fair values of the extension and early redemption options were considered
insignificant on initial recognition and as at 31 December 2012.

The fair value of the debt component on initial recognition was calculated
using the present value of contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate of 11.756%.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds is carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

31. ARES ()

BRE

@)

(i)

(iii)

EaREEFRAE

RZF—=-F=A—B((%ITEH])  ~AQ
AJ[AHWH - Delco & Sims Metal Management
Dragon Holdings Limited ([ Sims ) (%t [
BB A ) BT = FH R 9 R AR R ([ R AR #E
#]) BEAR% 4858 4815,800,000 4 7T 2 Al #
Mk &% - #8K(85815,800,000 % 7T ([ R
1)) - BREZOFBHNME32

AR EIRA £ B IEHREI T

(@) AR ESME 4% HERS - §F
FXN IR BRIEERILE - BEY
AARER-_T—AF=A—AZ
(2 ) AR FEED 228
AR ES - BRIFAARER A
BB 5 0 R R AR - BRI AT
REER AT RRES o

(b) i B EREAER TR AR
ERR ARG M A e 2/ H A
HZ AT 0 - RIZIHA
JERZEHITHRANERIASF -

(0) ARRESFFAEAGEREITHEH
FEREEFHAMOELERY
BT MEEND S L RESRE
I FREERAE) 5T RRE
SRS EERK AR R GREE
0.01 B LW - EEEFHREA
FPRREHHRTE ©

ARBRESFDEEE DD RITEDD - (&

HERE CHREFEEE) DIRAT

5 4659,611,000/8 7T % 142,771,000 LA

LR R - XARRESRA - AQ7

e 4SS E TR AR E AR R IR I RIE R

BREREARTE B RRESTHNE

oo BLAN - BRIFHETRAREEREART

B RFEEOAIRRES - Bt TR

REBEEENAFEENSERRREBEE =

T+ A=+ BHERAEN) -

2]
)

PR RS A TEDERRER
Rk 11.756% BB MV A KB R IR & ot
RIEHH -

RE B - rHRRE S 2 BB D TR
AN ER A B IR I ORI BR

—m-—EEg
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 31

notes: (continued)

(v) The fair value of the derivative component was determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ES ()

Bt - ()

(v) MTETABDN R FETVR_AREFEEE
AEERZRAMBAZEREENT

At At

Issue Date 31/12/2012

R=F——F

REITHE +=A=+—H

Stock price A8 HK$4.33 HK$3.91

4.33% 7T 3918

Exercise price 1TEE HK$6.00 HK$6.00

6.0075 7T 6.007 7T

Expected volatility (note a) TEERRIE (st a) 53.189% 53.189%

Dividend yield BBz = 0.855% 0.946%

Option life AR 35.5 months 25.5 months

35518 A 2551 A

Risk free rate (note b) R BRI (Mt b) 0.277% 0.119%

notes: BfRE

(@) The volatility was determined with reference to the implied volatility of (a) RIETESRASENETAHRZ

the Group as at the Issue Date.

(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Yield.

(c) In subsequent periods, the derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit and loss.

(vi) No conversion of the Convertible Bonds took place since the Issue Date.

32. WARRANTS 32.

The Warrants are exercisable to subscribe for an aggregate
amount of HK$75,830,646 for fully paid shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at an initial subscription price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) on and after the first business
day immediately following the second anniversary of the Issue
Date up to Maturity Date. HWH and Delco also agreed to assign
the Warrants to Sims that they were entitled as a result of the
Subscription.
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(b) BERBRANED2EEERIMES
EREMETE °

REZHE  TETAFHERATF
Bt RFPEZEZINEEAR
B

(vi) B 31T R E R R AR A s

oI REE

RIRIEFEA F1TE - NERERTEHSE
THEFENE—AEEA R EEZEH
BiIREREEERe BT (7] T EE
HHEE ) RBEMEFA 75,830,646 78 TLANA Al
HRREEO0.01 B TTHEE D o HWH K&
Delco[Fl & M) Sims¥2 % (K ;R 8 = IE M A &
ZHMRIRAEE -
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32. WARRANTS (continued)
The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of the
Issue Date of the Warrants if any of the Warrant holders is not able
to exercise any subscription rights on or before the Maturity Date
solely because of the minimum public float restriction under the
Listing Rules (the “Extension”).

The Warrants are classified as a derivative and recognised at fair
value on initial recognition and subsequent measurement dates.
Changes in the fair value of the Warrants are recognised in profit
and loss. The fair value of warrants at initial recognition and as
at 31 December 2012 were HK$13,418,000 and HK$8,046,000,
respectively.

The change in fair value of HK$5,372,000 was recognised in
profit or loss. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company will be able to maintain the minimum public float of
the Company’s shares under the Listing Rules and will not trigger
the condition of the extension of the Warrants, therefore, the fair
value of the warrants did not take into account the Extension.

The fair value of the warrants was determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as

F+=A=t+—HBILFE

32.

R EE (&)

i 45 (AR R AR R Hﬁ)\%ltmiﬁJ
YRR A R4 A TR 1l T R BE S 2 HA B
o BIATIEE AR IERE - E'J@JES@ B S
RERBAEBEITEHRNE LB ([T
H]) -

RBEER D AR —AITETABRY
BERLERAERRAFERER - R
BAERE A FE iim%%aﬁnm&w °
RREEENIEREIRN T — =
F+-RA=+—H E‘\J/&WE;; Bl 7%
13,418,000 /87T X 8,046,000 7T °

M?fﬁ“ibsyzooo,%n%%é%imﬁﬁ
R ARNAREZERA  RNARFEHSE
ﬁtm%ﬁﬁlJﬁﬁ%EEZK@Tﬂxfﬁmﬂﬁm
BHERE YT SHBRRER TN

E/R At WL»HX*E; E@qu{gﬂﬂiﬁ_l-
MFEH -
RIER 2 A TFETEAZIEA HEE

BERABERTZRZEAMBAZE

follows: BEIEMT
At At
Issue Date 31/12/2012
R=-Z—=fF
NE&TAYE +=—A=+-—H
Stock price [ HK$4,33 HK$3.91
4,33%7C 3.91%8 7t
Exercise price TE(E HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.007% 7T 6.0078 7T
Expected volatility (note a) TEHER R TR (Fista) 53.189% 53.189%
Dividend yield AR B M am 0.855% 0.946%
Warrant life FRRRHE B R 36.0 months 26.0 months
36.018 A 26.01@ A
Risk free rate (note b) m R A== (FsED) 0.281% 0.119%
notes: B3
(@) The volatility was determined with reference to the implied volatility of the @  RENESRAEENETH R SRR
Group as at the Issue Date. MmEE

(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Yield.

No exercise of the Warrants took place since the Issue Date.

(b) EERNENESREELERFIMESES

EMrE

B 317 B B TE I AR ERE

EaRitbEEERAR —ZHFFR
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33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EERIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement BRSSO RANEY] & TIEE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MIBEENRBBEHIEE - A TR
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B2 E NHRERIBAR DT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIBEE 32,365 30,388
Deferred tax assets IRIETIE & 2 (12,621) (23,594)
19,744 6,794
The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and NEBERANEEHRB(EE)BELE
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as RAFEERUTEENESOT :
follows:
Change i
fair value
Accelerated Mlowance ~ Unrealised ~ of derivative ~ Distributable
taK Tat Inventories for doubtful profit on financial profits of
depreciation [osses provision debts inventories instruments  subsidiaries Total
i FEE  GESRIZ  MELTH
WEfE ERE Fekk AEER ghil  ATERD  WALEH g
HK$000 HK$000 HKS 1000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Tin Thn Thn Tin T Thn Thn
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—5-A-A = = - - - - 25,699 25,699
(Credit) charge to proftor ERGARER
loss for the year 1,993 (1,695) (19488) - (404) (2,007) 2,69 (18.905)
At 31 Decerber 2011 RE—F+2A=1-R 1993 (1,695) (19,488) - (404) (2,007) 2839 6,794
(Credit) charge to proftor En()AkER
loss for the year 1,041 (628) 9,263 (1,025) (998) 4240 101 12,904
Bxchange realignment ERHT - - 3 0 - 15 - 16
At 31 December 2012 S il o 3034 230) (10,190) (1,029 (1.402) 2248 29,406 19,744
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33.

34.

“E+-A=THALFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. EFERIE ()
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BRIBRBEIMREMGRE  BZET/N\F
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries —RA— R B E A 7R FT s
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been BIRZREBHTEMG 46 MR
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect RN R sk B B B A R 25 FIEE 2
of the temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits & B 2= £8491,304,0008 Tt ( =& — —
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$491,304,000 (2011: £ : 430,609,000 77T MEL IELER 18
HK$430,609,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the B AAENEBR R IAEIEGRE =B
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the O 7 B - mERRF ZZER A T2 R Al
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. B E D -
At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of R-TE——FE+—_A=+—8  ~&EE
HK$248,347,000 (2011: HK$80,820,000) available to offset A KB FRIEE 18 248,347,000 7T
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised (== ——4% : 80,820,000 7T ) A
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$14,077,000 (2011: R o BEARRE S8 MR AR AE T 18
HK$10,269,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in BEE14,077,0008L(—F——F:
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$234,270,000 10,269,000/ 7T) - HEHK T RKE A
(2011: HK$70,551,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit THIEET38 234,270,000 0 (28 ——
streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely £ 70,551,000 7T ) WARERAIELE
except for those amounting to HK$202,501,000 (2011: TRIBEE o A T IE B 18 1 H AR HA A Al
HK$52,853,000) arising from the PRC which may be carried . RRIEP BIE SR AR B FREFD
forward for five years. 5B T TR B 18 202,501,000 7THN (=
T——4 : 52,853,000/87T) °
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the RIBEHR  AEEE@BTHEHBAT
following assets to banks to secure the general banking facilities BE  NEREBETAEEZ —MRIRTE
granted to the Group: =
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Buildings (Note 17) BF (H3E17) 44,825 99,918
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) TafEE (FiEE18) 186,194 38,064
Investment properties (Note 19) HAEWE (HIEE19) 30,808 -
Trade receivables %%FEH&;” - 30,534
Bank deposits (Note 26) TR (Fi3E26) 105,765 127,004
367,592 295,520
EERBEMERAT —B——FEFH




188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

35.

36.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EXREE
2012 2011
—E-=F =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT F&ET
Capital expenditure contracted RUEYE - BERERER
for but not provided in the FENHESEETLH
consolidated financial statements BRNERE MBS ERKT
in respect of acquisition of BB EARR X
property, plant and equipment,
and prepaid lease payments 11,971 185,932
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 36. EIAKBEHEFTE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

Annual Report 2012

AEBERFEGEDEEF BN AE
BEAREREERIBESE - &
BBz EEEBR BB UXEAE
e BEeBARBMBEEDRARH
RIEBESFTENRE BENERER
D RIZRRMRTE RT AR L R A EH SIS -
AEBEHBRBESTECE-BERRE
kT EIF L PR 4K - WRE QPR
A] R VEFNIRL B IR A K

R BEREZEEN2ENBERFTE
E2 BIRERRINEAGTE o P EIH B
RAAREEEANHINETED LA
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Company could
grant options to directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme was to
recognise the contribution that Participants made or might
have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed to give
Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in
the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or
retain Participants whose contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

37. URDAERNRZRS

(i)

BRBEEFRAF

R B AT AR
REAADZERER T —F
FAASTZERBIE DR
R ARARMERDHHEN
B BT R A BB A
SHEL) © R ERAREE A
8 ARATAAREES (21
BITEE  ERITEERBIIE
HTEE) RER - AREEAR
AARNHEDFAA  BH -5
W R REE - R
BE - KBEH AEEBE
f e ASURTS S ([ 2 8
B REERE  ARBARR
Bt - BRARBERHBEE
RS REHAREER R
TREHHER - A RER
HREBEALDUARE K
BRSRARBRRRNE L
RSB EHARERAERR
RNEMEBHERE -
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing
1.214% of shares of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), but excluding
any shares which could fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the other schemes and shares that could fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are
exercisable at the initial offer price to the public (i.e.
HK$2.43 per share). Each of the holders of the share options
under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/
her options in the following manner:

Service period that

share options can be vested

after the date of Listing

R LT B % 7] 17 6 8 AR RE A9 AR 75 A

37. MR BERNR RS (&)

() BXRARBEABRETS(E)
AEHNBREMS &R RO H
B 4A12,140,0000% % 3 © #0 &
REBEARRARMDARB R EH
([EW ) BARRREEITRASR
RDE 1.214% @ ETBIEREITE
BIBEEXAHRAEERTE REM
FTEIE H ki TR A ERER
Al REHS T AT MR - AR
B 17 B 7175 B8 A9 8 KB e AR 4
i 7] B8 F BT TEI AR D o

BIBEE X RAREER R EE DA
BRERGTARALHYEE
EEB(AEFERERH2435 L) 17
o ERAFABERTETSE
fRiEH A A BT AT
i E AR -

Maximum percentage of
share options exercisable

A{TEBIRENE D LR

Attaining 1 year
FH—F
Attaining 2 years
KB MF
Attaining 3 years
RE=F
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30% of the total number of options granted
R B RE AR 2T 30%
30% of the total number of options granted
R IR 2E) 30%
40% of the total number of options granted

KB RELRH 40%
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMHAEBNR RS (&)

(continued)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRXAMBERIBRESTSE(E)
In 2010, 12,140,000 options were granted to eligible RIZ—FF - RBARBEAG
Participants under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the total number ElR& BRI H12,140,00017
of shares that can be issued upon the exercise of all options fERRE - RITE 2SRRI N
is 12,140,000 shares. The estimated fair value of the BITHEEUE12,140,0000 8815 » A
options at the date of grant is HK$7,837,000. Details of the £ B B B e T A T E R
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme and their 7,837,000 7T ° BXARZEER]
subsequent movements are as follows: Bﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘l‘*ﬂlﬁ—l—?ﬂjﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁ@ﬁ
BEREBEZEHOT
Lapsed Lapsed
Number dueto  Number dueto  Number of
of options employee  of options employee ~ options
Category of Exercise outstanding  Exercsed  resignation ~ outstanding ~ Exercised  resignation  outstanding
Fligible price  Exercisable asat  duing  during asat  duing  during asat
Participants Date of grant pershare  period Vesting date 14201 theyear  theyear 31022011 theyear  theyear 31122012
H-g-- H-g--f H-g-zf
-A-8 ERER t2A=1-R ERBR +2A=1-B
HATEN BRER  HAGRN FaEE  HATRN
RERSEEEY RiAE ERGRE  GRR FERE BhRER  EAGR WA BREER  ERGR  WAN BReEE
[notea) (note b} (note )
(Rita) (Fixb) L)
Diectors 1272010 HKS243  1272011127.2012 127011 1477500 - - 14T (1477500 - -
EH 53 18T EELArRE Rf
tAt=R Z5-TECATIR tAtZR
137.2012-12.7.2013 1372012 1477500 - - 147750 - - 147750

i R
e 2 i tAt=H
137.2013-12.7.2014 1372013 1,970,000 - - 1,970,000 - - 1970000
e R
“5-BELATA tAt=H

4925,000 - - 495000 (1477.500) - 347500
Employees and other 1272010 HKS243 127.2011-12.7.2012 1272011 2164500 (1,585,000) - 579500 (579,500) - -
pertidpants 3 38T FEtArRE 5
ESREHAEA A=A Z5-ZEATIR A=A
137.2012-12.7.203 137.2012 2,164,500 - (240000 2140500 (580,000) - 1560500

“E-ErRTR 5f
2 i) tAt=R
13.7.2013-12.7.2014 1372013 1,886,000 - (32000) 2,854,000 - (64000) 2,790,000
“E-cErRTRR e S
“I-MECATIR tAt=R

725000 (15850000 (560000 5574000 (11595000 (B4000) 4350500
12,0000 (15850000 (56000 10499000 (26370000 (64000} 7,798,000

Number of options exercisabl at the end ofthe year

ERTARHERESE - 2,001,000 3038000
Weighted average xerise price HKS243 HKS23 KK HKRLB HKRB HKB HKRLA3
MR 1Bk IBET 1BkT 18T 1BET 1BET 18R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URGAERSRZX S ()
(continued)

()

notes:

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMRBEAERESTS (&)
Bt &
The date of grant was the date when Participants accepted the offer (a) REBHALEZRNBBRAME
of options under the Pre-IPO Scheme. ERBRET BRI 2 ERENE
Hy o
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share (b) FARBITEBRERS - RITE
prices at the dates of exercise ranged from HK$3.75 to HK$4.16 HEZREN F3.758TE4L.16/8
(2011: HK$4.10 to HK$6.28). TT(ZFE——F 1 41087L26.28/8
JT) °
The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial model. (c) BREATFEDR -ZEXARA G
The inputs into the model were as follows: 8 ZEAEAZBNT
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
£t - ptig et
Grant date share price it B AR E HK$2.39 HK$2.39 HK$2.39
2.39% 7T 23977 2.39%7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$2.43 HK$2.43 HK$2.43
2.43%7T 2.43%7T 2.43%7T
Expected volatility TEERK IR 49.798% 54.803% 51.954%
Expected option period B HARE AR 12 HAPR 1.492 years 2.495 years 3.495 years
1.4924 2.495% 3.4954
Risk-free rate R R = 0.514% 0.776% 1.109%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B e X 3.557% 3.557% 3.557%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical
volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$2,005,000 for the year
(2011: HK$3,527,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme.
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(d) FRAEEREEEAARES
KRR E AT B B AR R R
322,005,000 T ( =2 ——4F :
3,527,000787T) ©
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(ii)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all
shareholders of the Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was also adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options
to directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and
employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the
Group who the board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Scheme Participants”). The Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to reward Eligible Scheme
Participants who have contributed to the Group and to
encourage Eligible Scheme Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the Shares for the
benefit of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from 23 June 2010.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of shares of the Company
as of the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting, without approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Scheme
Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the
date of grant.

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BRBEEFRAF

BRARBRERBRETS
BEAN - RIBARB 2 EBRRN =
T-TFEXA-t+=HBBHNE
EURFZ - ARARANERAFH
BERBROIESE ([ZFT8) -

RigZaE - ARRARESES
EENERAR/E /AR LSEAEE
EHERMNAEBESR (BFRT
B FATEFERBILEHRT
Ex)RER AKEIMKE
REINERBAA - B 23
BoAeEn HER KB T
F-EBBHE aEXBBHE.
BEARBRBHER (& BB
g2mE ) REBIRE - %8
E-HEBRMERFE SEBS
B8 2RESAREFELD
BERAREBABRE2EE
RARBRBEROBEN S MR
AARRBRBEOOBEMRL
ZAtEE—E—EFRA-T=
B TFRBN -

EfTERIEZE 84S TR AT
EEREMIERTNRS KM
HEAXTFEBRERREKX
2iERHANARABRMNE10%
(BAXRRARERE) - BITE
BIEZ et 8 R AR BT H AR
R AE 5T B BT 4% B & R AT E B9 BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(ii)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of their respective associates is required
to be approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the options). Where granting of options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
director or their respective associates which will result in
the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the twelve-month period up to and including the date of
such grant exceed of 0.1% of the total number of shares
in issue and have an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, based on the official closing price of the shares at
the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options will
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors
and but in any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(@)  the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be
a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(b)  the average of the official closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c)  the nominal value of the shares.
Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified
by the board of directors to each grantee and such period

shall expire not later than 4 years from the date of grant of
options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMHAEBNR RS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXAMBERBRESSE(E)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and BEZTEREOERERER
their subsequent movements are as follows: BEFBEWOT

Lapsed
Number dueto Number Number of
of options employee  of options options
Exercise outstanding Granted ~ Exercsed  resignation  outstanding  Redassified Granted ~ Evercised Lapsed ~ outstanding
Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during during sat during during during during asat
Stheme Participants ~ Dateofgrant ~ pershare period Vesting date 142011 theyear  theyear  theyear 31122011 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31122012
H-8--f #-8--% #-9-zf
-f-8 ERER t2R=t-B +2A=1-8
HAGEN FEER  HAGRY £ HAGEN
SERTESEEEN  RHAE SRAEE  fiRA b i BRERE  ERRM EAGR fish BREME  ENAR  EARE  ERR  EMRM  BREEA
(note2) (noteb)
(Hita) (Kitb)
Direcors 35201 HKS6.388 3520123503 35201 = 44250 ° ° 4250 (45,000) - - - 397,500
] i-f 63ET 2-TFRAZRE  5-f
1Az “R-ERf=R 1A=R
45201335204 45208 = 44250 ° ° 450 (45,000) = = = 397,500

Z5-cERAMAE C57F

Z5-RERRZR 1AEA
452014352015 45204 - 590,000 - - 590,000 (60,000) - - - 530,000
“5-BERAMAE  3-PE

Z5-RERACR 1AEA

Directors 62011 HKS6388 35201235013 352012 - 5250000 - - 5250000 - - - (5,250000) -
£ a2 638%T -ET--FRARE  F-F
RA=TRA I-ERACR BACR

note) 452013-35.2014 45201 - 5250000 - - 5250000 - - - (5,250000) -
i) “E-CERARRE CE-f
Z5-RERRZR 1AER

452014352015 45204 - 7,000000 - - 7000000 - - - (7.000,000) -

“I-MERARAE CERE
513 I R 1

Directors 832012 HKS4186 2832032732016 1832013 - - - - - - 262500 - - 262500
£ i 2 LISET  ZE-ZESAf\RE ZI-cF
ZA=thA ZEESACTtR ZASTAR
BINMUT3006 B30 - - - - - - 262500 - - 262500

ZR-MEZACTRE R-RE

“EESACttR ZASTAR
BINGUING - BN - - - - - - 350,000 - - 350,000
ZR-RESACTRE R-RE

“EESACttR ZASTAR

Directors 152012 HKS4186 2832032732016 1832013 - - - - - - 550000 - - 5550000
£ i 2 LISET  ZE-ZESAf\RE ZI-2F
il 1 “EESACttR ZASTAR
note ) BN B3NN - - - - - - 550000 - - 5550000
(hid) Z3-MEANRE C3-RE
b S o Y o
BINGUING - BN - - - - - - 7400000 - - 7400000

Z2-RESACTIRE B-RE
“EESACttR ZASTAR

18,975,000 = - 18975000 (150000 19,375,000 - (17s00000) 20,700,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMHAEBNR RS (&)

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXAMBERBRESSE(E)
Lapsed
Number dueto Number Number of
of options employee  of options options
Exercise outstanding Granted ~ Exercsed  resignation  outstanding  Redassified Granted ~ Exerdsed  Forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during during asat during during during during asat
Stheme Partiipants  Dateofgrant ~ pershare period Vesting date 101 theyer  theyear  theyear 31022011 theyer  theyear  theyer  theyear 31122012
H=%--% #-8--% #=8-2f
-A-A ERER t2A=1-A 128=1-A
HATEY BERR  MAGRM D) HATRY
AERIESRERN  REEH BRAER  fRA o i BREZE  ERRM EfR sk BRRME  ENAR EARM  ERGR EMRM BREER
[note )
(Hita)
Enplyeesandatter 292010 W38 290900 2801 1,131,000 S0 (o) 105550 - B ) 1) -
partipants 55 IBEL  REAACTZEE 3
ERRAtaEE ABZ12A o St i ol N s
BINNNINB - BINN 1,131,000 - - (150000 1,116,000 - - - (30000) 1,086,000

“B-Eff-toRE CR-oE
i N B |
BINBNING - BIAB 1,508,000 - - (20000) 1,488,000 - - - (4o0o0) 1448000
“BEff-toRE Bk
“E-REAAZTCA ARZTEA

Emloyeesandother 352011 HKSG.388  35.2012-35.2013 352012 - 3,756,000 - (183000) 3,573,000 45,000 - - (1410000 347,000
prtipants 5k 638ET  E-CERAZRE B-E
EERakBER il e S N
452013352014 45013 - 376000 - (183000 3,573,000 45,000 - - (1410000 347,000

TI-CERfmRE Rzf
I-mERRZR RAMRE
' 45201435205 452014 - 5008000 - (000 4764000 0,000 = - (18go00) 4636000
TI-MERAREE CREE
ZZ-RERAZR RAMR

Employessandother 2832012 HKS4186 2832013213206 283203 - - - - - - 347500 - (1140000 3343500
prtipants o 2 dgET  Z3-ZEZATIRE ZE-zE
et =R=tNE ZE-NESACtHR ZRtAR
B304-2732016 283201 - - - - - - 34750 - (1140000 333500

ZI-ME-R-f/\BE ZE-TE

“E-EACttA ZRZHAR

BIN152032016 83005 - - - - - - 4610000 - (15,0000 4458000
“3-1E-R-f/\BE CE-1f

“E-EACttA ZRZHAR

3770000 12,520,000 (60500) (660000} 15569500 150000 11,525,000 (94500 (6910000 25269000

3770000 31,495,000 (60,500) (660000) 34544500 - 3090000 (945000 (18491000 45969000
Number of options evercable at the end of the year
REERRABRERR - 1020500 4,960,500
Wt average evercise pice HK$338 Hk$6.39 Hk3.38 Hks6.16 HkS6.07 - HK§A.19 HK$3.38 HKSS.4 HK$5.17
METHARE 3%ET 63957 385 66T 607 - 419%T 38T SUET SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

notes:

(@) During the year, a director resigned from the Company but was
retained as a consultant to the Group to provide consultancy services
similar to those rendered by employees.

(b) 17,500,000 share options granted to directors were lapsed in the year
as the performance condition was not met.

(c) This represents the date when the grant of share options under the
Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors resolved to make the offer of grant of share options to the
relevant directors of the Company, which was 3 May 2011.

(d) This represents the date when the grant of share options under the
Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors resolved to make the offer of grant of share options to the
relevant directors of the Company, which was 28 March 2012.

The share options granted are exercisable as follows:

Service period that
share options can be vested
after date of grant

RETH B RRITTRBRENREHE

37. MR BERNR RS (&)

(i) BRAFBERBRETS(H)
BfRE

(@) NER > —ZESRARFRHER
BERASBER  REHEEHEME
S PR A IR R LAY B AR o

(b) MRFALREZ R E R K
FEFEHK)17,500,00017 FEARAE KR ©

(© IR RIBEZTE M ERHEEE(R
75 %2 % 5t 4 K Stephanus Maria van
Ooijen o4 ) &K AR AR R 7]
SRR Z B o At - ARIEZET
2 REBHBERRNERTIRE
EHZZRAARAAMESRIEE
RENBE I ——FHA=
g o

(d) IR RIBEZTE M ERBEEE(E
75 %2 % 5t 4 J Stephanus Maria van
Ooijen £ &) R B IREE AR A
BRI AL B - Rl - BEZ
FrE REBBMBERRNERTTR
EEHEERNARAEHEEKE
BERENBES AT —=—F=4
=t A=

TR ER BRI T

Maximum percentage of
share options exercisable

AATEERIRENE 2t LR

Attaining 1 year
FH—F
Attaining 2 years
FrHMF
Attaining 3 years
RE=F

In addition to the above service period requirement,
17,500,000, 650,000 and 18,500,000 of the share options
granted to certain executive directors on 24 June 2011, 28
March 2012 and 24 May 2012, respectively, are also subject
to specific profit performance targets as a condition for
vesting. The options granted on 28 March 2012 and 24 May
2012 are only be vested if the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is equal to or exceeds 130% of
the Group's profit for the financial year ended 31 December
2010 ("Profit Target 2012").

30% of the total number of options granted
AR AR 21 30%
30% of the total number of options granted
AR AR 21 30%
40% of the total number of options granted
B AR AR 2R 40%

BRmE b RIS R E ko
R-_T——FXA-+WEB =
T——F=A=ZFNAERR=ZE
——FRA-+WEADFERTFE
F #h 17 & = #917,500,00015 *
650,00013 % 18,500,000 BE A% ##
MAHRREEERMNEKE B EZ
% HERE MAKEEZE—=
T ——_F#+_-_fB=+—HItF
B2 aHERKBRAEEEE
—E—ZTFF+_A=+—HILF
ERAME130% (=2 —=—Fx
MBED AR—_ZT—=—F=
AZ+NBR-ZE—Z-FHA
ZTmARE  BRES SRS -

ESRHEERRAT —T-—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URMHAEBNR RS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAHBERBRESTS (&)
The fair value of the options was calculated using the BREAFEERZR —BAEK
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows: 8 ZEAFBAZBBAT

Share options granted on 22.9.2010
REZB-—Z2FAAST-HRHNBRE

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
#14 %24 %34
Grant date share price B HEARE HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.3887T 3.38%7T 3.3887T
Exercise price 111R(E8 HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.38%87T 3.38%7T 3.38%87T
Expected volatility TEER B 47.816% 55.886% 53.523%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR i AR 1.5 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.54 2.503F 3.503F
Risk-free rate = ) =R 0.43% 0.625% 0.847%
Expected dividend yield TRHARR Bz 2 2.515% 2.515% 2.515%
Share options granted on 3.5.2011
R-B——EFA=ARENERE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
E14 %24 #3484
Grant date share price X B AR (E HK$6.20 HK$6.20 HK$6.20
6.2087T 6.2087T 6.2087T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$6.388 HK$6.388 HK$6.388
6.388 7T 6.388 87T 6.388 7T
Expected volatility TEEDR IR 42.747 % 53.510% 51.323%
Expected option period TR HR RS Iz e B 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503F 2.503 F 3.503F
Risk-free rate 1 [ p 1 0.406% 0.778% 1.195%
Expected dividend yield TEAAAR B e & 1.448% 1.448% 1.448%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. UGB AEBRNR2ZRS (&)
(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAHBERBRESTS (&)

Share options granted on 24.6.2011
REB-——FXA-THERHOBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

E14 %24 E34

Grant date share price £ B HIARE HK$6.09 HK$6.09 HK$6.09
6.098 7T 6.097% 7T 6.098 7T

Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$6.388 HK$6.388 HK$6.388
6.388/87T 6.38887C 6.388/87T

Expected volatility DK 1B 38.291% 47.572% 51.216%
Expected option period 76 HARE Ak i BA R 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 F 2.503F 3.503F

Risk-free rate 12 B B i 0.260% 0.486% 0.803%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 1.482% 1.482% 1.482%

Share options granted on 28.3.2012
R-B-——S=ZA-+N\BRENBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

#14 %24 %34

Grant date share price B HEAR(E HK$4.10 HK$4.10 HK$4.10
4.10%7T 4.10%7T 4.10%7T

Exercise price 1T1EE HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.186 7T 4.186 77T 4.186 7T

Expected volatility TEERR I8 44.334% 46.651% 51.539%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR A AR 2.500 years 3.000 years 3.500 years
2.500F 3.0004F 3.500 %

Risk-free rate A a1 B ) = 0.276% 0.338% 0.373%
Expected dividend yield B HAR B Uk 25 R 0.902% 0.902% 0.902%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(ii)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BRAARBERBRETS (&)

Share options granted on 24.5.2012
REB-—FHEA-THARENBERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

E14 %24 #3348

Grant date share price £ BHIARE HK$4.06 HK$4.06 HK$4.06
4.06 7T 4.06787C 4.0687C

Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.18687T 4.186/87T 4.18687T

Expected volatility ALK 1B 40.696% 44.958% 47.450%
Expected option period 76 HARE AR i BA R 2.344 years 2.844 years 3.344 years
2.344%F 2.844 F 3.344%F

Risk-free rate 1R B b i 0.263% 0.279% 0.307%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 0.911% 0.911% 0.911%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the
historical volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The aggregate fair value of the share options granted on
28 March 2012 and 24 May 2012 was HK$35,843,000 of
which, HK$21,237,000 related to share options granted to
certain directors with a performance condition in the form
of Profit Target 2012. The Group has not recognised share-
based payment expense as none of the options are expected
to ultimately vest.

In respect of the share options granted without a
performance conditon, taking into account of (i) the
applicable vesting period and (ii) the achievability of the
performance conditions, the Group recognised share-based
payment expense of HK$15,698,000 for the year (2011:
HK$18,044,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE =T ——F+=-F=+—HILFE

38. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 38. EALTRBEELRE
DISCLOSURES
(i) Transactions i) X%
During the year, the Group had the following transactions RER - NEBEBES BT
with related parties, certain of which are also deemed to be R HEET E@E*EHFJ: m
connected persons pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing HAFEVAAZE TR ABEEAL
Rules:
Name of party notes Nature of transaction 2012 2011
BELER i3 REHE —F-C-f T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
Connected transaction
and related party transactions
BERSREEL S
Sims (a) & (b) Purchase of scrap metals 828,579 -
REESR
Sales of scrap metals 69,326 -
HEESE
Subscription of convertible bonds 315,600 -
RE AR ES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 25,243 -
AHAREST SR
Compensation received 2,486 -
BlHE
Compensation paid 187 -
EfHE
Delco (b) Subscription of convertible bonds 312,600 -
REARES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 25,003 -
AARESF 8%
HWH (b) Subscription of convertible bonds 187,600 -
R AARES
Interest expense on convertible bonds 15,005 -
AR ESF SR
Connected transactions
HERS
De Leeuw Metalen B.V. ( Purchase of scrap metals 8,813 13,307
BEECR
Related party transactions
BERRS
HREKEBWEERRA  (d) Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 6,722
(I EgK]) BENE  BEL&E
Purchase of metal scrap - 1,881
BERTR
ISA Co., Limited (“ISA") (e) Acquisition of additional interest in
CTHK Metals (as defined in Note 42)
REGEECBIKE
FIMER (BB RMTEE42) - 4,779

BaXitEEERAT —T—_FFR 201




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R RMEE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

38. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 38. BELIE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(i) Transactions (continued) (i) x5 (&)

notes: Bt &t

(a) These represent transactions between the Group and Sims after Sims (a) BT —=—F—A#Sims KAX
became a substantial shareholder with significant influence over the AR ARAREEAREZFER
Company since January 2012 (details are set out in the Company’s REAREEHESIMs ZHEHR S (B
announcement on 17 January 2012). HBEHERARRIAAE-S—=F

—A+EBHAE) -

(b) As set out in Notes 31 and 32, in March 2012, the Company issued (b) W31 R 32FTE - K= —=F
Convertible Bonds and Warrants to Sims, Delco and HWH, all of which =R AR —RHAARAEFE
are the shareholders with significant influences over the Company. R BN Z AR Sims « Delco &

HWH BT AT IR & 55 K R AR A R o

(c) De Leeuw Metalen B.V. is controlled by a close family member of Mr. (0) De Leeuw Metalen B.V.H ¥ A" 2
Herman Maurits de Leeuw, a shareholder with significant influence AIEAEAFE N ZKREHerman
over the Company. Maurits de Leeuw 5t4 2 — &3 HK

TRk B4 o

(d) /5K is a non-controlling shareholder of one of the Group’s PRC (d) EEEKRASE —HFBEEEE
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries and held 49% equity interest in that M A R B EEARARER - B AR
PRC subsidiary. /88K has significant influence over a subsidiary of BB A R 49% ARAE o £ Bk ¥
the Group. AEEN—BHRBARAEEAY

25 -

(e) On 21 December 2011, the Group further acquired 15% equity (e) N-ZTB——F+=-_A=+—H ' &
interest in CTHK Metals from ISA, non-controlling interests with SEE—FRISAREESBEER
significant influence on a subsidiary of the Company at the time of #15% Re#E (Ui B S AR A
this acquisition, for a consideration of HK$4,779,009 in cash. The —FNEAREEATENHIEE
difference between the consideration and the carrying amount of i) HEREAR4,779,0097%
non-controlling interests, amounting to HK$171,000, was recognised Lo REEEERESEEENE
as an equity transaction in reserve. %8 171,000 8 T EERER A

(ii) Connected person balance (i) BAEFEER

The amounts due from a connected person represent trade FE UL A58 5 FRIBFE AN &= E (A1 Sims

deposits paid by the Group to Sims and the amounts due to YNZ2ESEE MEMNEERE

substantial shareholder represent trade balances with Sims, FIE (BN AR A R) E Z AR Sims

a substantial shareholder of the Company. The amounts 2B SR o S IEAERE M

are unsecured and interest-free. The Group generally allows BB o NEE R4 T e IR &

an average credit period of amounts due from a connected FRIEREEEEHA608 -
person of 60 days and the amounts were aged less than 60 ZH AR DIRE0 R c RIRE

days. At the end of the reporting period, the amounts due BAZR - PEURRAE 5 SRIB R AR R (E

from a connected person were neither impaired nor past IR o

due.

(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (i) ETEEEAESHMH

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

The directors of the Company and the five highest paid
employees are identified as key management members of
the Group, details of their compensation during the year are
set out in Note 13.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

39. OPERATING LEASES 39. KR&EHE

The Group as lessee AEEEREBEA
2012 2011
—E——F —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET

Minimum lease payments paid FABRBLEEHEZ T
under operating leases HEHES

during the year:

Plant and machinery RS R iEs 12,515 19,851
Premises LS 2,298 1,501
14,813 21,352
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RBERR - REBERBTAIHHELSE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SR TR R REERS
operating leases which fall due as follows: AEWT
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year F—FNR 12,390 20,034
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EZFNF (BEEERT) 14,671 57,301
Over five years HEL L - 44,278
27,061 121,613
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHSIEAEERETYE  BEK
for certain of its property, plant and equipment. Leases are REEMNES - BALHBEEATHA
negotiated for an average term of five years with fixed rentals. FRBESEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

39.

40.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income of leasing investment properties during the
year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$1,329,000 (2011:
HK$1,125,000 from sublease of a leasehold land in the PRC on a
temporary basis).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

39.

KEHE (8)

AEBEERBHBEA
HE-Z——F+-_A=+—"HILFE
HEMERENHE S KA A1,329,000
B (ZE——F « RYREEFH
ME LA H U A &1,125,0005%
JT) °

RBEPR  AEERBFOEN TR
REEHESWAT :

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——1F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FH&T

Within one year —F A 1,370 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEELF (PDEEEME) 323 -
1,693 -

PENDING LEGAL LITIGATIONS

As disclosed in the announcement by the Company on 14
December 2012, the Group was a defendant in legal claims filed
by the lessor of certain properties in Shanghai for unpaid rent
and management fees totalling approximately RMB16.6 million.
The Group also filed a counter-claim against the lessor for overall
expected direct economic loss of approximately RMB108 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$133 million) as a result of alleged
misrepresentation by the lessor. The directors, after obtaining
legal advice and considering the provisions already made by the
Group, are of the opinion that the eventual resolution of the
above litigations will not have any material adverse impact to the
Group's future results and financial position.

Annual Report 2012

40.

FREFER
BUOARFTR_E——F+=-_A+HX
BRAMETEE L8 THWENLE
ARG HEREEBHETARKE
16,600,000 JTI2 H FA R EFEAR © AN
BEmMKARS - AEBENEELEA
ZIEBAERMAMERNERTEHERE
LOER A AR B 108,000,000 7T (49180
Z7 133,000,000 47T ) $f A RRE R
R -EELESEEERREEAE
EFiEREE - RALMBFHRLR
FW TS HAEE MR REE R B
SRR EATFIFE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  41. &Q BB

COMPANY
The summarised financial position of the Company at the end of RS BIRAN A R SARR B AR
the reporting period is as follows:

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——1F
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5k FHET FH&T
Investments in a subsidiary, KB AR ZKE

unlisted kL™ - -
Available-for-sales investment At HERE 15,470 19,060
Amount due from subsidiaries i NG 2,008,539 1,127,531
Other receivables o fth fE W R IE 470 536
Bank balance IRITEERR 1,369 97
Total assets 1aE 2,025,848 1,147,224
Other current liabilities HEtmehasE 15,135 16,184
Bank overdraft RITEX - 2,285
Convertible bonds AR &S 708,547 =

Embedded derivatives components AR ESF TR AR ITE
of convertible bonds TARS 85,290 -
Warrants R E 8,046 =
Total liabilities SR 817,018 18,469
Net Assets BEFE 1,208,830 1,128,755
Share capital [N 29 10,435 10,419
Reserves et (i) 1,198,395 1,118,336
Total equity iRz 1,208,830 1,128,755
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ARA BB RE (&)
COMPANY (continued)

(i) Movement in reserves (i) fR“E2H
Capital Share Investment ~ Accumulated
Share redemption Capital option revaluation (losses)
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
it EARERE el BRERR REEEEE  ZR(ER)EA i
HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
St TEL ThL ThL Tin T THL
(note a)
k2
At 1 January 2011 nF—£-A-A 578 540 - 216,08 2500 - (53,364) 743 884
Profit for the year Emgil = = = = - 142,804 142,804
Farvalueloss on avaleble- ~ AAHESHEE

for-ale financial assets ATEER = = = = (6,653) - (6,653)
Total comprehensive EREAYA

income for the year i - - - - (6,653) 142,804 136,151
Cash dividend paid (Note 15) B EEARE (H15) - - - - - (88,449) (88.449)
Serip dvidend recognised HRRERAEAR

as ditrbution (K15 Ra9 (i)

(Notes 15 & 29 (note i) 1,19 - - - - (119) )]
Iste of new shares St

(Note 29 (note i) (KE9(H) 395,400 = - - - - 395,400
Transaction costs SR RARE

attributable to issue of

e shares (10513 - - - - - (10513
Share options exercised L Gl ]

(Note 29 note i) (Hizt 29 (Mt 4040 - - ) - o 4040
Lapse of share options BhiExn - - - @) - 0 -
Recognition of equiy- EIRERER

settled share-based OIS

payments (Note 37) (Ki31) - - - 157 - - 1501
Shares repurchased and REE R

cancelled (Note 29 (Rs20 Bk )

(note v)) (83,746) 200 - - - (200) (83,748)
A 31 December 2011 RoE-F

12A=1-H 884,911 200 216,08 0118 (6,653) 892 1,118,336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ARA BB RE (&)
COMPANY (continued)

(i) Movement in reserves (continued) (i) f*EEE(E)
Capital Share Investment ~ Accumulated
Share redemption Capital option revaluation (losses)
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RiteE HARERE HAG BRERR REfERE  Eit(ER)EA it
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
Thn ThR TEL TR T TR TER
(note a)
k2
Profit for the year Epgil - - - - - 92,461 9461
Redlssiied ERABNETRIE

toprofitorlossondisposel ~~~ RAERE
of avallable-for-sale

investment - - - - 49 - 49
Fair value oss on available- THHESHERLTEER
for-sale finandal assets - - - - (805) - (805)

Cumulative impaimentloss B ABARAE
redassfid toprofitoross—— REREZERZ
onimpaiment of avalable-  ZHAEER

for-sales investment - - - - 7009 - 7009

Total comprehensive ERZAYA

income for the year 8 - - - - 6,653 92,461 99,114
Cash dividend paid (note 1)~ B &RE (i 15) - = = - = (38612) (38612)
Share options exercised WRRABHERR

(Note 29 {note i) (29 (M) 11,920 - - 2 - - 9,699
Lapse of share options BRERN = = = (8273) - 8273 -
Recogniton of eqity- EARERER

setfled share-based TRy RER 213

payments (Note 37) (K&37) - - - 17,103 - - 17,103
Shares repurchased and RAEER:E

cancelled (Note 29 (3229 (M)

(note v)) (7.845) 2 - - - (20) (7.845)

At31 December 2012 RoE-2F

t2A=1-8 888,986 20 216,208 29,987 - 62,99 1,198,395
note: B EE -

(a) Capital reserve of the Company represents the net effect of (i) the (a) AARERNEERER T —ZF () EAXMER
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans of HK$223,708,000 and (i) the REFX 223,708,000 7T K (i) A BILAE 2R
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 749,999,900 shares {78 88 ) H R SR 24T IR L 35 48 51 749,999,900
of HK$0.01 each in the Company out of the capital reserve to its ARSI AR A ZAREE0.01 B ITE AR
shareholders, credited as fully paid at par, in 2010. ZEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=F —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Place of
Name of subsidiary notes  operation
HWEARER M SEBE

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/  share capital/
establishment  registered capital
Bl BROREAR
RUSHEREE  RE/ERRE

ZEYZ A=+ -HLEEE

Attributable equity interest
held by the Group
AEBELRAER

42. AAAMBATRE

Principal activities

B33

Chiho-Tiande International () Hong Kong
Limited ("CT International ") 5%
BERRHERERAR
(IE2ER))
Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong
Limited &k
Ba R RAERAR
Delco Europe B.V. The
Netherlands
iz
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong
Baki () BRAR Eh
Hefast Holding Corporation Hong Kong
Limited &k

208 Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

British Virgin Islands Us$2
2 April 2008 ES
ERRAES

—ZT)\FNAZH

Hong Kong HK$10,000
16 July 2008 10,000%7T
ZEENELATRA

The Netherlands EUR18,151
18 January 1985 18,1518t
G

—NW\RE-A+/\R

Hong Kong HK$100,000
12 May 2004 100,000/

“ZEMERATA

Hong Kong HK$100,000
20 December 2002 100,000% 7T
ZET-ETZRAZtH

Investment holding
RABR

Investment holding
RERR

Purchasing agent of
the Group
REEMRERE

Purchasing agent of
the Group and
wholesales of metal
scrap without
processing

FEENFERER
ANTESBIE

Investment holding
RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. XREIMMBLRFE (E)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/  share capital/
Place of establishment  registered capital ~ Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary notes operation AR/ BRTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEARER M EEn® RIBERAH  RE/ERRE AEBEL R ER TEXH
2012 2011
8- 3——F

Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) HongKong  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Copper Industry Company B 15 June 2009 10,0007 T BEER
Limited (“CTHK Copper”) 9%

Baki(EE) AEERAR ZETNERATEA
(TEaEARE])

Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals (i)~ HongKong  Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 70% 70% Trading of metal scrap
Recycling Co. Limited ik 20 September 2010 35,000,000757% EERLE
("CTHK Metals") Bk

Bakb(ER)BLLE ZE-TFENAZTH
BRAA(EaEACE])

Chiho-Tiande (HK) (i)~ HongKong  Hong Kong HK$10,000 36.4% 36.4% Provide logistics
Logistics Co., Limited Bk 2 March 2011 10,0007 7 services for the Group
(“CTHK Logistics") & BASERENTRE

BaXi (B8 DRERAR “3——5=RZH

[E&&EDR])

Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong  British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

(BVI) Limited Bk 9 August 2011 (B REZR
ERRAES
—E—%/\RNB

Chiho-Tiande Metals Hong Kong  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Investment Limited BB 19 August 2011 10,0007 T BET

BEa R BREERAR Bk

ZE2——%\ATNA

Chiho-Tiande Resources Hong Kong  British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

Limited &b 5 September 2011 (E BEH
EERAES
ZT——¥NATR

ESRiEEFRAE

—E-_FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=F —

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

“FtZA=t—HLEFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. XREIMMBLRFE (E)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/  share capital/
Place of establishment  registered capital ~ Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary notes operation MR/ BERTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEARERE M SEBE RYBER A R/ AR FEEfREERAER TEER
2012 2011
- ZZ——F
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) (W)  ThePRC The PRC US$12,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Recycling Co., H 28 September 2008 12,000,000%7¢ of metal scrap
Limited # MIRFERELE
BEaki (BR) B “ZE\FAAZTNR
EBARAA
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (v)  ThePRC The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Foundry Company Limited H 8 December 2003 7,500,000% T of metal scrap,
ANEERHEEERAT HE production and sales
“ZZ=F+tZANR of metal products
MIRHEFLE -
EERHESEER
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (v)  ThePRC The PRC US$42,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Company Limited HE 24 December 1999 42,682,000 7T of metal scrap,
aNBERREBARAR # production and sales
—AANETZA=+HA of metal products
MIRHERSE
EERHESRER
Shanghai Chiho-Tiande The PRC The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51% Processing and sales
Resource Recycling Co., H 30 September 2010 A R#52,000,0007 of metal scrap
Limited # MIRHEREE
TREERMEBLAEREARAR “Z-ZFAA=TH
Tianjin Chiho-Tiande Metal () ThePRC The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 51% Processing and sales
Recycling Company Limited HE 21 February 2011 A&%20,000,0007¢ of metal scrap and
("CTT) Metal") H deregistered on
REBA R BEERERAR —T—F-fA=1-H 29 May 2012
((BEaxzeRl) MIRHEESE -
17, S Sk
RAZthRHEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—T——F + A =1+—HItFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42. RN EIMMEBA RS (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/  share capital/
Place of establishment  registered capital ~ Attributable equity interest

Name of subsidiary notes operation MR/ BERTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEAR R M SEBE Rt RAH R/ AR REMERERARS TEER
2012 2011
“$-2f 1%
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources (iv) ~ The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Recycling Co. Limited HE 15 November 2011 40,000,000 75 of metal scrap
Baki(BR)BEER HE MIRFEELE
BRAR —Z——%+t-ATEA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end RZE——FR T ——FFREEM
of the years of 2012 and 2011. [B R B BT R EISRERE -
notes: B et -
(i) The Company holds CT International directly and all other subsidiaries (i) ARAEEFAEEABRREESFEREE
indirectly. i) NG
(ii) On 21 December 2011, the Group acquired additional 15% equity interest in (i) RZZB——F+ZRA=+—R8 KAEEH)
CTHK Metals from ISA, details of which are set out in Note 38(i) note (e). ISAREERE S BB BAEIN5% IR - &

TEEHP L 38() T 5T (e)

(i)~ On 2 March 2011, the Group established CTHK Logistics in which the Group (i) RNZT——F=A=H ~KEXIBEEE
held 52% equity interest in CTHK Logistics through 70% owned CTHK Metals. BYR B AREEBEAEBEAESS

[B70% B RS A 25 & BB WIR52 % BHE

(iv) These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. (iv) ZEBERATPEK I MINGBERE -
(v) On 21 February 2011, the Group established CTTJ Metal in which the Group (v) RZT——F-_A=+—H AKEKIE
held 51% equity interest. On 29 May 2012, the entity was deregistered. ARECRE - EPAREEFE51% K - R

—E—-FAAZ+NA  ZEBSHEHE -
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5-Year Financial Summary

T FEHERE

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=+—HLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TE\F -TENF -ZT-TF -T——fF =B-=fF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT FHT TAT TAT THERT
RESULTS ¥iE
Revenue Wz 2,505,168 2,339,243 5,931,589 9,815,522 8,202,702
(Loss) profit before tax BB (518 57 (071,298) 587,194 482,034 204,459 72,034
Income tax charge (expense) AR % (FIs2) 71,166 (167,540) (129,478) (88,208) (32,683)
(Loss) profit for the year ER(BE) &7
attributable to: FEM
Owners of the Company ARAEB A (200,132) 419,654 352,798 152,087 88,591
Non-controlling interest B R - - (242) (35,836) (49,240)
(200,132) 419,654 352,556 116,251 39,351
At 31 December
BRt+t=A=+-AH
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TE\F -TENF -ZT-TF -T——fF =B-=fF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’000
TAT FHT TAT TAT THERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEAE 1,110,846 1,851,728 3,581,367 5,314,522 5,201,979
Total liabilities BELE (1,115,883)  (1,433,630) (1,934,686) (3,250,502) (3,128,437)
Net (liabilities) assets (BB EE (5,037) 418,098 1,646,681 2,064,020 2,073,542

In this report, amounts denominated in US$ have been converted into

HK$ at the rate of US$1 = HK$7.8 for illustration purpose only.

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. Should
there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions,

the English version shall prevail.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
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